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corporate profile

The next level.

The desire to excel, not just succeed. To be the best, not just among the best. To lead in new
areas, not just follow others’ footsteps. These are the goals Intuit sets for itself as we commit
ourselves to consistently deliver results that exceed the expectations of our customers,
employees and stockholders. In every aspect of our business, to take it to the next level.

Getting there requires us to constantly challenge ourselves. It’s great leaders who build great
teams. It’s financial performance that outpaces our competitors. It’s customer-driven
innovation that makes our customers’ lives simpler. It’s social responsibility, giving back to
the communities we call home. And it’s a high-performing organization of employees proud
to deliver the best.

That’s what is taking Intuit to the next level.

We pursue this aim committed to our fundamental goal: to create solutions so profound that
our customers can’t imagine going back to the old way. Our core values remain our guiding
principles. While we adapt and grow in the world around us, our goal and values do not waver.

Since our founding in 1983, our passion to solve customer problems has fueled our success.
What began modestly as an effort to help people balance their checkbooks with Quicken
grew into the small business and tax areas with QuickBooks and TurboTax.

In 2002, we sharpened our business focus while expanding into new areas. Our Right for My
Business strategy evolved as we acquired five great companies to bring Intuit’s reputation and
unique, customer-driven approach to four new industries. Today, you'll see us offering
business and financial management solutions in the construction, public sector, property
management and durable goods distribution businesses, and with a stronger position in the
payroll services field. Each of these companies shares our vision of taking it to the next level.

We've also sharpened our internal focus, implementing programs to improve our ability to
serve customers more effectively and efficiently. And as always, we continue to make Intuit a
great place to work, by recruiting and retaining the best employees, and rewarding them for
the results they deliver to our customers and stockholders.

Taking it to the next level is an unending effort. We work every day to get there, knowing
there will always be something we can do a little better, a little faster or a little smarter. And
in the end, that effort delivers for our customers, our employees and our stockholders.

For more information, about Intuit, our products, services, and more than 6,000 employees,
please visit us at www.intuit.com. (The information contained on our Web site is not part of
this annual report.)
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financial highlights

Selected Financial Information
(in thousands, except per share data)
YEAR ENDED JULY 31,

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Net Revenue $592,065 $842,900 $1,037,349 $1,148,405 $1,358,348
Gains (Losses) on Marketable Securities

and Other Investments, Net — 579,211 481,130 (98,053) (15,535)
Net Income (Loss) from Continuing

Operations, Net of Tax (7,646) 384,020 322,178 (118,079) 69,760
Net Income (Loss) from Discontinued

Operations, Net of Tax 13,828 2,544 (16,517) 20,972 70,400
Net Income (Loss) 6,182 386,564 305,661 (82,793) 140,160
Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Share

from Continuing Operations $ (0.05) $ 1.92 $ 1.53 $ (0.57) $ 0.32
Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Share

from Discontinued Operations 0.09 0.01 (0.08) 0.10 0.32
Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Share 0.04 1.93 1.45 (0.40) 0.64
Cash, Cash Equivalents and

Short-term Investments $382,832 $823,090 $1,420,770 $1,213,606 $1,250,429
Marketable Securities 499,285 431,176 225,878 85,307 16,791

Our Quicken Loans mortgage business has been accounted for as discontinued operations in all periods presented.

Comparability of information is affected by acquisitions, divestitures, gains and losses (including price fluctuations)
relating to marketable securities and other investments, and other factors.

All per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect a three-for-one stock split effective September 30, 1999.

Pro Forma Net Income
(in thousands, except per share data; unaudited)

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Pro Forma Net Income $49,556 $93,633 $147,883 $162,480 $211,289
Diluted Pro Forma Net Income per Share $ 0.30 $ 047 $ 0.70 $ 075 $ 097

Note: The table above presents pro forma net income and pro forma diluted net income per share. Pro forma figures are presented for informational
purposes only and are not prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. We prepare our pro forma information using
the same consistent standards from quarter to quarter and year to year. Pro forma net income excludes acquisition-related charges, such as
amortization of goodwill and intangibles and impairment charges, and amortization of purchased software and purchased research and
development. It also excludes gains and losses from marketable securities and other investments, gains and losses on divestitures, discontinued
operations, the cumulative effect of an accounting change and the tax effects of these transactions. The amortization of acquisition-related
charges results from acquisitions that we have accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Our pro forma information should not be
considered a substitute for GAAP historical information, and may be different from the pro forma measures used by other companies.
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STRONG LEADERSHIP

Great leaders build great teams, with great depth and a unified
vision. At Intuit, we fortified an already strong management team in
2002 with the addition of top-flight executives who will lead our
employees — and the company — to greater achievements in 2003

and beyond.

Intuit’s leaders set the pace.

Every day, they drive themselves, and their teams, to think smart and act fast. Remaining
true to our history of challenging conventional thinking, our leaders work together to
embrace the company’s shared vision of striving for strong, sustained growth. We’ve
accomplished this by adopting a unique philosophy built on executing effectively,
thinking strategically and building strong teams. That combination enables us to deliver

“Best We Can Be” results for our customers and stockholders.

To deliver the best, we need the best. Throughout the company, we’re attracting — and
retaining — blue-chip leaders from all areas of the business world. Executives from other

Fortune 500 firms add their business experience to our management mix.

Entrepreneurs whose companies have been acquired by Intuit choose to stay with us,
providing another layer of innovative thinking that will only add to Intuit’s ability to
perform for customers. Together they strengthen a team of home-grown talent,

complimenting a roster of executives with the vision to take Intuit to the next level.

Our strong leaders are the foundation for that growth.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A 50 percent improvement in our pro forma operating income.
Eighteen percent revenue growth. A pro forma operating margin
over 20 percent — up 440 basis points in just one year. A strong

balance sheet.

In fiscal 2002, Intuit delivered.

The secret to our success is simple. We choose our businesses wisely. We focus on
providing products and services tied to enduring customer needs — like running
businesses and paying taxes. We focus on businesses where we have proven and lasting
strengths. We uncover important customer needs that aren’t being met — or met well —
to drive new growth. And then we apply our best resources and execute with laser-like

focus to capitalize on those opportunities.

Of course, we’re building off a strong foundation. Few companies can come close to our
record of creating simple solutions for complex customer problems. But we’re performing

better because we’ve learned to do even more.

We’ve learned that by applying strategic and operational rigor, we actually accelerate our
innovation. More innovation means more great products. More great products mean
more loyal customers. And more customers mean better financial results. It’s how we’re
taking Intuit to the next level, and the level after that...
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CUSTOMER-DRIVEN INNOVATION

At Intuit, innovation is not about technology. It’s about making our
customers’ lives better. It’s about creating changes so profound that
people wouldn’t dream of going back to the old way.

Innovation is our obsession. Its pursuit is our vocation.

Pursuing innovation requires us to think and act from our customers’ perspective.
Working with them. Listening to them. Giving them what they actually want, not what
we think they should have. We study their actions, analyze their work patterns, scrutinize
their businesses and listen to their problems. We then strive to make their lives easier —
by using technology to deliver drop-dead simple solutions to their complex chores.

We call this customer-driven innovation.

Our history of innovation is legendary, with home-grown products like Quicken and
QuickBooks that provide the financial management foundation for millions of homes
and businesses. We revolutionized income tax filing and preparation, with our
Automated Tax Return that shortens and simplifies a once tedious process. And services
such as QuickBooks Online Billing make it easier for business people to run their
businesses. Today, our customers can send bills and receive payments electronically,

saving time and money by eliminating paperwork and snail-mail slowdowns.

But innovation alone isn’t enough. Over the past two years, we’ve applied operational
rigor to our internal processes, so we can deliver more innovative products in less time.
The end result? Customers benefit by having more choice, while the company gains unit

and revenue growth.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

With our success comes a responsibility to give back to our communities.
From California to Connecticut, from Canada to Texas, our We Care ¢
Give Back program demonstrates that we not only keep this sentiment

close to our hearts, but live it out in our actions.

Intuit supports its communities and our employees are active leaders.

Across North America, Intuit employees lead grassroots efforts to support social programs,
focusing on anti-poverty efforts involving education, health, food, and shelter. By matching
employees' financial contributions to these efforts, and giving them time off for volunteer

efforts, Intuit works to help solve societal problems.

Working with the National Coalition Against Domestic Violence, Intuit helped launch
the Financial Literacy Project for Battered Women, providing women with the financial

training they often need to obtain economic independence and break the cycle of abuse.

We responded to the world around us. Our Small Business Rebuilding program assisted
customers and others affected by the World Trade Center attacks. And we provided
corporate and individual contributions to support fighting the devastating forest fires in

Colorado and Arizona.

Behind all these efforts, of course, are our people. Employee volunteerism increased more
than 200 percent in fiscal 2002, with some 2,000 employees participating in a We Care & Give
Back program. Whether contributing their money — Intuit and its employees donated over
$1 million through our donation matching programs — or their time — employees
volunteered some 8,000 hours during the year — we are committed to the communities

where we live and work.

Such participation is proof that as Intuit grows, so do our contributions to our communities.
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HiGH PERFORMANCE ORGANIZATION

Growth starts with our employees. That’s why we emphasize
retaining them, developing them, motivating them and rewarding
them — in short, giving them the opportunity to excel.

By all measures, we’re succeeding.

We strive to be a great place to work by paying employees fairly, giving them honest
feedback on their progress, and empowering them to better serve our customers and
stockholders. In our own internal surveys, 83 percent of those responding tell us they’re

proud to work for Intuit. Externally, the results are equally impressive.

In 2002, Fortune Magazine named Intuit to its list of “100 Best Companies to Work for
in America,” an honor we hope to retain in 2003 and beyond. In addition, other surveys
selected Intuit as the number two employer in Canada, and the best employer in Reno,

Nevada and Fredericksburg, Virginia.

We accomplish this by adhering to our Employee Value Proposition, a commitment to
encouraging, developing, paying and recognizing employees and their performance.
To demonstrate this commitment, we’ve developed two new programs. The Scott Cook
Innovation Award recognizes those who develop and implement new ideas, and the
President’s Excellence in Leadership Award honors those who demonstrate the vision to

help take us to the next level.

At Intuit, high performance comes from highly motivated people. And it’s these people
who produce better products for our customers and drive increased performance for

our stockholders.
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To Our Stockholders

Intuit had another great year in fiscal 2002, delivering outstanding value for customers,
employees and stronger financial results. Revenue was up 18 percent and pro forma operating
income increased 50 percent. We're continuing to execute our strategy to penetrate large,
underserved market opportunities, deliver sustainable growth and drive Intuit to be the best
we can be.

We're pleased with our performance over the past few years. In addition to continuing our
tradition of successful, customer-driven innovation, Intuit is beginning to establish a solid
track record of delivering stronger revenue and profit growth. There are three key
fundamentals driving our success:

= We deliberately choose to be in businesses where we have, or we believe we can achieve,
the strategic and durable advantage to produce long-term profitable growth.

= Within these businesses we create new growth from pursuing large, underserved portions
of the market as we continue to accelerate customer-driven innovation.

= By applying strategic and operational rigor, we’re executing well so we capitalize on these
multiple, large opportunities.

As an added benefit, our business models drive significant profit leverage. There are several
dynamics at work:

= Volume — Our businesses have significant fixed costs and low variable costs. As a result,
selling more units means we drop significantly more profits to the bottom line.

= Value — As we expand the functionality of our products and services, we deliver products
with higher price points to reflect the greater value we deliver to customers.

= Mix — We're proving that as we move up-market with many of our product and service
offerings, our customers are responding well, which drives mix improvement and more
revenue and profits per customer.

This provides Intuit an excellent foundation for continued strong growth in fiscal 2003 and
beyond. We're convinced that the best is yet to come.
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2002 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Intuit posted outstanding results in fiscal 2002:

= On a GAAP basis, Intuit had net income of $140.2 million, or $0.64 per share, up from
a loss of $82.8 million, or $0.40 per share.

= On a pro forma basis, Intuit reported operating income of $282.4 million for the year,
up 50 percent from $188.9 million in fiscal 2001.

= Intuit’s pro forma operating margin of 20.8 percent was up 440 basis points from 16.4
percent in fiscal 2001.

= Revenue of $1.36 billion increased 18 percent from $1.15 billion in fiscal 2001.

= Intuit continues to have a strong balance sheet, with nearly $1.3 billion in cash and
short-term investments, or approximately $5.75 per share, at the end of fiscal 2002.

2002 BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
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Intuit has multiple engines to drive revenue and profit growth. Our two largest growth engines
— QuickBooks® and TurboTax®*— had outstanding years.

QuickBoOOKS

One of Intuit’s biggest growth engines is QuickBooks. Over the past year, we’ve transformed
QuickBooks from a one-size-fits-all product to a “Right for My Business” approach. This new
and dramatically expanded mindset opens up several under served markets and will create
opportunity for years to come.

= QuickBooks revenue was $250.9 million, up 16 percent from fiscal 2001, driven by strong
unit growth and a shift to higher-end products with higher price points. QuickBooks
introduced four new editions in fiscal 2002 — QuickBooks Accountants Edition,
QuickBooks Point of Sale, QuickBooks Premier and QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions —
in addition to new versions of the Basic and Pro products.

= QuickBooks 2002 units were up 26 percent over QuickBooks 2001 in the comparable
period, with our new, higher-end products accounting for 5.5 percent of the unit and 12
percent of the revenue mix.

®  The Intuit Developer Network had an outstanding first year, providing QuickBooks
customers better solutions. It’s great for customers who now can get what they want —
third-party applications they use to share data with QuickBooks. It’s great for developers,
enabling them to reach customers they might not be able to reach on their own. It’s also
great for Intuit as we generate more unit sales of QuickBooks, both from upgraders and
new users. More than 125 applications were introduced in fiscal 2002 as part of the
Intuit Developer Network.
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= Looking forward, you can expect us to introduce additional QuickBooks versions
tailored to meet the needs of specific industries — we think there’s opportunity for
anywhere between 5-15 QuickBooks “flavors.” We’ll also continue to improve our
accounting products as we continue to focus on businesses with up to 250 employees.

BEYOND ACCOUNTING OFFERINGS

A second significant growth opportunity is business offerings beyond accounting — products
and services that are horizontal in nature and bought by many types of businesses. Examples
include payroll, technical support, supplies and information technology asset and resource
management software. We intend to continue to drive new growth beyond accounting through
offerings we develop internally, through acquisitions and through partnerships.

Most of our current offerings have been QuickBooks focused. However, we also have an
opportunity to expand beyond the QuickBooks base and continue to grow this $335 million
business, which had a revenue increase of 15 percent in fiscal 2002.

There are multiple growth engines within our beyond accounting offerings. An important
one is payroll. With only about 25 percent of the 7.5 million employers with fewer than 250
employees using an outsourced solution today, this is a large, under-penetrated opportunity
for Intuit. Our acquisition of CBS Payroll in June 2002 strengthens our payroll offering,
providing us a full-service outsourced solution. We also continue to see strong results from
our QuickBooks-branded payroll products. Revenue of $108 million was up 39 percent and
we added more than 75,000 new customers in fiscal 2002.

With our strong and loyal QuickBooks base, we have significant opportunity to drive
sustained strong growth with our payroll engine — from providing do-it-yourself tax tables
all the way through a complete outsourced solution. That means as our customers grow,

we can grow with them.

A good example of making acquisitions to drive growth beyond accounting is our acquisition
in fiscal 2003 of Blue Ocean Software, Inc., which is a leading provider of software solutions
that help businesses manage their technology resources and assets, including PC inventory,
incident tracking, knowledge base resolution tools, software delivery and asset tracking. This
is another mission-critical task for companies once they have 20 or more PCs. Blue Ocean is
the leader in this segment, with a great product at an attractive price point. As we add the
QuickBooks brand and customer team to Blue Ocean’s strong foundation, we’ll have another
platform to drive profitable growth.

VERTICAL BUSINESS MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS

Another growth engine is vertical business management solutions — an engine that didn’t
exist for Intuit at the beginning of fiscal 2002. This is another significant opportunity for us,
and we’re just getting started. Vertical business management solutions represent more than
$4.5 billion in annual sales. It’s a highly fragmented segment, has no clear leader, and is
significantly under-penetrated.
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We’ve moved aggressively to capitalize on this opportunity, acquiring four companies in fiscal
2002. Our strategy is to buy leading companies, with solid customer bases and management
teams that, when combined with Intuit’s assets, will turbo-charge growth.

We acquired four companies that provide business management solutions for specific
industries:

= OMware, Inc., which serves the construction management industry.
= American Fundware, which focuses on public sector organizations.

= Management Reports, Inc., which provides solutions for commercial and residential
property management.

= Eclipse, Inc., which serves wholesale distributors of durable goods.

The early results from OMware, which we acquired last November, indicate we’re on the
right track. OMware revenue was up about 35 percent in fiscal 2002, exiting the year with
fourth-quarter growth of over 50 percent.

We're seeing positive early signs from the other recently closed vertical acquisitions. And we’ll
continue to make additional acquisitions to expand this growth engine in fiscal 2003. We
expect our portfolio of vertical businesses to include between five and ten companies, with

a combined annual revenue growth rate of more than 30 percent.

TurBOTAX

TurboTax is another of Intuit’s large growth engines. There are still 89 million taxpayers who
don’t currently use an Intuit product — either TurboTax or one of our professional tax
products — providing us with significant opportunity for future growth in the years ahead.
We’re working on a multi-year strategy to convert an increasing number of these millions of
taxpayers to TurboTax, which we’ll begin to roll out in the coming tax season.

TurboTax had a great fiscal 2002, thanks to continued product and service innovation and
expansion of our distribution channels:

= Consumer tax revenue of $351.1 million was up 29 percent in fiscal 2002, driven by
20 percent unit growth to reach 7.7 million units.

= Consumer tax operating income of $214.1 million was up 47 percent over fiscal 2001.

= Growth was particularly strong on the Web, with paid federal TurboTax units up 84
percent over fiscal 2001 to reach 2.2 million units.

= We successfully introduced a new high-end TurboTax product on both the desktop and
Web, which represented about 10 percent of the federal unit and 12 percent of the
revenue mix.
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= We enhanced the Instant Data Entry feature of our Automated Tax Return, making it
even easier for more people to do their taxes. TurboTax customers imported more than
one million tax documents — wages, interest, dividends and stock, mortgage interest and
mutual fund transactions — directly into their TurboTax return this year, more than
triple the number of imports from last tax season.

= We added new retailers like Safeway and Vons in selected locations, enabling us to reach
a broader customer base and grow the category.

PROFESSIONAL TAX
Intuit also had a great year in our professional tax business:

= Revenue of $225.7 million was up 20 percent over fiscal 2001, driven in large part by the
addition of new customers from the acquisition of a professional tax company in April
2001. This expanded customer base will help us drive steady organic growth in the
coming years.

= Professional tax operating income of $115.2 million was up 27 percent over fiscal 2001.

As we talk to the thousands of accountants who use our professional tax products, we’re
uncovering a lot of unmet needs we can serve. And we’re working to expand our offering to
pursue this large, under-penetrated opportunity and drive new growth.

CANADA

Intuit’s Canada business also had a great year, driven by strong growth in small business and
tax. Revenue of $44.6 million was up 29 percent from fiscal 2001.

Intuit continued to adjust its business portfolio to focus on driving sustainable growth.

We continue to make the tough decisions to exit businesses that don’t fit our strategy. In July
2002, we sold our Quicken Loans subsidiary. While Quicken Loans produced strong results
for Intuit over the past two fiscal years, the business is subject to interest rate fluctuations,
which means it didn’t meet our criteria of being in businesses with steady, reliable demand.

We took several steps to improve the performance of our Quicken-related businesses.

As we've discussed in the past, the personal finance software category is mature and we don’t
see significant opportunity to grow our core Quicken software business. But we love the
Quicken brand, products and our strong and loyal customer base. And we continue to drive
growth by offering Quicken-related services, including credit card and bill payments services.
Revenue from Quicken-related services of $36.5 million was up nearly 50 percent in fiscal 2002.

We’ve taken several steps to improve the performance of our Quicken businesses:

= We just added a great new service — Quicken Brokerage powered by SiebertsM — to offer
online and telephone-based brokerage services to Quicken and Quicken.com customers.

INTUIT ANNUAL

REPORT

20
02



20
02

For years, people have been using Quicken to manage their personal finances and make
more confident investment decisions based on their complete financial picture. Now they
can also execute their decisions, which delivers more value to customers and drives new
growth for Intuit.

= In response to lower revenue expectations, we’ve aggressively reduced costs in our
Quicken businesses — a total of approximately $45 million over the last two years.

Because these actions dramatically improve our opportunity to accelerate revenue growth and
improve profitability in Quicken in fiscal 2003 and beyond, we like where this business is today.

Two of our smaller businesses — Premier payroll and Japan — under-performed in fiscal
2002. We continue to focus on improving their results.

= Premier payroll, which is a private label, back-end service marketed and sold by banks,
had revenue of approximately $40 million. This represented less than 3 percent of Intuit’s
total revenue and was roughly flat with fiscal 2001. Because we don’t control customer
acquisition, we don’t like this business model. Although there’s not an easy, short-term
fix, we're actively working to improve our position. We won’t let this business adversely
impact our long-term performance.

= QOur Japanese business, which also represented about 3 percent of Intuit’s revenue, was
down approximately 12 percent in fiscal 2002 due to weak market conditions. Our
business actually gained share in fiscal 2002, and profits were up significantly as we
discontinued the QuickBooks Japan product. We’re working on several alternatives to
improve performance, but revenue growth appears to be a challenge in the short term.

We continue to drive initiatives to make Intuit a great place to work, build a high-performance
organization and be the employer of choice.

Intuit’s employees — at all levels of the organization — are critical to our ability to consistently
deliver great offerings to our customers and sustained performance improvements to investors.
Our strategy to attract and retain the best employees is to make Intuit a great place to work.

We continued to make solid progress in our employee-related initiatives in fiscal 2002, as
evidenced by recent recognition from external surveys:

>«

= We were selected as one of Fortune magazine’s “100 Best Companies to Work For” in
April 2002 — the first year we submitted an entry.

®  The Globe and Mail ranked Intuit Canada number two on its list of top Canadian employers.

= Readers of The Free Lance-Star and visitors to Fredericksburg.com voted Intuit’s
Fredericksburg contact center the “Best Place to Work” in their 2002 “Simply the Best” survey.

= Intuit Reno won top honors as Business of the Year at the inaugural luncheon of the
Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada and “Best Firm to Work For ”
honors from the Nevada Business Journal in June 2001.
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SUSTAINING INTUIT’'S GROWTH:
APPLYING STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL RIGOR TO CUSTOMER-DRIVEN INNOVATION

As Intuit enters our 20th year in fiscal 2003, we continue to have an unparalleled record of
successful customer-driven innovation, using technology to take complex customer problems
and develop solutions to make things easier. Our goal is to create changes so profound
customers wouldn’t dream of going back to the old ways — whether that’s keeping their
books or managing their payroll, doing their taxes or managing their personal finances. At
Intuit, innovation is not about technology — it’s about making our customers’ lives better.

But innovation alone isn’t enough. Over the past two years, we’ve challenged the conventional
paradigm that a company is either innovative or disciplined. We’re proving we can be both.
In fact, by applying strategic and operational rigor, we've been able to accelerate our
customer-driven innovation.

By being both disciplined and innovative, we continue to focus on improving execution and
delivering more — tightening development cycles to introduce more products faster. In fiscal
year 2002, for example, we introduced four brand new QuickBooks products with only a 10
percent increase in QuickBooks development cost. The new products, in turn, drive stronger
unit and revenue growth, which is great for investors. Plus we have more satisfied customers
because they can select from a broader range of offerings to best meet their needs.

Innovation is still our heartbeat, but strategic and operational rigor is our brain. This is the
formula that will enable us to sustain Intuit’s growth in 2003 and beyond. And we’re just
getting started. With our assets and strategies to drive growth, we’ve set an internal annual
goal to deliver 15-20 percent organic revenue growth. Because of the unit growth
opportunities to sell higher-end products and services, our scalable business models, and
management discipline and execution, we expect to deliver pro forma operating income and
EPS growth that’s 1.5 to 2 times revenue growth.

INTEGRITY WITHOUT COMPROMISE AND STRONG CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Fiscal 2002 was a great year for Intuit, in terms of revenue growth, profits and cash generation.
This year, as in the past, we’ve been candid about our successes, about where we’re
underperforming and what we’re doing to produce real and sustainable growth in the future.

Integrity without compromise is Intuit’s #1 operating value — and it has been since our
operating values were formalized in 1993. Bottom line, everyone at the company is
accountable for living up to the highest standards of business conduct and ethics. I won’t
tolerate anything less and neither will the rest of Intuit’s management team. Here’s a brief
overview of some of the steps we’ve already taken to ensure integrity in everything we do.
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In addition to having a culture of integrity, Intuit has always had robust internal processes
and strong corporate governance. That’s why both Greg Santora, our senior vice president
and chief financial officer, and I had no reservations voluntarily certifying all previously filed
SEC documents beginning with last year’s 10-K that was filed in October 2001. Certifying
past filings wasn’t mandated, but we went above and beyond the requirements because we’re
confident in how we run the business and the integrity of our numbers. We’ve also certified
our fiscal 2002 10-K before the deadline.

Strong corporate governance is not new to Intuit. Here’s a quick overview of our practices in
a few key areas:

= Board independence — Intuit has an experienced and engaged board of directors.
The majority of our board members are independent and all audit and compensation
committee members are independent. We have an active and probing audit committee.
And the audit committee meets formally in scheduled private sessions with our
independent auditors eight times a year.

= Auditor independence — Intuit has taken a number of steps to ensure continued
independence of our outside auditor. Our independent auditors report directly to the
audit committee and we limit the use of our audit firm for non-audit services. We also
have restrictions on hiring former employees of our audit firm.

Good governance is about doing the right things for the company and stockholders. This has
always been a priority at Intuit. With the rest of corporate America now focused on governance,
we’ve been able to benchmark our practices against recently published external corporate
governance standards. Our high percentile scores validated that we’ve been doing the right
things, which means it’s essentially business as usual at Intuit.

MEETING KEY OBJECTIVES THROUGH EMPLOYEE STOCK PROGRAMS

20
02

I’d also like to provide our perspective on how we manage employee stock programs. There
are several things we’re doing to balance two important objectives — building a high-
performance organization and minimizing stockholder dilution.

= We've reduced our annual grant rate from over 5 percent to under 3.5 percent of shares
outstanding in fiscal year 2002. This is a significant reduction, but we’re still focused on
rewarding the best performers at all levels of the company.

®  The Intuit shares we repurchased under our repurchase program in fiscal 2002 more
than offset the future dilution of those options when they’re exercised.
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= We use stock options as a tool to motivate and reward our best talent at all levels and
think that the broad distribution of options is an integral part of our success at driving
stronger performance. In fact, on average over the last 4 years, more than 75 percent of
our grants have gone to employees below the vice president level.

In terms of expensing stock options, we’ve been listening carefully to the dialogue. This is a
complicated issue, but our position is that we’re not going to voluntarily expense options.
We’ve been providing information on an annual basis about how expensing them would
impact our EPS. Starting with the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we’ll provide that information
quarterly to give investors even greater visibility going forward.

THE BEST IS YET TO COME

To sum up, it’s been a great year, thanks to everyone at Intuit for making it possible. We not
only delivered another solid year, we strengthened the foundation for an even brighter future.
We’re proud of what we’ve accomplished and believe the best is yet to come.

¥

Steve Bennett
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

This information contains certain forward-looking statements, including statements about our future results,
that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated. For detailed
information about some of the important factors that could affect Intuit’s results, please see the discussion

beginning on page 45 of the enclosed Form 10-K.
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PART I
ITEM 1
BUSINESS

CORPORATE BACKGROUND

Intuit began operations in March 1983 and was incorporated in California in March 1984. In March 1993, we
reincorporated in Delaware and completed our initial public offering. Our principal executive offices are
located at 2535 Garcia Avenue, Mountain View, California, 94043, and our telephone number is

(650) 944-6000. When we refer to “we,” “our” or “Intuit” in this Form 10-K, we mean the current Delaware
corporation (Intuit Inc.) and its California predecessor, as well as all of our consolidated subsidiaries.

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Throughout this Report, there are forward-looking statements that are based upon our current expectations,
estimates and projections about our business and our industry, and that reflect our beliefs and assumptions
based upon information available to us at the date of this Report. In some cases, you can identify these
statements by words such as “may,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,”
“‘estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “‘continue,” and other similar terms. These forward-looking statements
include, among other things, projections of our future financial performance, our anticipated growth, our
strategies and trends we anticipate in our businesses and the markets in which we operate and the competitive
nature and anticipated growth of those markets.
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We caution investors that forward-looking statements are only predictions, based upon our current
expectations about future events. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance
and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. Our actual results,
performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements. Some of the important factors that could cause our results to differ are discussed in Item 7,
““Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could
Affect Future Results.” We encourage you to read that section carefully. You should carefully consider those
risks, in addition to the other information in this Report and in our other filings with the SEC, before deciding
to invest in our stock or to maintain or change your investment. We caution investors not to rely on these
forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s analysis only as of the date of this Report. We
undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statement for any reason.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Intuit’s Mission: Revolutionizing Financial and Business Management

Our mission is to revolutionize how people manage their financial lives, and how small businesses and
accounting professionals manage their businesses. Our goal is to create changes so profound customers
wouldn’t dream of going back to their old ways of keeping their books, doing their taxes or managing their
personal finances. Intuit is a leading provider of small business, tax preparation and personal finance software
products and services that simplify complex financial tasks for small businesses, consumers and accounting
professionals. Our principal products and services include: small business accounting and business
management solutions, including our QuickBooks® line of products and services as well as our Intuit® line of
industry-specific business management solutions; TurboTax® consumer tax products and services; ProSeries®
and Lacerte® professional tax products and services; and Quicken® personal finance products and services.
Details about our products and services are provided in “Products and Services,” below.



Company Growth Strategy

Intuit has a tradition of successful customer-driven innovation, using technology to address complex customer
problems and develop solutions to make things easier. By applying strategic and operational rigor to this
foundation, we believe we can accelerate our customer-driven innovation, and deliver stronger revenue and
profit growth.

There are three key fundamentals that support our growth strategy:

*  We deliberately choose to be in businesses where we have, or we believe we can achieve, the strategic
and durable advantage to produce long-term profitable growth.

* Within these businesses, we create new growth by identifying large, underserved portions of the
market, and delivering customer-driven, innovative solutions to address these unmet customer needs.

* By applying strategic and operational rigor, we can execute well to capitalize on these multiple, large
growth opportunities.

By being both disciplined and innovative, we can improve execution and deliver more — for example, by
tightening development cycles, we can introduce more products faster. The new products drive stronger
growth and give customers a broader range of offerings to best meet their needs.

“Right for Me”’ Product Strategy

We strive to deliver a range of products and services that can provide a compelling, “Right for Me” customer
proposition for a wide range of customers with differing needs. Specifically, in September 2001, we announced
our “Right for My Business” strategy to better address the small business management market opportunity and
to expand our target customer segment to include larger small businesses with up to 250 employees. Our goal
is to offer the right solution for each small business in our targeted markets. We have two primary methods of
providing products and services that address the varying needs of different types of small businesses: solutions
that are expansions of, or that integrate with, our QuickBooks line of small business products; and standalone
business management solutions that operate independently of our current QuickBooks products. Here are the
key elements of our Right for My Business strategy:

*  We've been expanding our QuickBooks product line to offer industry-specific versions of QuickBooks —
such as QuickBooks Premier: Accountant Edition for accountants, and QuickBooks Point of Sale
products for retail businesses.

*  We're also offering versions of QuickBooks designed for bigger, more complex businesses — including
QuickBooks Premier for small businesses needing more advanced accounting functionality, and
QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions Business Management Software for businesses with up to
250 employees.

*  We are continuously expanding the Intuit Developer Network. This initiative encourages third-party
software developers to develop applications that exchange data with QuickBooks by giving them
limited access to application programming interfaces for certain of our QuickBooks products. At the
end of fiscal 2002, there were about 120 applications available for QuickBooks. These applications
allow our QuickBooks customers to derive even more value from their QuickBooks software.

e We offer business solutions that go beyond accounting software to address a wider range of business
management challenges that small businesses face. For example, we offer a broad range of payroll
services and financial supplies, as well as software solutions that help businesses manage their
information technology resources and assets.



*  We provide industry-specific business management solutions to meet the specialized requirements of
small businesses in selected vertical industries, including the construction industry; nonprofit
organizations, universities and government agencies; commercial and residential property managers;
and wholesale durable goods distributors.

Our Right for Me strategy is also reshaping our tax and personal finance businesses. In fiscal 2002, we took the
first steps in a multi-year implementation of our Right for Me strategy in these areas, when we launched a
higher-end consumer tax product, TurboTax Premier, to address the unique needs of investors and rental
property owners. The implementation of this strategy is continuing in fiscal 2003, starting with the August
2002 launch of Quicken Premier, which offers more robust investment and tax planning tools. In September
2002, we announced plans to provide three new versions of TurboTax in fiscal 2003 — TurboTax Retirement
Planning Edition, TurboTax Investor Edition, and TurboTax en Espafiol.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Intuit offers products and services in seven business segments: Small Business, Employer Services, Consumer
Tax, Professional Accounting Solutions, Personal Finance, Global Business and Small Business Verticals and
Other. Our primary products and services are described below. In fiscal 2002 we combined the operations of
our Small Business and Personal Finance divisions to leverage their business and operational synergies, but we
continue to view the results of the businesses separately for reporting purposes. For financial information
about these businesses, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and Note 14 of the financial statements. For a description of principal risks associated with these
businesses, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Risks that Could Affect Future Results.” We sold our Quicken Loans mortgage business in July 2002. We
accounted for Quicken Loans as a discontinued operation and, as a result, it is not discussed below. See Note
11 of the financial statements.

Small Business

QuickBooks Software and Services. Our QuickBooks product line brings extensive bookkeeping capabilities, as
well as business management tools, to small business users in an easy-to-use design that does not require
customers to be familiar with debit/credit accounting. We offer a range of products to suit the needs of
different types of small businesses, including QuickBooks Basic, which provides accounting functionality
suitable for smaller, less complex businesses; QuickBooks Pro, which supports up to five multiple simultaneous
users; QuickBooks Premier, for small businesses needing more advanced accounting functionality; QuickBooks
Premier: Accountant Edition, customized for accounting professionals with multiple QuickBooks clients;
QuickBooks Point of Sale, which is designed for retail businesses; and QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions Business
Management Software, for businesses with up to 250 employees. As part of our Right for My Business strategy,
we expect to launch a number of additional versions of QuickBooks during fiscal 2003 and beyond. Our more
recent QuickBooks products offer a variety of optional business management services for an additional fee,
including QuickBooks Online Billing, which allows small businesses to bill and receive customer payments
electronically; QuickBooks Merchant Account Service, which enables small businesses to accept credit card
payments from their customers; and QuickBooks Credit Check Services, which gives small businesses access to
credit reports designed specifically for small businesses. We also offer a variety of technical support plans to
our QuickBooks customers through QuickBooks Service Solutions. Customers have a choice of different
support plans at different prices depending on the response time they require.

Financial Supplies. We offer a range of financial supplies, such as paper checks, envelopes, invoices, deposit
slips, stationery, business cards and holiday greeting cards, designed for small businesses and individuals. We
also offer tax forms, tax return presentation folders and other similar items for professional tax preparers. Our



customers can personalize many products to incorporate their logos and use a variety of color, font and
design options.

Information Technology Management Solutions. In September 2002 we completed the acquisition of Blue Ocean
Software, Inc., a leading provider of software solutions that help businesses manage their information
technology resources and assets. Functionality includes PC inventory management, incident tracking,
knowledge base resolution tools, software delivery and asset tracking. The acquisition is a significant step in
our effort to expand our business solutions beyond accounting.

Employer Services

Our Employer Services business provides solutions to help small business owners better manage key tasks
relating to their employees. Our current Employer Services offerings consist primarily of payroll solutions, and
we currently provide three different payroll offerings. Our QuickBooks Do-It-Yourself Payroll (formerly Basic
Payroll) consists of current payroll tax tables that are provided on a subscription basis to small businesses that
need current tables to prepare their own payrolls. Our QuickBooks Assisted Payroll Service (formerly Deluxe
Payroll) is an online payroll service that handles the back-end aspects of payroll processing, including tax
payments and filings. It is integrated with QuickBooks, which minimizes customer data entry. Our Intuit
Payroll Services — Complete Payroll provides traditional, full service payroll processing, tax payment and check
delivery services. It encompasses our former Premier Payroll Service, as well as CBS Payroll, which we acquired
in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. The acquisition of CBS Payroll significantly enhances our ability to expand
and acquire customers for our full-service payroll offering. In September 2002, we announced plans to provide
integration between our Complete Payroll service and QuickBooks, which we believe will offer a more
attractive full-service payroll solution for QuickBooks customers.

Consumer Tax

Desktop Consumer Tax Software. Our TurboTax desktop products are designed to enable individuals and small
business owners to prepare their own federal and state personal and business income tax returns easily, quickly
and accurately. Our consumer tax products are designed to be easy to use, yet sophisticated enough for
complicated tax returns. We offer basic and deluxe versions of the product, and in fiscal 2002, we introduced
TurboTax Premier, which addresses the unique tax needs of investors and rental property owners. Our
innovative Instant Data Entry feature enables taxpayers to import data directly into their tax returns from
Form W-2s (wages), Form 1098s (mortgage interest) and Form 1099s (interest, dividends and stock
transactions) from more than 45 participating financial institutions and payroll service companies. This feature
saves significant time and increases accuracy.

Web-Based Consumer Tax Preparation and Electronic Filing Services. TurboTax for the Web is an interactive tax
preparation service that enables individual taxpayers to prepare their federal and state income tax returns
entirely online. This service allows us to reach a different segment of consumer tax customers than those who
use our desktop products; a significant number of TurboTax for the Web customers in fiscal 2000 through
fiscal 2002 had not used tax preparation software before. We offer basic, deluxe and premium versions of the
service that have functionality similar to that of our desktop products. Through our electronic filing center,
customers of our desktop and Web-based tax preparation software can electronically file their federal tax
returns, as well as state returns in all states that support electronic filing. During fiscal 2002, we were the
exclusive provider of online tax preparation services on the Yahoo!® Finance Tax Center, and our online tax
services were also offered through the websites of more than 1,100 financial institutions, electronic retailers
and other merchants.



Under the Intuit Tax Freedom Project, a philanthropic public service initiative of the Intuit Financial Freedom
Foundation, we provide online tax preparation and electronic filing services at no charge to lower-income
federal and state tax filers.

Professional Accounting Solutions

Our ProSeries and Lacerte tax preparation products are designed for tax professionals who prepare tax returns
for their individual and business clients. Customers can elect to license professional tax products for a flat fee
for unlimited annual use or to use them on a “pay-per-return” basis. ProSeries and Lacerte customers can file
their customers’ tax returns through our electronic filing services. Our other professional accounting solutions
include EasyACCT® Professional Accounting Series products, which allow accountants to create financial
statements and prepare tax forms (such as W-2s and 940s) for their clients; Lacerte Tax Planner, which helps
tax professionals provide tax planning services to their clients; and IntuitAdvisor®™, a collection of
subscription-based membership and communication programs, product certifications, an informational Web
site and Web-based tools to help tax accounting and financial professionals manage and grow their businesses
more effectively.

Personal Finance

Quicken Software. Our Quicken line of desktop software products helps users organize, understand and
manage their personal finances. Quicken allows customers to reconcile bank accounts, record credit card and
other transactions, write checks, and track investments, mortgages and other assets and liabilities. Many
customers use Quicken products to manage their home-based businesses. We offer basic and deluxe versions of
the product, and in August 2002, we introduced our Quicken Premier product, which offers more robust
investment and tax planning tools.

Quicken.com and Other Online Services. 'We provide a range of online services that help consumers manage
their financial lives. Quicken.com™ is our primary personal finance Web site. It enables customers to automate
financial management tasks and make better financial decisions by giving them software tools, resources and
objective information about a variety of personal finance topics, including investing, mortgages, insurance,
taxes, banking and retirement, in a single online destination. In September 2002, we launched Quicken
Brokerage powered by Siebert, an online and telephone-based securities brokerage service for Quicken and
Quicken.com customers made available through an exclusive strategic alliance with Siebert Financial Corp., the
holding company for Muriel Siebert & Co. Inc. Other online services we offer include bill payment and online
banking services thorough the Quicken desktop product, as well as a Quicken credit card. Quicken and/or
Quicken.com customers can also link directly to third-party providers of other services, such as insurance and
mortgages. We do not currently charge customers a fee to access most features on Quicken.com, but we
receive revenue from financial institutions and other companies that advertise and/or sell their products or
services through links from Quicken.com.

Global Business

We have business operations in Canada and Japan, and we also serve markets across Europe, Southeast Asia
and other selected locations. We have established third-party relationships with local companies in certain
countries to help us better address specific markets. In all international markets except Canada and Europe, we
focus primarily on small business products.

Canada and United Kingdom. In Canada, we offer localized versions of QuickBooks and Quicken; the MYOB
accounting product line, which we acquired during fiscal 2002; QuickTax™ consumer tax products; ProFile™
Financial Application Suite professional tax products; and Quicken.ca®™, a personal finance Web site with



content similar to Quicken.com. In the United Kingdom, we also offer localized versions of QuickBooks and
Quicken, as well as the TaxCalc™ consumer tax return product, which we acquired in fiscal 2002.

Japan. The principal product we offer in Japan, is Yayoi®, a small business accounting product that addresses
the mid-sized companies segment of the small business market in Japan. Sales of Yayoi products also generate
recurring revenue from ongoing support contracts that are sold with the software. During fiscal 2002, we
discontinued our Japanese version of QuickBooks.

Other Locations. We offer localized versions of QuickBooks and Quicken products in selected European
markets through local distributors and agents. We also offer localized versions of QuickBooks and Quicken
products in Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong, and Singapore through a development, marketing and
distribution arrangement with Australia-based Reckon Limited.

Small Business Verticals and Other

As part of our Right For My Business strategy, we have acquired several companies that enable us to provide
accounting and business management solutions to customers in selected industries, which we refer to as
“verticals.” These new businesses, which we report as a single business segment, include the following: Intuit
Construction Business Solutions (formerly OMware, Inc.), which provides business management solutions for
the construction industry; Intuit Public Sector Solutions (formerly American Fundware), which offers
accounting and business management software solutions for nonprofit organizations, universities and
government agencies; Intuit MRI Real Estate Solutions (formerly Management Reports, Inc.), which provides
business management software solutions for commercial and residential property managers; and Intuit Eclipse
Distribution Management Solutions (formerly Eclipse, Inc.), which offers business management software for
the wholesale durable goods industry.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

Historically, our desktop software products have tended to have a fairly predictable, structured development
cycle of about a year, with annual releases. For our small business desktop products, we now supplement
annual releases of our core QuickBooks products with ongoing releases of products that address the specialized
requirements of selected vertical industries, as well as products for larger or more complex businesses. The
development cycles for our service offerings are less predictable and are generally much shorter than for our
desktop products. The development of tax preparation software presents a unique challenge because of the
demanding development cycle required to incorporate annual tax law and tax form changes each year. For a
description of other risks and challenges we face relating to our product development, see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could Affect

Future Results.”

During the past few years, we have devoted significant resources to developing new products and services,
including QuickBooks Premier, QuickBooks Premier: Accountant Edition, QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions
Business Management Software, the Intuit Developer Network and the Instant Data Entry feature of our
TurboTax products and services. We supplement our internal development efforts by acquiring strategically
important products and technology from third parties, or establishing other relationships that enable us to
expand our business more rapidly. For example, during fiscal 2002, we acquired four companies that provide
small business management products in vertical industries, we worked closely with a third party technology
provider to develop our QuickBooks Point of Sale software, and we formed an exclusive strategic alliance with
Siebert Financial Corp. to offer brokerage services to consumers.

We also devote resources to improving our existing products and services. For our desktop software products,
our recent development efforts have focused on creating an easier end-to-end customer experience, as well as



adding new features. We also incorporate technology in our products and services to address customer
concerns about privacy and security while minimizing the impact on performance and ease of use. In
addition, we have focused in recent years on developing technology that helps reduce unlicensed use of some
of our tax products. Our fiscal 2002 professional tax products, as well as consumer tax products in Canada,
contained product activation technology that restricted sharing of the products. In September 2002, we
announced that federal tax versions of TurboTax desktop products for Windows for the 2002 tax season will
include product activation technology that will prevent a customer from using a single copy of TurboTax to
print or e-file a tax return from more than one personal computer.

During the past few years, we have made a number of improvements to our product development process. We
now team technical support and product development personnel, so that we can anticipate feature usability
and support issues early in the development process. By enhancing the design process for our QuickBooks
2002 products, we improved product quality and significantly lowered our customer service and technical
support call volume. We have made other changes that have allowed us to shorten the development cycle,
which is enabling us to launch new products more quickly.

Our research and development expenses were $165.9 million in fiscal 2000, $203.7 million in fiscal 2001 and
$203.5 million in fiscal 2002. During fiscal 2002, we significantly increased research and development
spending in some of our highest-growth businesses — small business, consumer tax and professional
accounting solutions — but these increases were offset by significant decreases in spending in less strategic
areas and discontinued businesses. Over the next few years, we expect that our research and development
efforts will be focused on developing new products and services to address customer needs in our more
broadly defined market segments and adding complementary products and services to drive additional,
recurring revenue from our core products, such as additional products and services for our small business
customers. We strive to maintain a balance between relatively low-risk investments that address existing
customer needs, and investments in more innovative but higher-risk projects with potentially greater returns.

MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

Markets

Recently, we have expanded both the markets that we serve, as well as the products and services that we offer
in our target markets. Historically, our target markets were individuals and small businesses with less than 20
employees. We continue to serve those markets with products and services such as QuickBooks, TurboTax and
Quicken. In addition to these markets, we are now targeting small businesses with up to 250 employees. We
are addressing this new customer segment with a number of new products and services under the umbrella of
our Right for My Business strategy. We are introducing industry-specific solutions to meet the specialized
requirements of small businesses in selected vertical industries by developing industry-specific version of
QuickBooks, and acquiring companies that offer business management solutions to small businesses in selected
vertical markets. In addition, we recently introduced new versions of QuickBooks for companies that, due to
their larger size or complexity, have more demanding accounting needs. We have also introduced business
solutions that go beyond accounting software to address a wider range of business management challenges
that small businesses face. We expect to continue expanding in these directions over the next several years. See
“Business Overview — “Right for Me” Product Strategy”” and ‘““Products and Services,” above, for more details
about our product and service offerings.

Many of the markets in which we compete are characterized by rapidly changing customer demands,
continuous technological changes and improvements, shifting industry standards and frequent new product
introductions by competitors. Market and industry changes can quickly render existing products and services
obsolete, so our success depends on our ability to respond rapidly to these changes with new or enhanced



products and services, new business models, alternative distribution methods, different competitive strategies
and other changes to the way we do business.

Distribution Channels

Over the past year we have been expanding our distribution channels to accommodate the recent expansion
of both the markets we serve and the range of products and services we offer.

Direct Sales Channel. For our core desktop software products (QuickBooks, TurboTax and Quicken), we use
various direct sales campaigns, including mail and telephone solicitations, direct-response newspaper and
magazine advertising, and television and radio advertising, to generate software orders, stimulate retail demand
and generally maintain and increase consumer awareness of our products. Direct marketing campaigns are one
of the most effective ways to encourage existing customers to purchase additional products and services,
including software upgrades. Direct sales made up a significant portion of our total desktop software revenue
in fiscal 2002, as they often generate significantly higher revenue per unit than retail sales, particularly for our
small business and tax products.

Many of our direct customers choose to order and/or take delivery of products electronically through our Web
sites. Electronic ordering and delivery are generally more convenient for customers and more cost-efficient for
Intuit. Electronic delivery has been a particularly effective method of distribution for our TurboTax state tax
preparation products and for product updates for our professional tax products. During fiscal 2002, products
ordered and/or delivered electronically accounted for a growing percentage of our direct sales revenue for our
core desktop software, and we expect this trend to continue in fiscal 2003.

Our direct sales efforts have historically focused on generating sales of relatively inexpensive, off-the-shelf
products to existing customers. Our service offerings, as well as our more sophisticated, higher-priced software
products, require a more robust approach to direct sales than desktop software. As we have expanded our
services offerings and introduced more high-end software products and business management solutions over
the past year, we have been enhancing our direct sales capabilities to support revenue growth in these new
areas, as well as in our core desktop software. We are investing in technology to consolidate and improve our
management of customer contact data and order management tools across business divisions. Process
excellence initiatives in fiscal 2002 have resulted in improvements in lead generation and order management,
as well as more consultative selling by our customer service personnel. In addition, we have expanded our
direct sales staff and broadened its role to include more extensive and personalized contact with existing and
potential customers. In particular, some of the new products and services we now offer as a result of recent
acquisitions are sold primarily through direct field sales organizations. As a result of all of these efforts, we
expect that direct sales will become an increasingly important source of revenue over the next few years.

Retail Distribution Channel. We market our QuickBooks, TurboTax and Quicken desktop software in North
America primarily through traditional retail software outlets, computer superstores, office supply superstores,
warehouse clubs and general mass merchandisers. In international markets, we also rely on distributors, value-
added resellers and other third parties, who sell products into the retail channel. In fiscal 2002 we began
distributing our TurboTax products through Safeway Inc., one of the largest food and drug retailers in North
America. This enabled us to reach a significant number of new customers. We expect to continue expanding
our retail distribution locations to reach more new customers in fiscal 2003.

We continue to benefit from strong relationships with a number of major retailers, which allows us to
minimize our dependency on any specific retailer. We are reducing our dependency on distributors as we ship
more of our products directly to individual retail locations. See “Manufacturing and Distribution.” However,
the recent slowdown in consumer demand for software has resulted in software becoming a less important
category for retailers. As a result of this trend, we have faced challenges in ensuring good product placement
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within retail stores. See “Competition” and ‘“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

We ship more products to our retailers than we expect them to sell in order to reduce the risk that they will
run out of products. This is particularly true for our tax products. As a result, we often experience significant
levels of product returns from the retail channel after the end of the tax season — during the fourth quarter as
well as the first quarter of the following fiscal year. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

As we execute on our Right for My Business strategy, we are starting to offer more complex, higher-priced
software products than our traditional retail software products. It is not yet clear whether the retail channel
will be an effective distribution channel for some of these higher-end offerings.

OEM Channel. We have existing relationships with a number of personal computer “original equipment
manufacturers,” or OEMs, including Dell Computer Corporation, Apple Computer Inc. and Hewlett-Packard,
that enable us to generate sales of our core desktop software products in two ways. First, certain OEMs “pre-
bundle” new-user versions of certain desktop software products on the computer systems that the OEMs sell to
their customers. Although these pre-bundled OEM sales sometimes generate little revenue or initial profit for
Intuit (due to the low prices that the OEMs may pay for the products and slow sales in their own businesses),
they are a good source of new customers and future revenues. The second source of revenue from the OEM
channel is “after-market” programs, in which customers who are purchasing computers can select and
purchase software products at the same time.

Third-Party “Value-Added” Distribution Arrangements. As we execute on our Right for My Business strategy, we
are supplementing our direct sales capabilities and our retail distribution relationships with selected third-party
distribution arrangements. We believe these relationships will enhance the growth opportunities for our
expanded and higher-end product and service offerings by allowing us to benefit from the value-added
marketing and sales expertise of these third parties. We currently have arrangements with third parties who
have specialized expertise in marketing, selling and providing post-sale implementation services for the vertical
business management solutions offered by our Construction Business Solutions and Public Sector Solutions
businesses, which we acquired during fiscal 2002. During fiscal 2003 and beyond, we expect to expand our
network of third-party relationships, to help increase revenue for some of our existing higher-end product and
service offerings, as well as for additional products and service we anticipate offering as we execute our Right
for My Business strategy.

COMPETITION

Overview

We face intense competition in almost all of our business areas, both domestically and globally. Some of our
existing competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. As we
implement our Right For My Business strategy we face increased competitive threats from larger companies in
bigger markets than we have historically faced. In addition, the competitive landscape can shift rapidly as new
companies enter markets in which we compete. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

For our TurboTax, Quicken and lower-end QuickBooks desktop software, we believe the most important
competitive factors are product features, ease of use, size of the installed customer base, brand name
recognition, price, product and support quality and access to distribution channels. We believe we compete
effectively on most of these factors, as our three principal desktop software products are the leading products
in the retail sales channel for their respective categories. For most of our products and services other than
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desktop software, we believe the most important competitive factors are features and ease of use, brand name
recognition, speed in getting new products and services to market, and the ability to distribute them
effectively (through online methods or through retailers, third party resellers and direct distribution). For our
service offerings, service reliability and scalability of operations are also important factors. We believe we
compete effectively on these factors.

Our most obvious competition comes from other companies that offer technology solutions similar to ours.
These competitors are described below. However, for many of our products and services, the primary
competitive alternatives for customers are manual tools and processes, or general purpose software. A
significant portion of our new customers are people who have used pencil and paper or software such as word
processors and spreadsheets, rather than competitors’ software and services, to perform financial tasks. For
example: many taxpayers prepared their tax returns manually; a large number of small businesses used
spreadsheets to keep their book and they processed their payroll using spreadsheets and manually-written
checks; and most of our personal finance customers tracked their finances with spreadsheets, manually or not
at all before purchasing Quicken.

Small Business, Employer Services and Small Business Verticals

Competitors for our small business accounting and business management offerings include companies such as
Peachtree Software (which is owned by The Sage Group PLC), MYOB Group, Microsoft Corp. and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ CPA2Biz subsidiary. Microsoft recently acquired a provider
of integrated software solutions for small and medium-sized businesses, and Microsoft Great Plains recently
acquired QuickSell retail point-of-sale applications. Another factor in the competitive environment is the
increasing number of alliances between professional tax preparers and providers of small business software and
services that aim to capitalize on accountant-facilitated sales of small business products and services to their
clients. In addition to established competitors, other potential competitors have expressed significant interest
in providing accounting and other products and services to small businesses. As we expand the depth and
breadth of our small business offerings, we face additional competition from others who are already offering
industry-specific small business solutions, and business management tools and services for larger

small businesses.

Our financial supplies business competes with a number of business forms companies, including New England
Business Service and Deluxe Business Systems, as well as with printing services offered by franchises such as
Kinko’s and large office supply retailers such as Office Depot and Staples. Other competitors include direct
mail check printers, banks and a number of smaller-scale Internet-based printing companies. In addition, our
QuickBooks products include some features (such as customizable invoicing) that compete with our supplies
products. Online bill payment services and online payroll services with direct deposit capabilities also offer
competitive alternatives to printed checks. Significant competitive factors for the supplies business include
ordering convenience, methods of reaching customers, product quality, speed of delivery and price. We believe
our convenient access to our large QuickBooks and Quicken customer bases is a significant competitive
advantage for us.

Our payroll services compete directly with traditional payroll service providers as well as Web-based service
providers. Significant competitive factors include distribution channels, a highly fragmented market including
financial institutions that are developing or promoting their own payroll services, and offerings by non-
traditional competitors such as Microsoft’s bCentral. We face direct competition in our Intuit Payroll

Services — Complete Payroll business from traditional payroll services offered by a number of companies,
including Paychex and ADP. Our QuickBooks Assisted Payroll service competes directly with companies
offering Web-based payroll services, and indirectly with companies offering other payroll solutions. Peachtree
and others also offer tax table subscription services that compete directly with our QuickBooks Do-it-Yourself
Payroll offering.
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Consumer Tax

Competition in the consumer tax preparation market is intense. Our major domestic competitor for both
desktop and Web-based consumer tax software continues to be H&R Block, the makers of TaxCut software.
However, Microsoft offered a competitive product for one season (our fiscal 2000), and new competitors may
enter these markets in the future. We also compete for customers with professional tax preparers, particularly
those with franchise operations. Web-based tax preparation is still a relatively new service, and we expect the
competitive landscape to evolve as more competitors enter the market and others consolidate. We also face
potential competitive challenges from electronic tax preparation and filing services offered by state
governments. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

Professional Accounting Solutions

The professional tax preparation software marketplace has many competitors. Our largest competitors in the
U.S. are CCH Incorporated, with its ProSystem fx product line, and RIA, with its Creative Solutions and
GoSystem offerings. In the past, the professional tax market has been highly fragmented, but it has
experienced some consolidation in recent years.

Personal Finance

In desktop personal finance software, the Microsoft Money product is our primary domestic competition. We
also face competition from Web-based personal finance tracking and management tools that are available at
no cost to consumers. There are many competitors for our other personal finance products and services. For
example, our Quicken.com site competes for traffic, and advertising and sponsorship sales, with online
financial publishers, the financial areas on numerous online services such as Yahoo! and financially-oriented
Web sites such as Microsoft’s Money Central. Our online brokerage offering through Siebert Financial Corp.
competes with numerous other brokerage services. However, we believe that the ability of Quicken customers
to integrate brokerage transaction data into their Quicken records gives us a competitive advantage over other
brokerage offerings. Some portals and financial institutions also provide service offerings such as Web-based
bill presentment and payment that compete with services we offer. We also face competition from financial
institutions that offer their own financial software and Web sites.

Global Business

In Canada, we face competition from a number of companies in the small business arena, including Computer
Associates International, Inc. The primary competitor in Canada for our consumer tax business is Taxamatic,
Inc., the makers of TAXWIZ, and the primary competitor for our professional tax business is CCH Canadian
Limited. In Japan, our primary competitors in the small business accounting arena are OBC, PCA and
Sorimachi. In Europe, we face competition from The Sage Group PLC (based in the United Kingdom),
Bhuldata (Wiso), Microsoft and Microsoft Great Plains in the small business market, as well as competition
from Web-based accounting products. Our primary global competitor in the personal finance arena

is Microsoft.

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT

We provide customer service and technical support by telephone, online chat, fax, e-mail, and our customer
service and technical support Web sites. We have full-time customer service and technical support staffs, which
we occasionally supplement with seasonal employees and outsourcing during periods of peak call volumes,
such as during the tax return filing season, or following a major product launch.
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During the past few years, we have focused on developing support capabilities that can supplement, or in
some situations replace, telephone service and support. For example, customers can use our Web sites to find
answers to commonly asked questions, check on the status of a product order and receive bug fixes
electronically. Alternative service and support methods are less expensive for us and are often more efficient
and effective for customers as well. We have completed a number of Six Sigma/Process Excellence projects in
our customer service and technical support operations to improve our call capacity forecasting, develop more
flexible approaches to staffing and reduce support call volumes and handling times. We may also consider
outsourcing a greater portion of our customer service and technical support operations. We believe these
projects are critical to our ongoing efforts to provide better service to customers at the same or lower cost.

We generally charge customers for technical support, but we do not charge for product defect issues or self-
help support through our technical support Web sites. Support alternatives and fees vary widely by product,
from self-help to chat, to phone support, to onsite installation. Customers generally have a choice of different
support alternatives at different prices depending on the response time they require.

Despite our efforts to adequately staff and equip our customer service and technical support operations, we
cannot always respond promptly to customer requests for assistance. When we experience customer service
and support problems, they can adversely affect customer relationships and our financial results. Our Right For
My Business strategy presents additional technical support challenges as we increase the number and
complexity of the products we offer. In addition, we expect most of our growth over the next several years to
come from our small business and tax products, which typically require more live technical support than
personal finance products. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

MANUFACTURING AND DISTRIBUTION

Desktop Software

The major steps involved in manufacturing desktop software are duplicating CDs and floppy disks, printing
boxes and related materials, and assembling and shipping the final products. We have a manufacturing
agreement with Modus Media International, Inc. under which Modus provides substantially all outsourced
manufacturing related to our retail and direct launches of QuickBooks, TurboTax and Quicken, as well as for
day-to-day retail order fulfillment after product launches. Modus has operations in multiple locations to
provide redundancy. We recently entered into an agreement with Sony Disc Manufacturing under which Sony
provides some of the components Modus uses to manufacture our products. We expect this arrangement will
result in lower manufacturing costs and shorter manufacturing cycle times. We also have an in-house facility
that handles the manufacturing and shipping for most direct sales orders.

We have multiple sources for all of our raw materials and availability has not been a problem for us in the
past. Over the past few years we have taken steps to streamline our packaging and reduce our inventory and
scrap costs, to generate greater profitability in our core desktop software businesses.

Our retail product launches have become operationally more complex over the past few years. We have
evolved from shipping to a few hundred distribution centers (with distributors delivering products to
individual retail locations) to a ‘“direct to storefront” model in which we ship products directly to almost
10,000 individual retail locations. This allows us to be more responsive to the needs of our retail accounts. We
have an agreement with Ingram Micro Logistics under which Ingram handles all logistics, fulfillment and
similar functions for our retail sales. During the past year we have focused on better operational rigor at
various points in our supply chain. As a result, we have significantly increased our on-time shipments, and
significantly reduced our aggregate channel inventory levels. We have also reduced our dependency on
distributors or on any individual retail account. One distributor, Ingram Micro Inc., accounted for 10% of total
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net revenue in fiscal 2000. No retailer accounted for 10% or more of our total net revenue during the past
three fiscal years, and no distributor met this threshold in fiscal 2001 or 2002.

We believe that using these three vendors (Modus Media, Sony and Ingram Micro Logistics) to handle
essentially all manufacturing and distribution, respectively, for our three primary retail product launches
improves the efficiency and reliability of our product launches, and enables us to move more quickly to the
direct-to-storefront model preferred by many of our retailers. It also allows us to better manage inventory
levels. However, exclusive reliance on one vendor for specific functions can have severe negative consequences
on our business, revenue and operating results if a vendor fails to perform for any reason. Accordingly, we
continue to evaluate other vendors in order to increase efficiencies and facilitate contingency planning. See
““Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could
Affect Future Results.”

Prior to major product releases, we tend to have significant levels of backlog, but at other times backlog is
minimal and we normally ship products within a few days of receiving an order. Because of this fluctuation in
backlog, we believe that backlog is not a reliable predictor of our future desktop software sales.

Internet-based Products and Services

Intuit’s data centers house most of the systems, networks and databases required to operate and deliver our
Internet-based products and services, such as TurboTax for the Web, electronic tax filing, QuickBooks Assisted
Payroll and Quicken.com. Through our data centers, we connect customers to products and services, and we
store the vast amount of data that represents the content on our Web sites. Our data centers consist of
approximately 2,200 servers and 400 databases located primarily in three locations. In an effort to reduce
unavailability, or “down time” for our Internet-based products and services, we generally follow industry-
standard practices for creating a fault-tolerant environment, but we do not have complete redundancy. Despite
our efforts to maintain continuous and reliable server operations, like all providers of Internet-based products
and services, we occasionally experience unplanned outages or technical difficulties. See “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could Affect

Future Results.”

PRIVACY AND SECURITY OF CUSTOMER INFORMATION

Customers are concerned about the privacy and security of information they provide to product and services
providers. This concern applies to information they provide in connection with Internet-based products and
services, as well as information they provide through more traditional channels, such as product registration
cards. Primarily because of the financial nature of the information customers provide to us, we are subject to
various federal and state laws and regulations relating to privacy and security, including laws and regulations
that require us to disclose certain information to customers. We are also subject to laws and regulations that
apply to telemarketing activities. Additional laws of this type are likely to be passed in the future, which could
result in significant increased compliance costs for us. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

We have established guidelines and practices to help ensure that customers are aware of, and can control, how
we use information about them. All publicly-accessible, Intuit-owned and operated Web sites at which
customer data is collected (including Quicken.com, QuickBooks.com and TurboTax.com) have been certified by
TRUSTe, an independent, non-profit privacy organization that operates a Web site certification program to
alleviate users’ concerns about online privacy. Each of our Web sites, as well as our software products, has a
privacy statement providing notice to customers of our privacy practices, as well as providing them the
opportunity to furnish instructions with respect to use of their data.
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To address security concerns, we use industry-standard security safeguards to help protect the information
customers give to us from loss, misuse and unauthorized alteration. Whenever customers transmit sensitive
information, such as a credit card number or tax return data, to us through our Web site, we provide them
access to our servers that allow encryption of the information as it is transmitted to us. We work to protect
personally identifiable information stored on the Web site’s servers from unauthorized access using
commercially available computer security products, such as firewalls, as well as internally developed security
procedures and practices.

We believe privacy and security issues pose a significant risk to Intuit and other companies, especially
companies doing business over the Internet. Although we have made significant efforts to address customer
concerns through our business practices, during the past few years we have faced lawsuits and negative
publicity relating to privacy issues. Our response to these allegations has been that we do not share any
personally identifiable information except as disclosed in our privacy policies. A major breach of customer
privacy or security, even by another company, could have serious consequences for our businesses. See
““Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Risks That Could
Affect Future Results” and “Legal Proceedings.”

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

We offer several products and services that are subject to special regulatory requirements. For example, the
brokerage-related services that Intuit offers through Quicken Brokerage powered by Siebert are provided in part
by an Intuit subsidiary that is registered as a securities broker and is subject to certain federal and state broker-
dealer regulations. In addition, some of the investment-related features in our products and services are offered
by an Intuit subsidiary that is registered as an investment adviser with the SEC and is subject to some state
regulatory laws as well. As we expand the depth and breadth of our small business offerings, we may become
subject to additional government regulation, particularly in the areas of retirement planning and other
employer services. We continually analyze new business opportunities, and new businesses that we pursue may
require additional costs for regulatory compliance.

Current government regulation poses a number of risks to us, including potential liability to customers and/or
penalties and sanctions by government regulators. Future regulation could hamper the growth of our
businesses. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We rely on a combination of copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret laws, and employee and third-party
nondisclosure and license agreements to protect our software products and other proprietary technology.
While our proprietary technology is important, we believe our success depends more heavily on the
innovation and technical skills of our employees. We do not own all of the software and other technologies
used in our products and services, but we have the licenses from third parties that we believe are necessary
and appropriate for using that technology in our current products.

We consider our principal trademarks (including Intuit, QuickBooks, TurboTax and Quicken) to be important
assets and have registered these and other trademarks and service marks in the U.S. and many foreign
countries. The initial duration of trademark registrations varies from country to country and is 10 years in the
U.S. Most registrations can be renewed perpetually at 10-year intervals.

We face a number of risks relating to our intellectual property, including persistent unauthorized use, and
unauthorized copying or “piracy,” of our desktop software products. Although we have recently begun to
incorporate technology in certain desktop software products to reduce unauthorized use, we expect piracy to
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be a persistent problem. We also face the risk of third parties claiming that our products or services infringe
their intellectual property rights, and we face risks to the value of our brands when we grant trademark
licenses to third parties. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Risks That Could Affect Future Results.”

EMPLOYEES

As of August 31, 2002, we had approximately 6,500 employees, located primarily in the United States, Canada,
Japan and the United Kingdom. We believe our future success and growth will depend on our ability to attract
and retain qualified employees in all areas of our business. We do not currently have any collective bargaining
agreements with our employees, and we believe employee relations are generally good. Although we have
employment-related agreements with a number of key employees, these agreements do not guarantee
continued service. We believe we offer competitive compensation and a good working environment. We were
selected as one of Fortune magazine’s ““100 Best Companies to Work For” in April 2002. However, we face
intense competition for qualified employees, and we expect to face continuing challenges in recruiting

and retention.

ITEM 2
PROPERTIES

Our principal offices and corporate headquarters are located in Mountain View, California. Our Mountain
View facilities consist of approximately 500,000 square feet under leases that have expiration dates ranging
from 2003 to 2010. We maintain a number of leased facilities in San Diego, California, consisting of
approximately 385,000 square feet. We use these facilities for general office space, a data center and a
manufacturing and distribution center. The San Diego leases have expiration dates ranging from 2003 through
2007. We lease approximately 140,000 square feet in Tucson, Arizona, where our primary customer call center
is located, under a lease that expires in 2009. In Plano, Texas we lease approximately 165,000 square feet of
space under a lease that expires in 2011, with two five-year renewal options. Our Professional Accounting
Services group is headquartered in Plano, and we also have a data center there. In Reno, Nevada, the
headquarters for our Employer Services business, we lease approximately 140,000 square feet under leases that
have expiration dates ranging from 2002 to 2009. Our four Small Business Verticals are headquartered in
Santa Rosa, California; Denver, Colorado; Shelton, Connecticut; and Beachwood, Ohio. We also lease or own
facilities in a number of other domestic locations, including Waltham, Massachusetts; Fort Worth, Texas;

New York, New York; and Washington, D.C. We also lease or own facilities in Canada, Japan and the United
Kingdom. We believe our facilities are adequate for our current and near-term needs, and that we will be able
to locate additional facilities as needed. See Note 16 of the financial statements for more information about
our lease commitments.

ITEM 3
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 3, 2000, a class action lawsuit, Bruce v. Intuit Inc., was filed in the United States District Court,
Central District of California, Eastern Division. Two virtually identical lawsuits were later filed: Rubin v. Intuit
Inc., was filed on March 8, 2000 in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York and
Newby v. Intuit Inc. was filed on April 27, 2000, in the United States District Court, Central District of
California, Eastern Division. The Bruce and Newby lawsuits were consolidated into one lawsuit, In re Intuit
Privacy Litigation, filed on July 28, 2000 in the United States District Court, Central District of California,
Eastern Division. Following Intuit’s successful motion to dismiss several of the claims, an amended complaint
was filed on May 2, 2001. A similar lawsuit, Almanza v. Intuit Inc. was filed on March 22, 2000 in the
Superior Court of the State of California, San Bernardino County, Rancho Cucamonga Division. An amended
complaint in the Almanza suit was filed on October 26, 2000. These purported class actions alleged violations
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of various federal and California statutes and common law claims for invasion of privacy based upon the
alleged intentional disclosure to third parties of personal and private customer information entered at Intuit’s
Quicken.com Web site. The complaints sought injunctive relief, orders to disgorge profits related to the alleged
acts, and statutory and other damages. In August 2001, Intuit and the plaintiffs’ counsel in all of the cases
except Rubin reached an agreement in principle to resolve the cases, subject to court approval, based on terms
that are not material to Intuit. The Rubin case was dismissed on November 19, 2001.

Intuit is subject to other routine legal proceedings, as well as demands, claims and threatened litigation, that
arise in the normal course of our business. We currently believe that the ultimate amount of liability, if any,
for any pending claims of any type (either alone or combined) will not materially affect our financial position,
results of operations or liquidity. However, the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and either
unfavorable or favorable outcomes could have a material negative impact. Regardless of outcome, litigation
can have an adverse impact on Intuit because of defense costs, diversion of management resources and

other factors.

ITEM 4

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.

ITEM 4A

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table shows Intuit’s executive officers and their areas of responsibility as of September 1, 2002.
We’ve included biographies after the table.

Name Age Position

Stephen M. Bennett ............... 48  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

William V. Campbell .............. 62  Chairman of the Board of Directors

Scott D. Cook..................... 50  Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors

Lorrie M. Norrington .............. 42 Executive Vice President, Small Business and Personal Finance
Division

Dennis Adsit...................... 43 Senior Vice President, Operations

Thomas A. Allanson ............... 44  Senior Vice President, Consumer Tax Group

Richard William Thrie.............. 52 Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

Daniel L. Manack ................. 44  Senior Vice President, Professional Accounting Solutions

Greg]. Santora.................... 51  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Raymond G. Stern ................ 41  Senior Vice President, Corporate Development and Strategy

Sherry Whiteley................... 43 Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Caroline F. Donahue .............. 41 Vice President, Sales

Linda Fellows ..................... 54  Vice President, Investor Relations and Treasury

Brooks Fisher ..................... 44  Vice President, Vertical Strategy and Integration and Chief
Marketing Officer

Jennifer Jones Hall ................ 40  Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Jeffrey N. Williams ................ 51  Vice President, Finance Operations and Corporate Controller
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Mr. Bennett has been President and Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board of Directors since
January 2000. Prior to joining Intuit, Mr. Bennett was an Executive Vice President and a member of the board
of directors of GE Capital, the financial services subsidiary of General Electric Corporation, from December
1999 to January 2000. From July 1999 to November 1999 he was President and Chief Executive Officer of

GE Capital e-Business. He was President and Chief Executive Officer of GE Capital Vendor Financial Services
from April 1996 through June 1999. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Finance and Real Estate from the
University of Wisconsin.

Mr. Campbell has been a director of Intuit since May 1994. He has served as Chairman of the Board since
August 1998 and was Acting Chief Executive Officer from September 1999 until January 2000. He also served
as Intuit’s President and Chief Executive Officer from April 1994 through July 1998. Mr. Campbell also serves
on the board of directors of SanDisk Corporation (a computer storage devices company), Apple Computer, Inc.
and Loudcloud, Inc. (a provider of Internet infrastructure services). Mr. Campbell holds both a Bachelor of Arts
in Economics and a Masters degree from Columbia University.

Mr. Cook, a founder of Intuit, has been a director of Intuit since March 1984 and is currently Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the Board. He served as Intuit’s Chairman of the Board from February 1993 through
July 1998. From April 1984 to April 1994, he also served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Intuit.

Mr. Cook also serves on the board of directors of Amazon.com, Inc., eBay Inc. and The Procter & Gamble
Company and is on the board of visitors of the Harvard Business School Foundation. Mr. Cook holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Mathematics from the University of Southern California and a
Masters in Business Administration from Harvard Business School.

Ms. Norrington has been Executive Vice President, Small Business and Personal Finance since January 2002.
She joined Intuit in July 2001 as Senior Vice President, Small Business Division. Prior to joining Intuit,

Ms. Norrington served as an officer of General Electric Corporation and held a variety of senior business
positions, including President and Chief Executive Officer of GE Fanuc Automation from April 2000 to July
2001, President and Chief Executive Officer of General Electric’'s Commercial Shopping Network from
November 1999 to April 2000, General Manager, Components Operation from January 1998 through
November 1999, and General Manager, Equipment Business from January 1996 through January 1998.

Ms. Norrington holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance and Marketing from the University of Maryland
and a Masters in Business Administration from Harvard Business School.

Mr. Adsit has been Senior Vice President, Operations since August 2002. He served as Vice President, Call
Centers and Process Excellence of Intuit from May 2001 to August 2002. Mr. Adsit joined Intuit in July 2000
as Vice President, Process Excellence. Prior to joining Intuit, he was Senior Vice President, Six Sigma Practice
Leader, at Rath and Strong, a division of AON Corporation (a risk management company) from April 1999 to
June 2000. From June 1995 to April 1999, he also held Principal and Vice President positions in the
Leadership & Organizational Effectiveness Practice at Rath and Strong Management Consultants. Mr. Adsit is a
member of the Executive Advisory Panel for the Academy of Management’s Publication Executive. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics and Psychology from Bowling Green State University and a Masters
and Ph.D. in Industrial and Organizational Psychology from the University of Minnesota.

Mr. Allanson has been Senior Vice President, Consumer Tax Group since April 2002. Prior to that he was
Senior Vice President, Tax Division from April 2001 until April 2002. He joined Intuit in September 2000 as
Vice President of Tax Strategy. Prior to joining Intuit, he was with General Electric Corporation from February
1993 through August 2000, serving as President of GE Capital Colonial Pacific Leasing from October 1998 to
August 2000. He was Sales Effectiveness Leader and General Manager from September 1997 to October 1998
and was Marketing Manager, Equipment Business from May 1995 through September 1997. Mr. Allanson
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Auburn University.
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Mr. Thrie has been Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer since joining Intuit in November 2000.
He was Acting Chief Information Officer from January 2001 to August 2001. Prior to joining Intuit, Mr. Thrie
served as Senior Vice President of Technology for ADP Claims Solutions Group (an automated information
company) from July 1996 to October 2000, and Senior Vice President of Product Development for Dealer
Services at ADP from August 1990 to July 1996. Mr. IThrie holds Bachelor of Science degrees in Mathematics
and Management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a Master of Science in Computer Science
from the University of California, Berkeley.

Mr. Manack has been Senior Vice President, Professional Accounting Solutions since April 2002. Prior to that
he was Vice President, Professional Products Group from January 2002 until April 2002. Before joining Intuit,
Mr. Manack served as Senior Vice President of E-Markets Group Operations at Peregrine Systems, Inc. (an
infrastructure management software company) from May 2001 to January 2002 and Senior Vice President at
Peregrine Solutions from June 2000 to May 2001. Prior to the acquisition of Harbinger Corporation by
Peregrine Systems, Inc. in June 2000, Mr. Manack was Executive Vice President of Operations at Harbinger
Corporation from January 2000 to June 2000, Senior Vice President — Market Executive of New Clients from
February 1999 to January 2000, Senior Vice President of World Professional Services from February 1998 to
February 1999 and Vice President & General Manager of Professional Services and Outsourcing Practice from
January 1997 to February 1998. Mr. Manack holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Engineering from
West Virginia University and a Masters in Business Administration from the University of Dallas.

Mr. Santora has been Senior Vice President since March 1999 and Chief Financial Officer since July 1997. He
served as Vice President of Finance from November 1996 to March 1999. He joined Intuit as Corporate
Controller in January 1996. Mr. Santora, who is a certified public accountant, holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Accounting from the University of Illinois and a Masters in Business Administration from San Jose
State University. In August 2002, Mr. Santora announced his plans to retire from Intuit at the end of
calendar 2002.

Mr. Stern has been Senior Vice President, Corporate Development and Strategy since December 2000. Prior to
that, he was Senior Vice President, Corporate Strategy and Marketing from March 2000 to December 2000 and
he was Senior Vice President, Strategy, Corporate Development and Administration from March 1999 until
March 2000. He joined Intuit in January 1998 as Senior Vice President of Strategy, Finance and
Administration. Prior to joining Intuit, Mr. Stern spent over ten years with The Boston Consulting Group (a
business consulting firm), where he was the partner responsible for the firm’s West Coast high technology
practice from May 1994 to December 1997. Mr. Stern holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Stanford University and a Masters in Business Administration from Harvard Business School.

Ms. Whiteley has been Senior Vice President, Human Resources since January 2002. She joined Intuit in July
2000 as Vice President, Human Resources. Prior to joining Intuit, she served in several human resources
positions with Silicon Graphics, Inc. (a data management company) from 1992 to July 2000, including HR
Strategy from 1994 to 1996, Executive Coaching and Development, Leadership Development and Technical
Education from 1996 to 1998 and Executive Recruiting from 1998 to July 2000. Ms. Whiteley holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree in History from Santa Clara University.

Ms. Donahue has been Vice President, Sales since September 1997. She joined Intuit as Director of Sales in
May 1995. Prior to joining Intuit, Ms. Donahue served as Director of Sales at Knowledge Adventure (an
educational software company) and she worked in various sales and channel management positions at Apple
Computer and Next, Inc. Ms. Donahue holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Northwestern University.

Ms. Fellows has been Vice President, Investor Relations and Treasury since January 2000. She joined Intuit as
Corporate Treasurer and Director of Investor Relations in May 1997. Prior to that, Ms. Fellows served as
Treasurer and Director of Investor Relations of Bay Networks, Inc. (a communication services company) from
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October 1990 to April 1997. Ms. Fellows holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Stanford University and a
Masters in Business Administration from Santa Clara University.

Mr. Fisher has been Vice President, Vertical Strategy and Integration; and Chief Marketing Officer since May
2002. He was Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer from June 2001 until May 2002. He joined Intuit in
March 1997 as Vice President, Consumer Internet Business. Prior to joining Intuit, Mr. Fisher served as a Vice
President at Infoseek Corp. (an Internet search service company) from January 1996 to March 1997. Mr. Fisher
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English from Williams College.

Ms. Hall has been Chief Information Officer since July 2002 and a Vice President of Intuit since April 1999.
She joined Intuit in November 1992. Ms. Hall was at Pacific Bell from February 1985 through November 1992,
where she held various positions, including director of electronic messaging. Ms. Hall holds a Bachelor of
Science degree from San Francisco State University.

Mr. Williams has been Vice President, Finance Operations and Corporate Controller since joining Intuit in
September 2001. Prior to joining Intuit, Mr. Williams was Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer
of Edgewood Creek, Incorporated from September 2000 until March 2001, and served as Vice President of
Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Reasoning, Incorporated (an information technology company) from
June 1998 until September 2000. From July 1996 until June 1998, he served as Director of Finance at Remedy
Corporation (a service management solutions company). Mr. Williams, who is a certified public accountant,
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial Design from San Jose State University and a Masters degree in
Business Administration from Santa Clara University. As a result of Intuit’s recent decision to relocate its
Controller position from Mountain View to San Diego, California, Mr. Williams will be leaving Intuit in
November 2002 to pursue other opportunities.
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PART II
ITEM 5
MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information for Common Stock

Intuit’s common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “INTU.” The following table
shows the range of high and low sale prices reported on the Nasdaq Stock Market for the periods indicated.
On August 30, 2002, the closing price of Intuit’s common stock was $44.63.

Lgh Low

Fiscal year ended July 31, 2001

FIrSt QUATTET. . . ..o $61.88  $34.25
Second qQUATtET .. ... ... . 69.31 31.06
Third quarter ......... .. 47.38 22.63
Fourth qUarter .. ... ... ... 40.75 29.85
Fiscal year ended July 31, 2002

FIISt QUATTET. . . . ..o $43.73  $28.54
Second QUATTET . ... ... 47.05 36.95
Third QUATtEr . ... 41.81 34.52
Fourth quarter ... ... .. ... . 50.13 36.85

Stockholders

As of August 31, 2002, we had approximately 1,200 record holders of our common stock, and about
114,000 beneficial holders.

Dividends

Intuit has never paid any cash dividends on its common stock. We currently anticipate that we will retain all
future earnings for use in our business, and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In June 2002, we issued a total of 73,795 shares of our common stock to three former stockholders of CBS
Employer Services, Inc. (the parent company of CBS Payroll) in connection with our acquisition of that
company. We issued 0.0466352 shares of Intuit common stock plus $10.5580184 in cash in exchange for each
share of CBS Class A common stock held by these stockholders. Intuit paid cash for all of the other shares of
CBS stock. The shares were issued in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Rule 506 promulgated under Section 4(2). The transaction did not involve any general solicitation and the
three purchasers are accredited investors. Intuit filed a Form D for the issuance.
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ITEM 6
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table shows selected consolidated financial information for Intuit for the past five fiscal years.
The comparability of the information is affected by a variety of factors, including acquisitions and dispositions
of businesses and gains and losses related to marketable securities and other investments. In fiscal 2002, we
sold our Quicken Loans mortgage business and accounted for the sale as discontinued operations. To better
understand the information in the table, investors should read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7, and the Consolidated Financial Statements and

Notes in Item 8.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Fiscal
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net revenue:

Products. ......... ... $514,411 $738,431 $ 803,759 $ 834,190 $1,001,782

SEIVICES ... ... 33,969 58,844 142,179 240,381 293,405

Other ... ... ... 43,685 45,625 91,411 73,834 63,161

Total net revenue............. ... ... ... . ... 592,065 842,900 1,037,349 1,148,405 1,358,348

Income (loss) from continuing operations before

cumulative effect of accounting change............... (7,646) 384,020 322,178 (118,079) 69,760
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 13,828 2,544 (16,517) 20,972 70,400
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes .... — — — 14,314 —
Net income (10SS). ... $ 6,182 $386,564 $ 305,661 $ (82,793) $§ 140,160
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic income (loss) per share from continuing operations

before cumulative effect of accounting change......... $ (005 $ 201 $ 1.60 §$ 0.57) $ 0.33
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 0.09 0.01 (0.08) 0.10 0.33
Cumulative effect of accounting change ................ — — — 0.07 —
Basic net income (loss) per share....................... $ 004 $§ 202 $ 1.52 § 0.40) $ 0.66
Diluted income (loss) per share from continuing

operations before cumulative effect of accounting

change ... . $ (005 $§ 192 § 1.53 § 0.57) $ 0.32
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations ......... 0.09 0.01 (0.08) 0.10 0.32
Cumulative effect of accounting change ................ — — — 0.07 —
Diluted net income (loss) per share..................... $ 004 $ 193 $ 145 § 0.40) $ 0.64
Pro Forma Data for Fiscal 2001 Change in

Accounting Principle

(Unaudited)(a)
Pro forma net income . .......... ... .. .00 (@) $382,438 $ 299,100 (a) (a)
Pro forma diluted net income per share................. @ $ 191 % 1.42 (a) (a)

(a) This pro forma data relates to accounting for derivative instruments and is different from our company pro
forma results, which are shown in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.” We adopted Statement of Financial Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” in fiscal 2001 and recognized the cumulative effect of
the change in how we accounted for options to purchase shares of S1 Corporation as of August 1, 2000.
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Pro forma data presents our net income and diluted net income per share for fiscal 1999 and 2000 as if we
had adopted SFAS 133 at the beginning of fiscal 1999. In accordance with SFAS 133, we included
unrealized gains and losses on the S1 options in our fiscal 2001 and 2002 reported results until we sold
them in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. Intuit did not have any derivative instruments or engage in
hedging activities prior to fiscal 1999. See Note 1 of the financial statements, “Change in
Accounting Principle.”

July 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
(In thousands)

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 382,832 $ 823,090 $1,420,770 $1,213,606  $1,250,429

Marketable securities ................. ... 499,285 431,176 225,878 85,307 16,791
Working capital ............ ... oo 632,713 842,213 1,321,957 1,359,960 1,262,716
Total @ssets ... 1,538,178 2,378,563 2,792,480 2,862,273 2,963,026
Long-term obligations ........................... 35,566 36,308 538 12,150 14,610
Total stockholders’ equity ........................ $1,127,943 $1,561,388 $2,071,289 $2,161,326  $2,215,639

24



ITEM 7
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NOTE: For a more complete understanding of our financial condition and results of operations, and some of the risks
that could affect future results, see “Risks That Could Affect Future Results” in this Item 7. This section should also be
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes in Item 8. As discussed below, we
sold our Quicken Loans mortgage business and accounted for the sale as discontinued operations. Unless otherwise
noted, the following discussion pertains only to our continuing operations.

Results of Operations
Three-Year Total Net Revenue and Net Income (Loss) Trends

The following table shows trends in our total net revenue and net income (loss) for the past three years. Net
income (loss) is shown in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), and also on an
unaudited company pro forma basis. We present this company pro forma financial information as a
supplement to, but not a substitute for, GAAP information, in order to provide investors with an alternative
way of assessing our results. Company pro forma information is different from certain pro forma figures
required to be presented in our consolidated financial statements and notes.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2000-2001  2001-2002

2000 2001 2002 % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Total netrevenue . ................ ...t $1,037.3 $1,1484 $1,358.3 11% 18%
Net income (10ss) — GAAP . ... 305.7 (82.8) 140.2 127)% 269%
Net income — Company pro forma (unaudited)............. $ 1479 § 1625 § 2113 10% 30%
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Reconciliation of GAAP Net Income (Loss) to Pro Forma Net Income

The following table presents the reconciliation of GAAP net income (loss) to unaudited company pro forma
net income for the periods shown. Company pro forma information is prepared using the same consistent
method from quarter to quarter and year to year. Company pro forma net income excludes acquisition-related
charges, such as amortization of goodwill and intangibles and impairment charges, and amortization of
purchased software and charges for purchased research and development. It also excludes loss on impairment
of long-lived asset, gains and losses from marketable securities and other investments, net gains and losses on
divestitures, discontinued operations, the cumulative effect of an accounting change (see Note 1 of the
financial statements) and the tax effects of these transactions.

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2000 2001 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Net income (105S) — GAAP . . .. ... o $ 305.7 $(82.8) $140.2
Amortization of purchased software........... ... ... .. i i 8.8 15.0 12.4
Charge for purchased research and development .................................. 1.3 0.2 2.2
Acquisition-related charges. .............. . 156.3 248.2 181.6
Loss on impairment of long-lived asset............. ... ... . ... ... . — — 27.0
Gain on marketable securities . .............. . .. (481.1) — —
Loss on marketable securities .......... ... .. ... — 98.1 15.5
Gain on divestitures . ...... ... — — 8.3)
Loss on divestitures .. ... — 15.3 —
Income tax benefit (provision) on above ........... ... .. 140.4 (96.2) (88.9)
Net income from discontinued operations. ..................iiiiiiiieniino... (21.0) (70.4)
Net loss from discontinued operations .................c.. ... 16.5 — —
Cumulative effect of accounting change............ ... ... ... .. i i — (14.3) —
Net income — Company pro forma (unaudited) ................ .. ... ... ........ $1479 $162.5 $211.3
Overview

Intuit’s mission is to revolutionize how people manage their financial lives, and how small businesses and
accounting professionals manage their businesses. Our goal is to create changes so profound customers
wouldn’t dream of going back to their old ways of keeping their books, doing their taxes or managing their
personal finances. Intuit is a leading provider of small business, tax preparation and personal finance software
products and services that simplify complex financial tasks for small businesses, consumers and accounting
professionals. Our principal products and services include: small business accounting and business
management solutions, including our QuickBooks® line of products and services as well as our Intuit® line of
industry-specific business management solutions; TurboTax® consumer tax products and services; ProSeries®
and Lacerte® professional tax products and services; and Quicken® personal finance products and services.

The business models for many of our products and services provide us with significant profit leverage, for
three primary reasons. First, these businesses have relatively high fixed costs and low variable costs, so as we
increase units sold, we generate more profit per incremental unit sold. Second, as we offer products and
services with greater functionality, we can increase prices to reflect the greater value that we deliver to
customers. Third, as customers move to some of our higher-end products and services, the better product and
service mix is resulting in more revenue and profit per customer.

Our tax businesses are highly seasonal. Sales of tax preparation products and services are heavily concentrated
in the period from November through April. These seasonal patterns mean that our total net revenue is
usually highest during our second and third quarters ending January 31 and April 30. We typically report
losses in our first and fourth quarters ending October 31 and July 31 when revenue from our tax businesses
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are minimal, but operating expenses to develop new products and services continue at relatively
consistent levels.

Acquisitions and dispositions of businesses and assets have had a significant impact on the comparability of
our results year over year. During the past three years, we have completed several acquisitions and
dispositions. In fiscal 2002, we sold our Quicken Loans mortgage business and accounted for the sale as
discontinued operations. See Notes 9, 10 and 11 of the financial statements. The impairment of goodwill and
other intangibles received in connection with acquisitions has also had a significant impact on our operating
results. During fiscal 2001 and 2002, we recorded charges of $78.7 million and $27.3 million for impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets. Total goodwill amortization expense, including impairments, was

$139.5 million in fiscal 2001 and $122.6 million in fiscal 2002. We adopted Statement of Financial Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 142 on August 1, 2002. The adoption of this standard will eliminate the amortization of goodwill
commencing with the first quarter of fiscal 2003. However, it is possible that in the future we may incur
impairment charges related to existing goodwill, as well as to goodwill arising out of future acquisitions. See
Notes 1 and 5 of the financial statements for more information regarding our goodwill and intangible assets
and the impact of impairment charges on our reported net income.

Gains and losses related to marketable securities and other investments have had a significant impact on the
comparability of our yearly results as well. All of our marketable securities and long-term investments are
holdings in high technology companies that have been extremely volatile since we purchased them. In fiscal
2001 and 2002, the market prices of a number of these companies’ securities declined substantially from our
initial investment due to the economic downturn in the high technology industry. During fiscal 2001 and
2002, we recorded charges of $68.8 million and $9.5 million for other-than-temporary declines in the value of
our available-for-sale marketable securities and other investments, and a charge of $40.0 million during fiscal
2001 relating to the decline in the valuation of our trading securities. See Note 3 of the financial statements
for more information regarding our investments in marketable securities and the impact of our trading
securities on our reported net income.

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing our financial statements, we make estimates, assumptions and judgments that can have a
significant impact on our net revenue, operating income and net income, as well as on the value of certain
assets on our balance sheet. We believe that the estimates, assumptions and judgments involved in the
accounting policies described below have the greatest potential impact on our financial statements, so we
consider these to be our critical accounting policies. See Note 1 of the financial statements for more
information about these critical accounting policies, as well as descriptions of other significant

accounting policies.

* Net Revenue — Return and Rebate Reserves. As part of our revenue recognition policy, we estimate future
product returns and rebate payments and establish reserves against revenue based on these estimates.
Product returns by distributors and retailers principally relate to the return of obsolete products. Our return
policy allows distributors and retailers, subject to certain contractual limitations, to return purchased
products. For product returns reserves, we consider the volume and price mix of products in the retail
channel, trends in retailer inventory, economic trends that might impact customer demand for our
products (including the competitive environment and the timing of new releases of our products) and
other factors. We fully reserve for obsolete products in the distribution channels.

Our rebate reserves include distributor and retailer sales incentive rebates and end-user rebates. Our
estimated reserves for distributor and retailer incentive rebates are based on distributors’ and retailers’ actual
performance against the terms and conditions of rebate programs, which are typically entered into
annually. Our reserves for end-user rebates are estimated based on the terms and conditions of the specific
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promotional program, actual sales during the promotion, the amount of redemptions received, historical
redemption trends by product and by type of promotional program and the economic value of the rebate.

In the past, actual returns and rebates have not generally exceeded our reserves. However, actual returns
and rebates in any future period are inherently uncertain. If we were to change our assumptions and
estimates, our revenue reserves would change, which would impact the net revenue we report. If actual
returns and rebates are significantly greater than the reserves we have established, the actual results would
decrease our future reported revenue. Conversely, if actual returns and rebates are significantly less than our
reserves, this would increase our future reported revenue. As an example, a change of 1% in our consumer
tax product return rate assumptions would have increased or reduced fiscal 2002 net revenue by
approximately $1.2 million. If the historical data we use to calculate these estimates do not properly reflect
actual returns or rebates, then we would make a change in the reserves in the period in which the
determination is made.

Goodwill, Purchased Intangibles and Other Long-Lived Assets — Impairment Assessments. Under current
accounting standards, which changed significantly at the start of fiscal 2003, we make judgments about the
recoverability of goodwill, purchased intangible assets and other long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate an other-than-temporary impairment in the remaining value of the
assets recorded on our balance sheet may exist. In order to estimate the fair value of long-lived assets, we
make various assumptions about the future prospects for the business that the asset relates to and typically
estimate future cash flows to be generated by these businesses. Based on these assumptions and estimates,
we determine whether we need to take an impairment charge to reduce the value of the asset stated on our
balance sheet to reflect its estimated fair value. Assumptions and estimates about future values and
remaining useful lives are complex and often subjective. They can be affected by a variety of factors,
including external factors such as industry and economic trends, and internal factors such as changes in
our business strategy and our internal forecasts. Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we
have made in the past have been reasonable and appropriate, different assumptions and estimates could
materially impact our reported financial results. More conservative assumptions of the anticipated future
benefits from these businesses would result in greater impairment charges, which would decrease net
income and result in lower asset values on our balance sheet. Conversely, less conservative assumptions
would result in smaller impairment charges, higher net income and higher asset values. See Note 1
“Goodwill, Purchased Intangible Assets and Other Long-lived Assets” and ““Recent Pronouncements,” and Notes 5
and 12 of the financial statements for more information about how we make these judgments.

Reserves for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable. We make ongoing assumptions relating to the collectibility
of our accounts receivable. The accounts receivable amount on our balance sheet includes a reserve for
accounts that might not be paid. In determining the amount of the reserve, we consider our historical level
of credit losses. We also make judgments about the creditworthiness of significant customers based on
ongoing credit evaluations, and we assess current economic trends that might impact the level of credit
losses in the future. Our reserves have generally been adequate to cover our actual credit losses. However,
since we cannot predict future changes in the financial stability of our customers, we cannot guarantee that
our reserves will continue to be adequate. If actual credit losses are significantly greater than the reserve we
have established, that would increase our general and administrative expenses and reduce our reported net
income. Conversely, if actual credit losses are significantly less than our reserve, this would eventually
decrease our general and administrative expenses and increase our reported net income. See Note 1 of the
financial statements, “Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers and Suppliers,” for more
information about our accounts receivable.

Income Taxes — Estimates of Effective Tax Rates, Deferred Taxes and Valuation Allowance. When we
prepare our consolidated financial statements, we estimate our income taxes based on the various
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jurisdictions where we conduct business. This requires us to estimate our actual current tax exposure and to
assess temporary differences that result from differing treatment of certain items for tax and accounting
purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which we show on our consolidated
balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future
taxable income. To the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we establish a valuation allowance.
When we establish a valuation allowance or increase this allowance in an accounting period, we must
record a tax expense in our statement of operations.

Management must make significant judgments to determine our provision for income taxes, our deferred
tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance to be recorded against our net deferred tax asset. Our
net deferred tax asset as of July 31, 2002 was $244.4 million, net of the valuation allowance of

$9.3 million. We recorded the valuation allowance to reflect uncertainties about whether we will be able to
utilize some of our deferred tax assets (consisting primarily of certain net operating losses carried forward
by our international subsidiaries and certain state capital loss carryforwards) before they expire. The
valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income for the jurisdictions in which we operate
and the period over which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable. While we have considered future
taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the
valuation allowance, we cannot assure that we will not be required to increase the valuation allowance to
take into account additional deferred tax assets that we may be unable to realize. If we increase the
valuation allowance, it could have a material adverse impact on our income tax provision and net income
in the period in which we make the increase. See Note 20 of the financial statements.
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Total Net Revenue

The table below shows total net revenue and percentage of total net revenue for each of our business segments
for fiscal years 2000, 2001 and 2002. We have reclassified prior year information to conform to the current

year financial presentation for comparability. See Note 14 of the financial statements for additional

information about our business segments.

% Total % Total % Total
Fiscal Net Fiscal Net Fiscal Net 2000-2001  2001-2002
2000 Revenue 2001 Revenue 2002 Revenue % Change % Change
(Dollars in millions)
Total Net Revenue:
Small Business
Product.............. $ 2753 $ 278.0 $ 3188
Service............... 20.2 32.6 514
Other................ 16.0 18.0 4.4
Subtotal ........... _ 3118 30% 3286 29% 3746 28% 6% 14%
Employer Services
Product.............. 30.6 60.1 81.7
Service............... 44.8 58.1 72.4
Other................ — — 0.2
Subtotal ........... 754 7% 1182 10% 1543 11% 57% 31%
Consumer Tax
Product.............. 170.5 168.2 219.4
Service............... 40.9 100.5 128.4
Other................ 4.8 3.4 3.3
Subtotal ........... 2162 21% 2721 24% 3511 26% 26% 29%
Professional Accounting
Solutions
Product.............. 161.4 177.3 219.2
Service............... 9.1 11.1 6.5
Other................ — — —
Subtotal ........... __ 1705 17% 1884 16%  225.7 17% 10% 20%
Personal Finance
Product .............. 98.8 80.2 71.6
Service............... — 13.1 8.0
Other................ 706 497 507
Subtotal ........... 169.4 16% 143.0 12% 130.3 9% (16)% 9)%
Global Business
Product .............. 67.1 70.4 82.2
Service............... 27.2 24.8 20.9
Other................ — 2.8 4.5
Subtotal ........... 943 9%  98.0 9%  107.6 8% 4% 10%
Small Business Verticals
and Other
Product .............. — — 8.9
Service............... — 0.1 5.8
Other................ — — —
Subtotal ........... — — 0.1 — 14.7 1% — NM
TOTALS:............. $1,037.3 100%  $1,148.4 100%  $1,358.3 100% 11% 18%

NM is a non-meaningful comparison.
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Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Total net revenue for fiscal 2002 was $1,358.3 million, compared to
$1,148.4 million in fiscal 2001, representing an increase of 18%. The fiscal 2002 increase in net revenue was
primarily due to growth of 31% in our Employer Services segment, 29% in our Consumer Tax segment and
20% in our Professional Accounting Solutions segments. Net revenue from our Small Business segment
increased 14% due to growth in Quickbooks-related products. Personal Finance net revenue declined 9% in
fiscal 2002, reflecting a decrease in Internet advertising revenue and lower sales of Quicken due to the
continuing overall decline in the personal finance desktop software category.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Total net revenue for fiscal 2001 was $1,148.4 million, compared to
$1,037.3 million in fiscal 2000, representing an increase of 11%. Our Consumer Tax segment had a strong year
with an increase of 26% that was driven by Web-based tax return preparation and electronic tax return filing
services revenue, which more than doubled from fiscal 2000. The revenue growth also reflected a 57% increase
in our Employer Services segment. Growth in these segments was partially offset by a 16% decline in the
Personal Finance segment. Personal Finance was adversely affected by the declining demand for Internet
advertising as well as by lower sales of Quicken due to an overall decline in the personal finance desktop
software category.

Total Net Revenue by Business Segment

The following net revenue discussion is categorized by our business segments, which reflect how we manage
our operations and how our chief operating decision maker views results. The net revenue impact of the fiscal
2001 acquisition of Tax and Accounting Software Corporation is discussed below under Professional
Accounting Solutions. No other acquisitions have had a material impact on net revenue in the

periods presented.

Small Business

Small Business product revenue is derived primarily from QuickBooks desktop software products and financial
supplies. Small Business services revenue is derived primarily from QuickBooks Service Solutions, our fee for
support plan. Our Small Business Verticals businesses are managed separately from the Small Business segment,
so their revenue is included in the Small Business Verticals and Other segment below.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Small Business total net revenue increased 14% in fiscal 2002 compared
to fiscal 2001. Total QuickBooks-related revenue (which includes QuickBooks desktop software products,
QuickBooks support plans, QuickBooks Internet Gateway and QuickBooks Online Edition) was 11% higher
while QuickBooks desktop product revenue alone grew 19%. The increase in QuickBooks desktop product
revenue reflected higher average selling prices driven primarily by the November 2001 launch of our higher-
priced QuickBooks Premier products, as well as 12% higher unit sales. The volume increase was driven by
strong upgrade sales, which we believe were due in part to our decision to discontinue technical support and
tax table services during calendar 2002 for customers using certain older versions of QuickBooks. We believe
that the availability of a range of third party offerings from the Intuit Developer Network to QuickBooks 2002
customers may also have contributed to the stronger upgrade sales. Fiscal 2002 QuickBooks-related revenue
growth also reflected strong results from QuickBooks Service Solutions. In August 2001, we began offering
several higher-end support plans, which resulted in significantly higher average selling prices that more than
offset declines in volume compared to fiscal 2001. Revenue growth in QuickBooks-related products and
services was partially offset by a decline in QuickBooks Internet Gateway revenue. Revenue for this business
decreased due to a sharp decline in upfront fees received from Internet Gateway participants, as well as a
decrease in transaction-based fees that reflects lower customer demand for Internet Gateway services and fewer
services being offered. Financial supplies revenue increased modestly during the year.
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We expect continued growth in our Small Business segment in fiscal 2003. We expect QuickBooks-related
revenue to increase due to the fiscal 2002 introduction of products with more advanced functionality such as
QuickBooks Premier, QuickBooks Premier: Accountant Edition and QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions Business
Management Software, which have significantly higher selling prices than our other QuickBooks products.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. For fiscal 2001, total net revenue for the Small Business segment
increased 6% over fiscal 2000. Revenue from QuickBooks desktop products remained relatively flat. While
average selling prices increased for the year, unit sales declined 17%. This was attributable to a decline in the
rate at which existing QuickBooks customers upgraded to newer QuickBooks products, as well as to a lower
acquisition rate of new users. Product revenue from our financial supplies and services revenue from our
QuickBooks Internet Gateway and QuickBooks Service Solutions increased in fiscal 2001.

Employer Services

Employer Services product revenue is derived primarily from our QuickBooks Do-It-Yourself Payroll (formerly
Basic Payroll) offering. Employer Services services revenue is derived primarily from our QuickBooks Assisted
Payroll Service (formerly Deluxe Payroll) and Intuit Payroll Services — Complete Payroll (formerly

Premier Payroll).

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Employer Services total net revenue increased 31% in fiscal 2002
compared to fiscal 2001, reflecting 39% combined growth for the QuickBooks-branded Do-It-Yourself Payroll
and Assisted Payroll Service offerings, with revenue for the Intuit Payroll Services — Complete Payroll service
roughly flat. Price increases accounted for a significant portion of the Do-It-Yourself Payroll and Assisted
Payroll Service revenue growth, although the number of customers for the combined offerings also increased
by approximately 12%.

We expect total net revenue to continue to increase in our Employer Services business in fiscal 2003, due in
part to the acquisition of CBS Employer Services, Inc., a provider of full-service outsourced payroll functions
for small businesses, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Employer Services total net revenue increased 57% for fiscal 2001
compared to fiscal 2000. Increases in our average selling prices for both our Do-It-Yourself Payroll offering and
our Assisted Payroll Service contributed to this growth. The higher average selling prices resulted from price
increases as well as a shift toward a mix of higher-priced products. The number of customers for the combined
offerings also grew approximately 7%.

Consumer Tax

Consumer Tax product revenue is derived primarily from TurboTax federal and state consumer desktop tax
preparation products. Consumer Tax services revenue is derived primarily from TurboTax for the Web online
tax preparation services and electronic filing services.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Consumer Tax total net revenue increased 29% in fiscal 2002 compared
to fiscal 2001. Revenue from TurboTax desktop products was up 10%, due primarily to higher average selling
prices resulting from the introduction of a higher-priced premium product. Revenue from TurboTax for the
Web was strong in fiscal 2002, reflecting a significant increase in the mix of higher-end service offerings
(TurboTax Premier) as well as 84% unit growth. Electronic filing units and revenue also contributed to the
year-over-year growth. Overall, our Consumer Tax customer base grew 19% in fiscal 2002.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. For fiscal 2001, Consumer Tax total net revenue increased approximately
26% compared to fiscal 2000. The increase was due to a combination of higher average selling prices resulting
from price increases as well as improved product mix and increased unit sales for both our desktop products
and Web-based tax preparation services. Our Consumer Tax business also benefited from Microsoft’s
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discontinuation of its desktop consumer tax preparation software after the 1999 tax season which ended
April 15, 2000. Our Web-based tax preparation and electronic filing services also experienced strong growth
during fiscal 2001. Web-based tax preparation revenue more than doubled from fiscal 2000 as a result of
increased prices as well as a 71% increase in unit volume. In addition, our electronic filing services revenue
increased 53%. Overall, our Consumer Tax customer base grew 14% in fiscal 2001.

We expect continued growth in our Consumer Tax business in fiscal 2003 due to the continuing upward trend
in consumer use of the Web for tax return preparation and filing. We also expect revenue growth as a result of
product activation features to be included in the tax year 2002 federal versions of TurboTax desktop products
for Windows®, which are designed to reduce unauthorized sharing of those products.

Professional Accounting Solutions

Professional Accounting Solutions product revenue is derived primarily from ProSeries and Lacerte professional
tax preparation products. Professional Accounting Solutions services revenue is derived primarily from
electronic filing and tax advice services.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Total net revenue from our professional tax preparation products and
services increased 20% in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001. Approximately $21.0 million or 11% of the
growth compared to fiscal 2001 resulted from our acquisition of Tax and Accounting Software Corporation in
April 2001. Higher revenue from electronic filing services was also a significant factor in the increase. Our
fiscal 2002 introduction of product activation technology that restricted sharing of professional tax products
and higher average selling prices for our ProSeries and Lacerte unlimited-use products also contributed to the
revenue growth. Renewal rates for our existing customer base remained strong during fiscal 2002.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Total net revenue from our professional tax preparation products and
services increased 10% in fiscal 2001 compared to fiscal 2000. This growth resulted from higher average selling
prices for both our ProSeries and Lacerte unlimited-use products and unit growth for our pay-per return
customers. Renewal rates for our existing customer base were strong during fiscal 2001.

We expect continued growth in our Professional Accounting Solutions business in fiscal 2003 but we expect
the rate of growth to slow compared to fiscal 2002. Fiscal 2002 growth rates for this business were unusually
high due to the acquisition of TAASC in late fiscal 2001.

Personal Finance

Personal Finance product revenue is derived primarily from Quicken desktop products. Personal Finance
services revenue is minimal. Other revenue consists of Quicken.com advertising revenue and royalties for
online transactions.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Personal Finance total net revenue decreased 9% in fiscal 2002 compared
to fiscal 2001, due primarily to a 15% decline in revenue from Quicken desktop products and a 38% decline
in Quicken.com revenue. Solid growth in our online transactions business partially offset these declines. The
decrease in Quicken revenue reflected the continuing overall decline in the personal finance desktop software
category. Our share of retail units in this category remained above 70% in fiscal 2002. The decrease in
Quicken.com advertising revenue reflected the industry-wide decline in spending by purchasers of Internet
advertising. We expect these trends to continue in fiscal 2003.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Total net revenue from the Personal Finance segment decreased 16% in
fiscal 2001 compared to fiscal 2000. This decline in revenue was attributable in part to a 27% decline in unit
sales for our Quicken desktop products and a 31% decline in our Quicken.com Internet advertising revenues.
Quicken revenue was down due to an overall decline in the personal finance desktop software category.
Advertising revenue declined compared to the prior year due to the overall economic environment which

33



resulted in reduced advertising spending by purchasers of Internet advertising. We experienced continued
growth in our online transactions business, which partially offset these declines.

Global Business

Global Business product revenue is derived primarily from QuickBooks, Quicken and QuickTax desktop
software products in Canada and Yayoi small business desktop accounting products in Japan. Global Business
services revenue primarily consists of revenue from software maintenance contracts sold with Yayoi software
in Japan.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Global Business total net revenue increased 10% in fiscal 2002 compared
to fiscal 2001. Revenue from Canada increased 29% year over year. This reflected strong tax season results for
QuickTax, due in part to the preliminary success of our efforts to reduce unauthorized sharing of desktop
software. Canadian tax revenue growth was partially offset by modest revenue declines for QuickBooks and
Quicken. Revenue in Japan declined 12% compared to fiscal 2001. Japan'’s product revenue decreased 17%,
due primarily to our discontinuation of the QuickBooks product line in Japan in the second quarter of fiscal
2002. Revenue from Yayoi products was roughly flat compared to fiscal 2001. The overall decline in Japan’s
product revenue was partially offset by increased revenue from Yayoi support contracts.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Global Division total net revenue for fiscal 2001 increased 4% compared
to fiscal 2000. This increase was primarily due to 39% overall revenue growth in Canada, which was driven by
45% growth in QuickBooks revenue. In addition, Canada experienced 14% growth in professional tax revenue
as a result of an acquisition we made early in fiscal 2001. Revenue in Japan increased due to higher retail sales
of our Yayoi small business accounting software. This was partially offset by declining sales of QuickBooks in
Japan as well as decreased royalties and an adverse foreign exchange rate impact that resulted in lower average
selling prices in U.S. dollars.

Small Business Verticals and Other

As part of our Right for My Business strategy, in fiscal 2002 we acquired several companies that enable us to
provide accounting and business management solutions to customers in selected industries, which we refer to
as “verticals.” These new businesses, which we report as a single business segment, include the following:
Intuit Construction Business Solutions (formerly OMware, Inc.), which provides business management software
for the construction industry; Intuit Public Sector Solutions (formerly The Flagship Group), which offers
accounting and business management software solutions for nonprofit organizations, universities, and
government agencies; Intuit MRI Real Estate Solutions (formerly Management Reports, Inc.), which provides
business management software for commercial and residential property managers; and Intuit Eclipse
Distribution Management Solutions (formerly Eclipse, Inc.), which offers business management software for
the wholesale durable goods industry.

Three of the four acquisitions were completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. As a result, total net
revenue from the Small Business Vertical and Other segment was not significant in fiscal 2002 and consisted
primarily of revenue generated by OMware, Inc. There was no significant revenue in this segment from
sources other than the acquired vertical businesses during fiscal 2002. Driving the growth of the vertical
businesses we have acquired so far, and acquiring additional vertical businesses, are key business initiatives for
fiscal 2003. Therefore, we expect that we will continue to report these businesses as a separate business
segment in the future.
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Cost of Revenue

% of % of % of
Fiscal Related Fiscal Related Fiscal Related 2000-2001  2001-2002
2000 Revenue 2001 Revenue 2002  Revenue % Change % Change

(Dollars in millions)

Cost of Revenue:

Cost of products . ............ $158.8 20% $143.3 17% $163.5 16% (10%) 14%
Cost of services .............. 72.4 51% 110.1 46% 108.4 37% 52% (2%)
Cost of other revenue ........ 30.7 34% 26.0 35% 249 39% (15%) (4%)
Amortization of purchased
software .................. 8.8 — 15.0 — 12.4 — 70% (17%)
TOTALS:.................. $270.7 26% $294.4 26% $309.2 23% 9% 5%

There are four components of our cost of revenue: (1) cost of products, which includes the direct cost of
manufacturing and shipping desktop software products; (2) cost of services, which reflects direct costs
associated with providing services, including data center costs relating to delivering Internet-based services;
(3) cost of other revenue, which includes costs associated with generating advertising and marketing and
online transactions revenue; and (4) amortization of purchased software, which represents the cost of
depreciating products we obtained through acquisitions over their useful lives.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Cost of products as a percentage of product revenue decreased slightly to
16% in fiscal 2002 from 17% in fiscal 2001. We lowered our per-unit materials, manufacturing and shipping
costs for our shrink-wrap software products, resulting in significant cost savings. These savings were nearly
offset by increased costs associated with improving our product distribution function. During the first quarter
of fiscal 2002, we established a new third-party retail distribution relationship for our shrink-wrap software
products. This distribution relationship enables us to ship a larger percentage of our products directly to
individual retail stores and allows us to provide inventory to our retail customers on a more timely basis. By
providing better service to our retailers, we are reducing product returns and related costs. Because of this and
because we plan to continue redesigning the packaging for many of our software products and further
streamlining our manufacturing processes, we expect cost of products as a percentage of product revenue to
decline in fiscal 2003.

Cost of services as a percentage of services revenue decreased to 37% in fiscal 2002 from 46% in fiscal 2001.
This decrease was attributable primarily to our payroll and Web-based tax businesses, which experienced
significant revenue growth with relatively fixed cost bases.

Cost of other revenue as a percentage of other revenue increased to 39% in fiscal 2002 compared to 35% in
fiscal 2001. This increase was primarily due to increased data center costs related to our Personal Finance
segment’s online transaction business, which experienced revenue growth in fiscal 2002.

Amortization of purchased software decreased slightly in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001. This reflected
lower amortization expense in the second half of fiscal 2002 that resulted from a lower base of assets to be
amortized. This decline was partially offset by impairment charges for certain purchased software assets that
were recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2002, which caused the decrease in the base of assets. See Note 5
of the financial statements.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Cost of products as a percentage of product revenue decreased to 17%
for fiscal 2001 compared to 20% for fiscal 2000. The decline was primarily attributable to lower excess and
obsolete inventory expenses for all of our product lines due to improved inventory management. Cost of
services as a percentage of services revenue decreased to 46% for fiscal 2001 compared to 51% for fiscal 2000

35



due primarily to revenue growth in our payroll business with a relatively fixed cost base. This factor was
partially offset by increased data center costs related to our Personal Finance segment’s online transactions
businesses. Cost of other revenue as a percentage of other revenue increased to 35% for fiscal 2001 compared
to 34% for fiscal 2000 due to a significant decrease in Internet advertising revenue with a relatively fixed
cost base.

Operating Expenses

% Total % Total % Total
Fiscal Net Fiscal Net Fiscal Net 2000-2001  2001-2002
2000  Revenue 2001 Revenue 2002  Revenue % Change % Change

(Dollars in millions)
Operating Expenses:

Customer service and technical

SUPPOIt .. $138.6 13% $145.5 13% $173.1 13% 5% 19%
Selling and marketing ........ 221.2 21% 235.3 20% 278.8 21% 6% 18%
Research and development. . .. 165.9 16% 203.7 18% 203.5 15% 23% 0%
General and administrative . .. 74.3 7% 95.7 8% 110.4 8% 29% 15%
Charge for purchased research

and development .......... 1.3 0% 0.2 0% 2.2 0% NM NM
Charge for vacant facilities . . . . — — — — 13.2 1% — —
Acquisition related charges. . .. 156.4 15% 248.2 22% 181.6 13% 59% 27%)
Loss on impairment of long-

lived asset................. = — = — 27.0 2% — —

TOTALS:.................. $757.7 73% $928.6 81% $989.8 73% 23% 7%

Customer Service and Technical Support

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Customer service and technical support expenses were 13% of total net
revenue in fiscal 2002 and 2001. We improved our efficiency in fiscal 2002 by increasing the proportion of
customer service and technical support we provide through less expensive methods such as Web sites, online
chat, email and other electronic means. We also implemented a number of successful process excellence
initiatives that reduced costs while maintaining or increasing service levels. However, these benefits were more
than offset by higher direct sales and support costs associated with converting the customers of Tax
Accounting and Software Company, a company that we acquired in April 2001, to our ProSeries and Lacerte
professional tax products, and by increased demand for customer service and technical support due to our
growing customer base. We expect customer service and technical support expenses to decrease slightly as a
percentage of total net revenue in fiscal 2003 as TAASC conversion costs gradually decline and as we continue
to benefit from lower cost, more scalable electronic customer service and technical support

delivery mechanisms.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Customer service and technical support expenses were flat at 13% of
total net revenue in fiscal 2001 and 2000. This reflected the benefit of providing an increased proportion of
customer service and technical support more efficiently and less expensively through Web sites and other
electronic means, and from the expansion of QuickBooks Service Solutions, our fee for support program for
QuickBooks customers. These improvements were offset by the April 2001 start of support costs to convert
customers of our newly acquired TAASC business to our ProSeries and Lacerte professional tax products.
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Selling and Marketing

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. Selling and marketing expenses were 21% of total net revenue in fiscal
2002, compared to 20% in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2002, selling and marketing expenses increased as we
expanded our small business marketing programs to support the Right for My Business strategy announced in
September 2001. We also incurred incremental marketing expenses for our Construction Business Solutions
products, which we acquired in November 2001. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in selling
and marketing expenses as a percentage of total net revenue for our payroll business due to significant revenue
growth in that segment. We also donated $8.0 million to The Intuit Foundation in fiscal 2002, which will be
used to benefit the community through contributions to selected non-profit organizations. We expect selling
and marketing expenses to continue to increase as a percentage of total net revenue in fiscal 2003 as we
expand marketing programs for our new QuickBooks products as well as for the Right for My Business
products and services we recently introduced and those we expect to introduce in fiscal 2003.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. Selling and marketing expenses were 20% of total net revenue in fiscal
2001, compared to 21% in fiscal 2000. During fiscal 2000 we experienced relatively higher sales and marketing
expenses in the first half of the year due to aggressive marketing programs to expand our Internet-based
businesses and to respond to Microsoft’s TaxSaver consumer tax offering. In fiscal 2001 our payroll business
also experienced relatively lower marketing expenditures as it continued to benefit from the marketing value
of the Intuit brand.

Research and Development

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. During fiscal 2002, we increased research and development spending in
some of our highest-growth businesses — small business, consumer tax and professional tax — by
approximately 10%. In particular, we continued to invest in our Right for My Business strategy, including new
QuickBooks Premier, Point of Sale and Enterprise products launched in the second quarter of fiscal 2002, the
Intuit Developer Network, and other new products that we expect to introduce in fiscal 2003. At the same
time, we significantly decreased or stopped spending in less strategic areas and discontinued product lines. We
also benefited from improvements in our development process that resulted in shorter development times and
higher quality for our new QuickBooks products. The net result was that research and development expenses
in fiscal 2002 were flat in absolute dollars and declined as a percentage of total net revenue to 15% of total
net revenue, compared to 18% in fiscal 2001. During fiscal 2003, we expect to continue to make significant
investments in research and development, particularly for new small business products and services.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. For fiscal 2001 research and development expenses were 18% of total net
revenue in 2001, compared to 16% of total net revenue in fiscal 2000. In both fiscal 2001 and 2000, we
invested significant amounts in our services businesses, mostly focused in our Small Business and Employer
Services segments. This included research and development efforts for QuickBooks Online Edition, our
QuickBooks Assisted Payroll Service (formerly Deluxe Payroll), our QuickBase® information management tool
and the Intuit Developer Network.

General and Administrative

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. General and administrative expenses were 8% of total net revenue in
fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001. We experienced increased directors’ and officers’ liability insurance costs and costs
associated with integrating our acquisitions of OMware, Inc. in November 2001 and EmployeeMatters, Inc. in
December 2000. These increases were offset by decreases in bad debt charges in fiscal 2002. We had relatively
high accounts receivable write-offs in fiscal 2001 due to the deteriorating financial condition of many Internet
companies with whom we did business. We expect general and administrative expenses to increase as a
percentage of total net revenue in fiscal 2003 due to the costs of integrating our fourth quarter fiscal 2002
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acquisitions and other acquisitions we expect to make in fiscal 2003, as well as to investments in our internal
audit function and process excellence infrastructure. We also expect bad debt expense for fiscal 2003 to be
somewhat higher than for fiscal 2002 because we experienced unusually low levels of bad debt expense in
fiscal 2002.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. General and administrative expenses were 8% of total net revenue for
fiscal 2001, compared to 7% of total net revenue for fiscal 2000. During fiscal 2001, we experienced an
increase in our bad debt expense related to the economic downturn in the high technology industry that
impacted many companies with whom we did business. Our general and administrative expense for fiscal
2001 also included an increase of $1.2 million in deferred compensation amortization expense related to
restricted stock we granted when we hired our President and Chief Executive Officer in January 2000.

Charge for Purchased Research and Development

In connection with certain acquisitions and with the assistance of third-party appraisers, we determine the
value of in-process projects under development for which technological feasibility has not been established.
The value of the projects is determined by estimating the costs to develop the in-process technology into
commercially feasible products, estimating the net cash flows we believe would result from the products and
discounting these net cash flows back to their present value. The resulting amount is recorded as a charge for
purchased research and development when we acquire certain new businesses.

In fiscal 2002, we recorded a charge of $2.2 million for purchased research and development as a result of our
acquisition of Management Reports, Inc. (now Intuit MRI Real Estate Solutions). In fiscal 2001, we recorded a
charge of $0.2 million for purchased research and development when we acquired Tax Accounting and
Software Corporation. We recorded $1.3 million for purchased research and development as a result of our
Boston Light Software Corporation and Hutchison Avenue Software Corporation acquisitions in fiscal 2000.

Although we intend to continue to acquire relatively mature businesses with products whose technological
feasibility has been demonstrated as part of our Right for My Business Strategy, it is possible that we will incur
additional charges for purchased research and development in the future.

Charge for Vacant Facilities

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we concluded that we would not occupy two vacant leased buildings
in Mountain View, California and that we would be unable to recover a substantial portion of our lease
obligations by subleasing the vacant space. As a result, we recorded a charge of $13.2 million. See Note 13 of
the financial statements.

Acquisition-Related Charges

Acquisition-related charges include the amortization of goodwill, purchased intangible assets and deferred
compensation expenses arising from acquisitions, and impairment charges relating to certain acquired assets.
See Note 5 of the financial statements.

The FASB recently adopted a new standard for accounting for goodwill acquired in a business combination. It
continues to require us to recognize goodwill as an asset whenever we pay more for a business than the total
of its net tangible and intangible assets, but it does not permit us to amortize goodwill, which we were
previously required to do. Under the new statement, we must separately test goodwill for impairment using a
fair-value-based approach on an annual basis or more frequently if an event occurs indicating potential
impairment. The shift from an amortization approach to an impairment approach applies to all acquisitions
completed after June 30, 2001. The additional goodwill amortization charge for businesses we acquired after
June 30, 2001 would have been approximately $8.8 million in fiscal 2002 had this new standard not been in
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place. We will adopt the remaining elements of this new standard in the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and will
therefore cease goodwill amortization for acquisitions we made prior to July 1, 2001. However, it is possible
that in the future we may incur impairment charges related to the goodwill already recorded and to goodwill
arising out of future acquisitions. In addition, we will continue to amortize most purchased intangible assets
and to assess those assets for impairment as appropriate. In accordance with the new standard, we transferred
the balance of $1.9 million for assembled workforce at August 1, 2002 to goodwill and will no longer amortize
that asset. See Note 1 of the financial statements.

Fiscal 2002 Compared to Fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2002 acquisition-related charges were $181.6 million, compared
to $248.2 million in fiscal 2001. Acquisition-related charges in fiscal 2002 included impairment charges
totaling $22.0 million that were related to our Internet-based advertising business and our Site Solutions
business. See Notes 1 and 5 of the financial statements. Acquisition-related charges in fiscal 2002 also reflected
an increase of $12.7 million in amortization of intangibles associated with the acquisitions of
EmployeeMatters, Inc. in December 2000 and Tax Accounting and Software Corporation in April 2001.
Acquisition-related charges for fiscal 2001 included impairment charges that totaled $78.7 million.

Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000. In fiscal 2001 acquisition-related charges were $248.2 million, compared
to $156.4 million in fiscal 2000. The increase was primarily attributable to impairment charges totaling

$78.7 million that were recorded in the second half of fiscal 2001. During our review for impairment, events
and circumstances indicated possible impairment of goodwill and intangible assets related to our acquisitions
of Venture Finance Software Corp., SecureTax.com and Hutchison Avenue Software Corporation. See Notes 1
and 5 of the financial statements. Based on our analysis we recorded impairment charges of $51.0 million,
$26.0 million and $1.7 million associated with VFSC, SecureTax and Hutchison, respectively.

Loss on Impairment of Long-lived Asset

The fiscal 2002 loss on impairment of long-lived asset related to the impairment of the asset we received from
the purchaser of our Quicken Bill Manager business in May 2001. We regularly perform reviews to determine if
the carrying values of our long-lived assets are impaired. During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, events and
circumstances indicated impairment of this asset. Based on our resulting analysis of the asset’s fair value, we
recorded a charge of $27.0 million to reduce the carrying value of this asset to its estimated fair value of zero,
reflecting the deteriorating financial condition of the purchasing company. See Note 12 of the

financial statements.

Non-Operating Income and Expenses

Interest and Other Income

In fiscal 2002, interest and other income decreased to $32.9 million, compared to $57.3 million in fiscal 2001
and $48.5 million in fiscal 2000. The decrease during fiscal 2002 was due to a sharp decline in the interest we
earned on our cash and short-term investment balances in fiscal 2002, reflecting significant decreases in
market interest rates during the period. The increase during fiscal 2001 resulted from higher average cash and
short-term investment balances, due in part to sales of marketable securities as well as more cash generated
from operations compared to fiscal 2000. The total fiscal 2001 increase was partially offset by the effect of
lower market interest rates compared to fiscal 2000. Interest earned on customer payroll deposits is reported as
revenue for our payroll business, and is not included in interest and other income.

Gains (Losses) on Marketable Securities and Other Investments, Net

As of July 31, 2002, we held marketable securities and long-term investments in privately held companies
carried at $23.6 million on our balance sheet. This balance was down from $109.4 million as of July 31, 2001
due to sales and write-downs. We review the values of our investments each quarter and make adjustments as
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appropriate. See Notes 1 and 3 of the financial statements. The steep decline in equity markets over the past
few years has significantly reduced the value of our marketable securities and long-term investments. If the
value of these remaining securities continues to decline in the future, it would have a negative impact on our
financial results.

We considered our shares of Excitet@Home and 724 Solutions common stock to be trading securities. As a
result, unrealized gains or losses due to market fluctuations in these securities were included in our net income
or loss on a quarterly basis until we sold them in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. We considered our other
marketable securities to be available-for-sale and did not reflect quarterly fluctuations in their value in our net
income or loss on a quarterly basis unless we concluded that a decline in value was other-than-temporary. See
Note 3 of the financial statements.

We recorded pre-tax net losses relating to marketable securities and other investments of $15.5 million in fiscal
2002 and $98.1 million in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2000, we recorded a pre-tax gain relating to marketable
securities and other investments of $481.1 million. See Note 3 of the financial statements. The fiscal 2002 net
loss included charges totaling $9.5 million to write down certain long-term investments for which the decline
in fair value below carrying value was other-than-temporary. Our fiscal 2001 net loss included charges of
$40.2 million to write down certain available-for-sale securities for which the decline in fair value below
carrying value was other-than-temporary and $28.6 million to write down certain long-term investments for
which the decline in fair value below carrying value was other-than-temporary. The fiscal 2000 net gain
resulted primarily from our sales of Checkfree, Signio (now VeriSign) and Homestore.com common stock.

Net Gains (Losses) on Divestitures

In March 2002, we paid $12.0 million to terminate our $20.3 million obligation under an interactive services
agreement related to our Quicken Bill Manager business, which we sold in May 2001. When we terminated
the interactive services agreement, we recorded a pre-tax gain of $8.3 million. See Note 10 of the financial
statements. In the first quarter of fiscal 2002, we wrote off the $27.0 million asset acquired from the purchaser
of our Quicken Bill Manager business to loss on impairment of long-lived asset in our statement of operations.
See Note 12 of the financial statements.

During fiscal 2001 we recorded a pre-tax net loss of $15.3 million resulting from our divestitures of businesses.
During the second quarter of fiscal 2001 we realized a pre-tax net gain of $1.6 million for the sale of certain
assets of our wholly owned subsidiary, Intuit Insurance Services, Inc., which operated our Quicken Insurance
business. The gain was more than offset by a pre-tax net loss of $16.9 million for the sale of the technology
assets of our Quicken Bill Manager business in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. See Note 10 of the financial
statements. Neither of these divestitures represented discontinued operations.

Income Tax (Benefit) Provision

For fiscal 2002, we recorded an income tax provision of $15.2 million on pre-tax income from continuing
operations of $84.9 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of approximately 18%. For fiscal 2001, we
recorded an income tax benefit of $12.5 million on a pre-tax loss from continuing operations of

$130.6 million, resulting in an effective rate of approximately 10%. For fiscal 2000, we recorded an income tax
provision of $216.6 million on pre-tax income of $538.7 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of
approximately 40%. Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2002 differs from the federal statutory rate primarily due to
a tax benefit related to a divestiture that became available during the year and tax-exempt interest income,
offset by non-deductible merger related charges. Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2001 differs from the federal
statutory rate primarily due to the net effect of non-deductible merger and divestiture related charges offset by
the benefit we received from tax-exempt interest income. Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2000 differs from the
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federal statutory rate primarily due to the net effect of non-deductible merger charges offset by the benefit
received from tax-exempt interest income.

As of July 31, 2002, we had net deferred tax assets of $244.4 million, which included a valuation allowance of
$9.3 million for net operating loss carryforwards relating to our international subsidiaries and certain state
capital loss carryforwards. The allowance reflects management’s assessment that we may not receive the
benefit of certain loss carryforwards of our international subsidiaries and capital loss carryforwards in certain
state jurisdictions. While we believe our current valuation allowance is sufficient, it may be necessary to
increase this amount if it becomes more likely that we will not realize a greater portion of the net deferred tax
assets. We assess the need for an adjustment to the valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. See Note 20 of
the financial statements.

Discontinued Operations

We acquired the Quicken Loans business in December 1999 in a transaction that was accounted for as a
pooling of interests. Accordingly, we did not record any goodwill or other intangible assets.

On July 31, 2002, we sold our Quicken Loans mortgage business segment and received consideration in the
form of a five-year interest bearing promissory note in the principal amount of $23.3 million. This amount
exceeded the net shareholders’ equity of Quicken Loans by $23.3 million. We accounted for the sale as
discontinued operations. In accordance with APB No. 30, the operating results of Quicken Loans have been
segregated from continuing operations in our statements of operations for fiscal years 2000, 2001 and 2002
and are shown on a single line captioned net income (loss) from Quicken Loans discontinued operations. The
sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of $23.3 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. We did not record the tax
benefit related to the gain on the transaction because we cannot be assured that we will realize the tax benefit.
See Note 11 of the financial statements.

Concurrent with the sale, we signed an agreement to license the Quicken Loans brand and a distribution
agreement under which the purchasing company will provide mortgage services on Quicken.com. We will
receive minimum royalties of $1.8 million a year for the next five years under the licensing agreement and
minimum fees of $0.8 million a year for the next five years under the distribution agreement. Royalties and
fees under these agreements will be recorded as earned and included in other income on our statement

of operations.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

During the first quarter of fiscal 2001, we recorded a cumulative gain of $14.3 million, net of taxes, as a result
of a change in accounting principle when we adopted SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” We recognized the cumulative effect of the change in how we accounted for options to
purchase shares of S1 Corporation as of August 1, 2000. See Note 1 of the financial statements. Subsequent
fluctuations in the fair value of these options were included in our net income or net loss until we sold them
in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At July 31, 2002 our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $1,250.4 million, a
$36.8 million increase from July 31, 2001.

We generated $358.2 million in cash from our operations during fiscal 2002. The primary components of cash
provided by operations were net income from continuing operations of $69.8 million and adjustments made
for non-cash expenses, including acquisition-related charges and amortization of purchased software of
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$194.0 million, depreciation charges of $59.9 million and an impairment loss on a long-lived asset of
$27.0 million.

We used $25.6 million in cash for investing activities during fiscal 2002. Our primary use of cash was for
business acquisitions, which totaled $278.3 million net of cash we acquired. Our short-term investments
decreased $304.0 million during the fiscal year, with proceeds of $3.15 billion from the sale upon maturity of
certain short-term investments partially offset by reinvestments of $2.85 billion. As a result of our continued
investment in information systems and infrastructure, we also purchased property and equipment of

$42.6 million and capitalized internal use software development projects of $21.3 million in fiscal 2002.

We used $210.5 million in cash for our financing activities in fiscal 2002. The primary component of cash
used was $318.4 million for the repurchase of treasury stock through our stock repurchase program. See
Note 17 of the financial statements. This was partially offset by proceeds of $133.6 million we received from
the issuance of common stock under employee stock plans.

In the normal course of business, we enter into leases for new or expanded facilities in both domestic and
global locations. We also evaluate, on an ongoing basis, the merits of acquiring technology or businesses, or
establishing strategic relationships with and investing in other companies. We may decide to use cash and
cash equivalents to fund such activities in the future.

In May 2001, Intuit’s Board of Directors authorized the company to repurchase up to $500 million of
common stock over a three-year period. In July 2002, our Board of Directors increased the authorized purchase
amount by $250 million. The stock repurchase program is intended to help offset some of the dilution
resulting from the issuance of shares under Intuit’s employee stock plans. At July 31, 2002, we had
repurchased a total of $326.8 million of common stock since the inception of the program.

In connection with the sale of our Quicken Loans mortgage business in July 2002, we have agreed to continue
providing to the purchasing company an interest-bearing line of credit of up to $375.0 million to fund
mortgage loans for a transition period of up to six months. The line expires on January 31, 2003. The line is
secured by the related mortgage loans and had an outstanding balance of $245.6 million at July 31, 2002. See
Note 11 of the financial statements.

Loans to executive officers and other employees totaled $12.9 million at July 31, 2001 and $21.3 million at
July 31, 2002. Loans to executive officers are primarily relocation loans and none of these were made or
modified since July 31, 2002. Loans are generally interest-bearing, secured by real property and have maturity
dates of up to 10 years. See Note 22 of the financial statements.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments will be sufficient to meet anticipated
seasonal working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the next twelve months.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at July 31, 2002:

Payments Due by Period

(In millions) Less than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
Contractual Obligations year years years years Total
Restricted cash ......... ... . .. $11.3 $ — 8§ — $ —  §$113
Short-term notes payable.............. ... ... . ... L 17.9 — — 17.9
Long-term debt ...... ... .. . . — 8.1 2.7 3.8 14.6
Operating 1eases. .. ... 31.2 50.6 41.9 29.5 153.2
Other obligations ........ ... ... .. 25.4 — — — 25.4
Total contractual cash obligations ......................... ... ... $85.8 $58.7  $44.6 $33.3 $222.4




Restricted cash July 31, 2002 included $5.8 million that we held in escrow in connection with our fiscal 2002
acquisition of CBS Employer Services, Inc. The escrow period expires in June 2003. Restricted cash also
included $5.5 million for rebates due our customers.

Other obligations at July 31, 2002 consisted primarily of amounts we owe to former stockholders of CBS
Employer Services, Inc. in connection with Intuit’s acquisition of that company in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2002. This contractual obligation is included in other current liabilities on our balance sheet. See Notes 9 and
15 of the financial statements.

Recent Pronouncements

On June 29, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS 141, “Business
Combinations,” and SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

SFAS 141 supercedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting for business combinations, thus requiring that all business combinations be accounted
for using the purchase method. In addition, in applying the purchase method, SFAS 141 changes the criteria
for recognizing intangible assets other than goodwill and states that the following criteria should be
considered in determining the classification of intangible assets: (1) whether the intangible asset arises from
contractual or other legal rights, or (2) whether the intangible asset is separable or dividable from the acquired
entity and capable of being sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. If neither criteria is met, the
intangible assets are classified as goodwill and are not amortized. We have applied the requirements of

SFAS 141 to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

SFAS 142 supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets,” and provides that goodwill and other intangible
assets that have an indefinite useful life will no longer be amortized. However, these assets must be reviewed
for impairment at least annually or more frequently if an event occurs indicating the potential for
impairment. The shift from an amortization approach to an impairment approach applies to all acquisitions
completed after June 30, 2001. The additional goodwill amortization charge for businesses we acquired
subsequent to June 30, 2001 would have been approximately $8.8 million in fiscal 2002 had this new
standard not been in place. Total goodwill amortization expense, including impairments, was $139.5 million
in fiscal 2001 and $122.6 million in fiscal 2002. We adopted the remaining elements of this new standard in
the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and therefore ceased goodwill amortization for acquisitions made prior to July 1,
2001. However, it is possible that in the future we may incur impairment charges related to the goodwill
already recorded and to goodwill arising out of future acquisitions. In addition, we will continue to amortize
most purchased intangible assets and to assess those assets for impairment as appropriate.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation under SFAS 142, we will perform an
assessment of goodwill impairment as of August 1, 2002, the date of adoption. To accomplish this, we will
identify our reporting units and determine the carrying value of each of them by assigning the assets and
liabilities, including existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption.
We will then have up to six months from the date of adoption to determine the fair value of each reporting
unit and compare it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. To the extent that a reporting unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit’s goodwill may be impaired and we
must perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second step, we must compare the
implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount, both of which will be measured as
of the date of adoption. The implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is determined by allocating the
reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities in a manner similar
to a purchase price allocation in accordance with SFAS 141. This second step is required to be completed as
soon as possible, but no later than the end of the year of adoption. Any transitional impairment loss will be
recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the statement of operations.
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As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142 on August 1, 2002, we had an unamortized acquired intangible assets
balance of approximately $123.6 million, excluding the balance of approximately $1.9 million for assembled
workforce reclassified to goodwill. As of that date, we also had an unamortized goodwill balance of
approximately $430.8 million which included the amount of assembled workforce reclassified to goodwill.
These balances will be subject to the transitional provisions of SFAS 141 and 142. Transitional impairment
losses that may be required to be recognized upon adoption of SFAS 141 and 142 are indeterminable at

this time.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
which applies to financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 144
supersedes FASB Statement 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
Be Disposed Of,” and portions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations.” SFAS 144 provides a
single accounting model for long-lived assets we expect to dispose of and significantly changes the criteria for
classifying an asset as held-for-sale. This classification is important because held-for-sale assets are not
depreciated and are stated at the lower of fair value or carrying amount. SFAS 144 also requires expected future
operating losses from discontinued operations to be displayed in the period(s) in which the losses are actually
incurred, rather than when the amount of the loss is estimated, as presently required. We adopted SFAS 144
effective August 1, 2002 and do not expect the adoption of SFAS 144 to have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In November 2001, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force released Issue No. 01-9, “Accounting for Consideration
Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Product,” which applies to annual or interim
financial statement periods beginning after December 15, 2001. The release provides that cash consideration
(including sales incentives) that we give to our customers or resellers should be accounted for as a reduction of
revenue rather than as an operating expense unless we receive a benefit that we can identify and reasonably
estimate. We adopted this new release beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2002. The adoption of EITF Issue
No. 01-9 did not have a material impact on our total net revenue and as a result we did not reclassify prior
period financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit and Disposal Activities.” This
statement revises the accounting for exit and disposal activities under EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.” A formal commitment to a plan to
exit an activity or dispose of long-lived assets will no longer be sufficient to record a one-time charge for most
exit and disposal costs. Instead, companies will record exit or disposal costs when they are incurred and can be
measured at fair value, and will subsequently adjust the recorded liability for changes in estimated cash flows.
The provisions of SFAS 146 are effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002. Companies may not restate previously issued financial statements for the effect of the provisions of
SFAS 146 and liabilities that a company previously recorded under EITF Issue No. 94-3 are not affected. We do
not believe that the adoption of SFAS 146 will have a material impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
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RISKS THAT COULD AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Company-Wide Factors That Could Affect Future Results

Our revenue and earnings are highly seasonal. Seasonality and other factors cause significant quarterly and annual
fluctuations in our revenue and net income. Several of our businesses are highly seasonal — particularly our tax
businesses, but also small business and personal finance to a lesser extent. This causes significant quarterly
fluctuations in our financial results. Revenue and operating results are usually strongest during the second and
third fiscal quarters ending January 31 and April 30. We experience lower revenues, and often significant
operating losses, in the first and fourth quarters ending October 31 and July 31. Our financial results can also
fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year due to a variety of factors, including changes in product
release dates, and the timing of acquisitions, dispositions, goodwill and intangible assets impairment charges
and gains and losses related to marketable securities.

Fluctuations in interest rates can cause significant quarterly and annual fluctuations in our net income, earnings per
share and asset values. Recent declines in interest rates have resulted in a significant decline in the interest
income we earned on our investment portfolio during recent reporting periods, which has had a negative
impact on our net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share. Declining interest rates can also reduce the
value of our interest rate sensitive assets, such as certain assets that relate to our payroll business. See Item 7A,
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk”” for more details.

Our recent acquisitions have presented business integration challenges and we may not fully realize the intended benefits
of these acquisitions. During the past few years, we have completed numerous acquisitions, including five
during fiscal 2002. These acquisitions have expanded our product and service offerings, personnel and
geographic locations. Integrating and organizing acquired businesses creates challenges for our operational,
financial and management information systems, as well as for our product development processes. We might
not be able to coordinate the diverse operating structures, policies and practices of companies we have
acquired or successfully integrate the employees of the acquired companies into our organization and culture,
which could harm employee morale and productivity. These difficulties may be increased by the various
geographic locations of our acquired businesses, which include Colorado, Connecticut, Ohio and Texas. If we
do not adequately address issues presented by growth through acquisitions, we may not fully realize the
intended benefits (including financial benefits) of these acquisitions.

We expect to continue to make acquisitions, which could put a strain on our resources and adversely affect our financial
results. A key component of our Right for My Business strategy is to continue to expand our product and
service offerings, and we expect that a significant portion of this expansion will result from acquisitions.
Integrating newly acquired organizations and technologies into our business could put a strain on our
resources and be expensive and time consuming. In addition, we may not succeed in integrating acquired
businesses or technologies and may not achieve anticipated financial benefits. Our acquisition strategy and
future acquisitions could also result in the following risks:

* Increased competition for acquisition opportunities could inhibit our ability to complete suitable
acquisitions, and could also increase the price we would have to pay to complete acquisitions.

e If we are unable to complete acquisitions successfully, we may not be able to develop and market
products for new industries or applications with which we may not be familiar.

* Despite our due diligence reviews, acquired businesses may bring with them unanticipated liabilities,
business or legal risks or operating costs that could harm our results of operations or business, reduce
or eliminate any benefits of the acquisition or require unanticipated expenses.
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* If we fail to retain the services of key employees of acquired companies for significant time periods
after the acquisition of their companies, we may experience difficulty in managing the acquired
company’s business and not realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition.

e The accounting treatment of acquisitions can result in significant acquisition-related accounting
charges and expenses that would reduce our reported results of operations both at the time of the
acquisition and in future periods.

e Future acquisitions may require us to issue shares of our stock and stock options to owners of the
acquired businesses, which would result in dilution to the equity interests of our stockholders.

Acquisition-related costs can cause significant fluctuation in our net income. Our recent acquisitions have resulted
in significant expenses, including amortization of purchased software (which is reflected in cost of revenue), as
well as charges for in-process research and development, and amortization and impairment of goodwill,
purchased intangibles and deferred compensation (which are reflected in operating expenses). Total
acquisition-related costs in the categories identified above were $166.5 million in fiscal 2000, $263.4 million in
fiscal 2001 (including charges of $78.7 million to write down the long-lived intangible assets related to three
acquisitions), and $196.2 million in fiscal 2002 (including charges of $27.3 million to write down the
long-lived intangible assets related to two acquisitions). Additional acquisitions, and any additional
impairment of the value of purchased assets, could have a significant negative impact on our future

operating results.

Recent changes to Financial Accounting Standards Board guidelines relating to accounting for goodwill could make our
acquisition-related charges less predictable in any given reporting period. The new FASB standard for accounting for
goodwill acquired in a business combination applies to all acquisitions initiated after June 30, 2001. In the first
quarter of fiscal 2003, we adopted the new standard for acquisitions we completed before June 30, 2001.
Under the new standard, we must continue to recognize goodwill as an asset but will not amortize goodwill as
previously required. Instead, we must separately test goodwill for impairment using a fair-value-based approach
at least annually and also when an event occurs indicating the potential for impairment. As a result of this
shift from an amortization approach to an impairment approach, we will stop recording charges for goodwill
amortization. However, it is possible that in the future, we may incur less frequent, but larger, impairment
charges related to the goodwill already recorded and to goodwill arising out of future acquisitions as we
continue to expand our business. As of August 1, 2002, we had an unamortized goodwill balance of
approximately $430.8 million, which included the amount of assembled workforce reclassified to goodwill.
These amounts could be subject to impairment charges in the future.

If we are required to account for options under our employee stock plans as a compensation expense, it would
significantly reduce our net income and earnings per share. There has been increasing public debate about the
proper accounting treatment for employee stock options. Although we are not currently required to record any
compensation expense in connection with option grants that have an exercise price at or above fair market
value, it is possible that future laws or regulations will require us to treat all stock options as a compensation
expense. Note 17 of the financial statements shows the impact that such a change in accounting treatment
would have had on our net income and earnings per share if it had been in effect during the past three fiscal
years and if the compensation expense were calculated as described in Note 17.

A general decline in economic conditions could lead to reduced demand for our products and services. The continuing
downturn in general economic conditions has led to reduced demand for a variety of goods and services,
including software and other technology products. We believe the economic decline was partially responsible
for slower than expected growth in our Small Business segment during fiscal 2001 and the first half of fiscal
2002. Although we experienced solid revenue growth in most of our businesses during the second half of fiscal
2002, the future economic environment remains uncertain. If conditions decline, or fail to improve, in
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geographic areas that are significant to us, such as the United States, Canada and Japan, we could see a
significant decrease in the overall demand for our products and services that could harm our operating results.

If we do not continue to successfully develop new products and services in a timely manner, our future financial results
will suffer. We believe that it is necessary to continually develop new products and services and to improve
existing products and services to remain competitive in the markets we serve. Failure to do so may give
competitors opportunities to improve their competitive position at our expense and result in declines in our
revenue and earnings. However, developing and improving our products and services is a complex process
involving several risks. Hiring and retaining highly qualified technical employees is critical to the success of
our development efforts, and we face intense competition for these employees. Launches of products and
services can be delayed for a variety of reasons. New or improved products and services may also have defects
that hinder performance. Third-party products we incorporate in, or use to build and support, our products
and services may also contain defects that impair performance. These problems can be expensive to fix and
can also result in higher technical support costs and lost customers. New products or features are sometimes
built on top of older architectures or infrastructures, which can take longer to bring to market, make quality
assurance and support more difficult, and lead to complexity in supporting future functionality.

The expansion of our product and service offerings through internal growth and through recent and anticipated
acquisitions creates risks due to the number and complexity of our revenue models and the operational infrastructure
required to support our expanded portfolio of products and services. 'The business models for our expanding range
of products and services rely on more complex and varied revenue streams than our traditional desktop
software businesses. In particular, the revenue recognition practices of several of the businesses we have
recently acquired are more complex than the revenue recognition principles that apply to our existing
products and services. We expect this trend to continue with future acquisitions. As a result of both
acquisitions and internal growth, we expect to continue expanding our product offerings to larger enterprises,
and we may begin to offer additional features and options as part of multiple-element sales arrangements.
These dynamics may require us to defer a higher percentage of our product revenue at the time of sale than
we do for current products, which would decrease revenue at the time products are shipped, but result in
more revenue in fiscal periods after shipment. In addition, many of our newer businesses depend on a
different operational infrastructure than our desktop software businesses, and we must continually develop,
expand and modify our internal systems and procedures — including call center, customer management, order
management, billing and other systems — to support these businesses. In particular, the success of our
Internet-based services requires us to maintain continuous and reliable operations at our data center. Despite
our efforts, like all providers of Internet-based products and services, we occasionally experience unplanned
outages or technical difficulties. Lengthy and/or frequent service outages — particularly for services that
customers consider time-sensitive — can result in negative publicity, damage to our reputation and

lost customers.

Despite our efforts to adequately staff and equip our customer service and technical support operations, we cannot
always respond promptly to customer requests for assistance. 'We occasionally experience customer service and
support problems, including longer than expected “hold” times when our staffing is inadequate to handle
higher than anticipated call volume, and a large number of inquiries from customers checking on the status of
product orders when the timing of shipments fails to meet customer expectations. This can adversely affect
customer relationships and our financial performance. In order to improve our customer service and technical
support, we must continue to focus on eliminating underlying causes of service and support calls through
product improvements and better order fulfillment processes, and on more accurately anticipating demand for
customer service and technical support.

We face risks relating to customer privacy and security and increasing regulation, which could hinder the growth of our
businesses. Despite our efforts to address customer concerns about privacy and security, these issues still pose
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a significant risk, and we have experienced lawsuits and negative publicity relating to privacy issues. For
example, during fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2001, there were press articles criticizing our privacy and security
practices as they relate to the connectivity of our desktop software to our Web sites. We have faced lawsuits
and negative press alleging that we improperly shared information about customers with third-party “‘ad
servers” for our Web sites. A major breach of customer privacy or security by Intuit, or even by another
company, could have serious consequences for our businesses, including reduced customer interest and/or
additional regulation by federal or state agencies. In addition, the federal government has developed
mandatory privacy and security standards and protocols, and we have incurred significant expenses to comply
with these requirements. Additional similar federal and state laws, and/or laws that govern telemarketing
activity, may be passed in the future, and the cost of complying with additional legislation could have a
negative impact on our operating results. If Internet use does not grow as a result of privacy or security
concerns, increasing regulation or for other reasons, the growth of our Internet-based businesses would

be hindered.

We face several risks relating to our retail distribution channel. 'We face ongoing challenges in negotiating
favorable terms (including financial terms) with retailers, due in part to the recent trend of declining
importance of software as a retail category. In addition, any termination or significant disruption of our
relationship with any of our major resellers could result in a decline in our net revenue. Also, any financial
difficulties of our resellers could have an adverse effect on our operating expenses if uncollectible amounts
from them exceed the bad debt reserves we have established.

We rely on third-party vendors to handle substantially all outsourced aspects of manufacturing and distribution for our
primary retail desktop software products. To manufacture and distribute our primary retail products at the time
of product launches and to replenish products in the retail channel after the primary launch, we have
manufacturing relationships with Modus Media and Sony, and a distribution arrangement with Ingram Micro
Logistics. While we believe that relying on only three outsourcers for product launches and replenishment
improves the efficiency and reliability of these activities, relying on any vendor for a significant aspect of our
business can have severe negative consequences if the vendor fails to perform at acceptable service levels for
any reason, including but not limited to financial difficulties of the vendor.

Actual product returns may exceed returns reserves, particularly for our consumer tax preparation software. 'We ship
more desktop software products to our distributors and retailers than we expect them to sell, in order to
reduce the risk that distributors or retailers will run out of products. This is particularly true for our consumer
tax products, which have a short selling season. Like most software companies, we have a liberal product
return policy and we have historically accepted significant product returns. We establish reserves for product
returns in our financial statements, based on estimated future returns of products. See ‘“Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies — Net
Revenue — Return and Rebate Reserves.” We closely monitor levels of product sales and inventory in the retail
channel in an effort to maintain reserves that are adequate to cover expected returns. In the past, returns have
not generally exceeded these reserves. However, if we do experience actual returns that significantly exceed
reserves, it would result in lower net revenue.

We face existing and potential government regulation in many of our businesses, which can increase our costs and
hinder the growth of our businesses. We offer some regulated products and services through separate subsidiary
corporations. Establishing and maintaining regulated subsidiaries can requires significant financial, legal and
management resources. If any regulated subsidiary fails to comply with applicable regulations, it could face
liability to customers and/or penalties and sanctions by government regulators. In addition, our Internet-based
products and services are available in many states and foreign countries. As a result, we may be subject to
regulation and/or taxation in many additional jurisdictions, which could substantially slow commercial use of
the Internet and growth of our Internet-based businesses.
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Gains and losses related to marketable securities and other investments can cause significant fluctuations in our net
income. Our investment activities have had a significant impact on our net income. We recorded pre-tax net
gains from marketable securities and other investments of $481.1 million in fiscal 2000 and pre-tax net losses
of $98.1 million in fiscal 2001 and $15.5 million in fiscal 2002. As of July 31, 2002, our marketable securities
balance was $16.8 million. Any additional significant long-term declines in value of these securities could
reduce our net income in future periods.

Legal protection for our intellectual property is not always effective to prevent unauthorized use or copying. We rely on
a combination of copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret laws, and employee and third-party
nondisclosure and license agreements to protect our software products and other proprietary technology.
Current U.S. laws that prohibit copying give us only limited practical protection from software “pirates,” and
the laws of many other countries provide very little protection. Policing unauthorized use of our products is
difficult, expensive and time-consuming. Although we have begun to incorporate product activation
technology in some of our tax preparation products in order to reduce unauthorized sharing of the products,
we expect that software piracy will continue to be a persistent problem for our desktop software products. In
addition, the Internet may tend to increase, and provide new methods for, illegal copying of the technology
used in our desktop and Internet-based products and services. We also face risks relating to our licensing of our
intellectual property to third parties. In connection with our sale of our Quicken Loans mortgage business, we
licensed the use of the Quicken Loans and Quicken Mortgage trademarks to the purchaser. If the purchaser
violates the terms of the trademark license, it could result in serious and irreparable harm to Intuit’s reputation
and the value of its Quicken-related brands.

We do not own all of the software and other technologies used in our products and services. We have the licenses
from third parties that we believe are necessary for using technology that we do not own in our current
products and services. From time to time we may be required to renegotiate with these third parties to include
their technology in our existing products, in new versions of our current products or in new products. We
may not be able to renegotiate licenses on reasonable terms, or at all.

We may unintentionally infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, which could expose us to substantial
damages or restrict our business operations. As the number of our products and services increases and their
features and content continue to expand, we may increasingly become subject to infringement claims by third
parties. Although we believe that we make reasonable efforts to ensure that our products and services do not
violate the intellectual property rights of others, it is possible that third parties still may claim infringement.
From time to time, we have received communications from third parties in which the claimant alleges that a
product or service we offer infringes the claimant’s intellectual property rights. Occasionally these
communications result in lawsuits. In many of these cases, it is difficult to assess the extent to which the
intellectual property that is being asserted is valid or the extent to which we have any material exposure. Past
claims have not resulted in any significant litigation, settlement or licensing expenses, but future claims could
present an exposure of uncertain magnitude. Existing or future infringement claims or lawsuits against us,
whether valid or not, may be time consuming and expensive to defend. Intellectual property litigation or
claims could force us to do one or more of the following: cease selling, incorporating or using products or
services that incorporate the challenged intellectual property; obtain a license from the holder of the infringed
intellectual property, which may not be available on commercially favorable terms or at all; or redesign our
software products or services, possibly in a manner that reduces their commercial appeal. Any of these actions
may cause material harm to our business and financial results.

Our ability to conduct business could be impacted by a variety of factors, such as electrical power interruptions,
earthquakes, fires, terrorist activities and other similar events. Our business operations depend on the efficient and
uninterrupted operation of a large number of computer and communications hardware and software systems.
These systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from electrical power interruptions,
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telecommunication failures, earthquakes, fires, floods, terrorist activities and their aftermath, and other similar
events. Other unpredictable events could also impact our ability to continue our business operations. For our
Internet-based services, system failures of our internal server operations or those of various third-party service
providers could result in interruption in our services to our customers. Any significant interruptions in our
ability to conduct our business operations could reduce our revenue and operating income. Our business
interruption insurance may not adequately compensate us for the impact of interruptions to our

business operations.

Factors Relating to Competition

We face competitive pressures in all of our businesses, which can have a negative impact on our revenue, profitability
and market position. There are formidable current and potential competitors, including competition from
publicly-funded state government entities in the consumer tax area. Accordingly, we expect competition to
remain intense during fiscal 2003 and beyond. In all our businesses, we face continual risks that competitors
will introduce better products and services, reduce prices, gain better access to distribution channels, increase
advertising (including advertising targeted at Intuit customers), and release new products and services before
we do. Any of these competitive actions (particularly any prolonged price competition) could result in lower
net revenue and/or lower profitability for Intuit. They could also affect our ability to keep existing customers
and acquire new customers.

In the small business and employer services areas, we face a wide range of competitive risks that could impact our
financial results. Our small business products and services face current competition from competitors’ desktop
software, as well as from other Web-based small business services products. Microsoft offers several products
and services targeted at similar size customers as our high-end QuickBooks products, and has recently acquired
additional products and services that compete with our small business offerings. Other competitors and
potential competitors have begun providing, or have expressed significant interest in providing, accounting
and business management products and services to small businesses. As we implement our Right for My
Business strategy we face increased competitive threats from larger companies in bigger markets than we have
historically faced. For example, we face direct competition in our Intuit Payroll Services — Complete Payroll
business from traditional payroll services offered by a number of companies, including Paychex and ADP. Our
financial supplies business faces ongoing pricing pressures from many of our competitors.

We face intense competitive pressures in our consumer tax preparation software business, which can have a negative
impact on our revenue, profitability and market position. There are formidable current and potential competitors
in the private sector. We also face competition from publicly-funded state government entities that offer
individual taxpayers electronic tax preparation and filing services, at no cost to individual taxpayers. If state
governmental agencies were to be successful in their efforts to develop consumer tax preparation and filing
services and to gain consumer acceptance of those services, it could have a significant negative impact on our
financial results in future years. The federal government announced a proposal in August 2002 that would
mitigate the risk of government encroachment in federal tax preparation and filing services. The policy
proposes that, for at least the next three years, a number of private sector companies, rather than the federal
government, would provide Web-based federal tax preparation and filing services at no cost to lower income
taxpayers and other underserved taxpayers through voluntary public service initiatives such as our Intuit Tax
Freedom Project. Despite this positive development, future administrative, regulatory or legislative activity in
this area could adversely impact Intuit and other companies that provide tax preparation software and
services. Intuit is actively working with others in the private sector, as well as with state government policy
makers, to help clarify the appropriate roles for government agencies and the private sector in the electronic
commerce marketplace.

Our personal finance products face aggressive competition that could have a negative impact on revenue, profitability
and market position. Our Quicken products compete directly with Microsoft Money, which is aggressively
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promoted and priced. We expect competitive pressures for Quicken to continue, both from Microsoft Money
and from Web-based personal finance tracking and management tools that are becoming increasingly available
at no cost to consumers. Competitive pressures can result in reduced revenue and lower profitability for our
Quicken product line. There are many competitors for our Internet-based personal finance products and
services. However, the general downturn in Internet and technology stocks since March 2000 has resulted in
significant consolidation, with fewer, but more financially sound, competitors surviving. This could make it
more difficult for us to compete effectively.

Specific Factors Affecting Small Business

It is too early to provide any assurance that our Right for My Business strategy will generate substantial and sustained
revenue growth in the small business accounting and business management segments. A key component of our
Right for My Business strategy is to continue to expand our small business accounting and management
products and services, through internal growth and from acquisitions. We don’t expect that sales of our
QuickBooks desktop products alone will be adequate to meet our growth goals. We must generate revenue
from a wider range of market and customer segments as well as from new products and services. There are a
number of risks associated with the strategy, including the following:

e OQur strategy depends on our successfully completing acquisitions and integrating acquired companies,
which presents a number of challenges as described above under “Company-Wide Factors That Could
Affect Future Results.”

e OQur strategy is resulting in a dramatic increase in the number and complexity of the products and
services that we offer. This is placing greater demands on our research and development, marketing
and sales resources, as we must develop, market and sell both the new products and services as well as
periodic enhancements to an expanding portfolio of products and services. This will also require us to
continually develop, expand and modify our internal business operations systems and procedures to
support new businesses, including our customer service and technical support call centers, and our
customer management, order management, billing and other systems.

e Many of the new products and services we are and will be offering are much more complex than our
traditional core desktop software products and are being priced accordingly. They will therefore require
a more consultative sales process, and a higher level of post-sales support. If we are not able to
effectively adapt our marketing, sales, distribution and customer support functions to accommodate
these changes, we will not succeed in generating significant or sustained revenue from these
new businesses.

Our financial supplies business relies on two key single-source vendors. We have an exclusive contract with John H.
Harland Company to print and fulfill supplies orders for all of our checks and most other products for our
financial supplies business. Harland fulfilled orders for about 75% to 80% of our supplies revenue in fiscal
2000 and 2001, and about 85% of our supplies revenue in fiscal 2002. We believe that relying on one vendor
improves customer service and maximizes operational efficiencies for our supplies business. However, if there
are significant problems with Harland’s performance, it could have a material negative impact on sales of
supplies and on Intuit’s business as a whole. We also have a sole-source vendor that operates our supplies sales
website. If there are any significant problems with this vendor’s performance, it could have a negative impact
on supplies revenue.

Specific Factors Affecting Employer Services

Our employer services business faces a number of risks that could have a negative impact on revenue and profitability.
For our employer services, we must be able to process customer data accurately, reliably and in a timely
manner in order to attract and retain customers and avoid the costs associated with errors. For example, if we
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make errors in providing accurate and timely payroll information, cash deposits or tax return filings, we face
potential liability to customers, additional expense to correct product errors and loss of customers. For our
Internet-based offerings (including QuickBooks Do-it-Yourself Payroll and QuickBooks Assisted Payroll), we
must also continue to improve our operations to provide reliable connectivity to our data centers to enable
customers to transmit and receive data. In order to generate sustained growth for our Intuit Payroll Services —
Complete Payroll, we will be required to successfully develop and manage a more extensive and proactive
direct field sales operation, which is a different distribution method than those we have historically relied on.
For future employer services we face the risk of potential delays in technology development, as well as
dependency on the performance of third parties that may be key to our ability to deliver certain services. We
also face the risk that we may not be able to successfully cross-sell employee administration products and
services to the existing base of QuickBooks customers.

Specific Factors Affecting our Tax Businesses

We face intense competitive pressures in our consumer tax preparation software business, which can have a negative
impact on our revenue, profitability and market position. There are formidable current and potential competitors
in the private sector. We also face competition from publicly funded state government entities If state
governmental agencies were to be successful in their efforts to develop consumer tax preparation and filing
services and to gain consumer acceptance of those services, it could have a significant negative impact on our
financial results in future years. We expect competition to remain intense during fiscal 2003 and beyond.

If we fail to maintain reliable and responsive service levels for our electronic tax offerings, we could lose revenue and
customers. Our Web-based tax preparation and electronic filing services must effectively handle extremely
heavy customer demand during the peak tax season. We face significant challenges in maintaining high
service levels, particularly during peak volume service times. For example, we experienced relatively brief
unscheduled interruptions in our electronic filing/and or tax preparation services during fiscal 2000 and 2001,
and we reached maximum capacity for a short period on April 15, 2002. We do not believe any prior service
outages had a material financial impact, prevented a significant number of customers from completing and
filing their returns in a timely manner, or posed a risk that customer data would be lost or corrupted.
However, we did experience negative publicity in some instances. The exact level of demand for Quicken
TurboTax for the Web and electronic filing is impossible to predict. If we are unable to meet customer
expectations in a cost-effective manner, we could lose customers, receive negative publicity and incur increased
operating costs, any of which could have a significant negative impact on the financial and market success of
these businesses.

Significant problems or delays in the development of our tax products would result in lost revenue and customers. The
development of tax preparation software presents a unique challenge because of the demanding annual
development cycle required to incorporate unpredictable tax law and tax form changes each year. The rigid
development timetable increases the risk of errors in the products and the risk of launch delays. Any major
defects could lead to negative publicity, customer dissatisfaction and incremental operating expenses —
including expenses resulting from our commitment to reimburse penalties and interest paid by consumer
customers due solely to calculation errors in our products. A late product launch could cause our current and
prospective customers to choose a competitor’s product for that year’s tax season or to choose not to purchase
tax preparation software. This would result in lost revenue in the current year and would make it more
difficult for us to sell our products to those customers in future tax seasons.

Specific Factors Affecting Personal Finance

The long-term viability of personal finance business will depend on our ability to provide new products and services that
attract customers and that can generate revenue sources other than just advertising revenue. The demand for
personal finance software such as Quicken has been weakening over recent years, and the demand for Internet

52



advertising on Web sites like Quicken.com has declined precipitously. We must identify and capitalize on
additional sources of revenue to provide sustainable future growth for our personal finance business. In an
effort to stimulate customer demand and generate revenue growth, we recently launched Quicken Brokerage
powered by Siebert, an online and telephone-based securities brokerage service for Quicken and Quicken.com
customers made available through an exclusive strategic alliance with Siebert Financial Corp., the holding
company for Muriel Siebert & Co. Inc.. However, it is too early to tell whether this service will generate
sustainable revenue growth. Furthermore, it is unlikely that the brokerage service, even if successful, will by
itself be sufficient to sustain our personal finance business, so we must identify additional sources for growth.

Specific Factors Affecting our Global Business

Business conditions in international markets and other risks inherent in global operations may negatively impact our
financial performance. Conducting business globally involves many risks, including potential volatility in the
political and economic conditions of certain foreign countries; difficulties in managing operations in different
locations (including hiring and retaining management personnel); a product development process that is often
more time-consuming and costly than in the United States due in part to localization requirements;
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and unanticipated changes in foreign regulatory requirements.
In particular, the economic situation in Japan had a negative impact on global revenue and profits during
recent fiscal years.
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ITEM 7A
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Short-Term Investment Portfolio

We do not hold derivative financial instruments in our short-term investment portfolio. Our short-term
investments consist of instruments that meet quality standards consistent with our investment policy. This
policy dictates that, for short-term investments, we diversify our holdings and limit our short-term
investments with any individual issuer in a managed portfolio to a maximum of $5 million. The following
table of our short-term investments portfolio is classified by the original maturity date listed on the security:

Principal Amounts by Stated Maturity

(In thousands, except interest rates) Years Ending July 31,

2007 Fair Value
and July 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total 2002
Cash Equivalents................. $282,560 — — — — $ 282,560 $ 282,560
Average Interest Rate ......... 1.56% — — — — 1.56%
Short-term Investments ........... $230,716  $141,942 — $10,626 $432,058 $ 815342 § 815,342
Average Interest Rate ......... 1.54% 1.78% — 1.42% 1.67% 1.65%
Total Portfolio ................... $513,276  $141,942 — $10,626 $432,058 $1,097,902  $1,097,902
Average Interest Rate ......... 1.55% 1.78% — 1.42% 1.67% 1.63%

Marketable Securities

We carried balances in marketable equity securities as of July 31, 2002 that are subject to considerable market
risk due to their volatility. We considered all of our marketable securities held at that date to be available-for-
sale. If our available-for-sale securities experience further declines in fair value that are considered other-than-
temporary, we will reflect the additional loss in our net income (loss) in the period when the subsequent
impairment becomes apparent. See Note 3 of the financial statements for more information regarding our
investments in marketable securities and the impact our trading securities had on our reported net income
(loss) in prior periods.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents a component of market risk to us because significant declines in interest rates will
cause unfavorable changes in our net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share and in the value of our
interest rate sensitive assets, liabilities and commitments, particularly those that relate to our payroll business.
Interest rate movements affect the interest income earned on investments we hold in our short-term
investment portfolio and the value of those investments.

Over the past few years, we have experienced significant reductions in our interest income due to declines in
interest rates. A significant decrease in future interest rates will have a material impact on the interest income
earned on our cash equivalents and short-term investments held at July 31, 2002.

Impact of Foreign Currency Rate Changes

We translate foreign currencies (primarily Canadian dollars, Japanese yen, and British pounds) into U.S. dollars
for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, currency fluctuations can have an impact on our financial
results, though the historical impact has generally been immaterial. We believe that our exposure to currency
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exchange fluctuation risk is insignificant primarily because our global subsidiaries invoice customers and satisfy
their financial obligations almost exclusively in their local currencies. Currency exchange risk is also
minimized since foreign debt is due exclusively in local foreign currencies. For each of the three years
presented there was an immaterial currency exchange impact from our intercompany transactions. Although
the impact of currency fluctuations on our financial results has generally been immaterial in the past and we
believe that for the reasons cited above currency fluctuations will not be significant in the future, there can be
no guarantee that the impact of currency fluctuations will not be material in the future. As of July 31, 2002,
we did not engage in foreign currency hedging activities.
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ITEM 8
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

1. INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are filed as part of this Report:

Page

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors ............ ... ... i 57
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of July 31, 2002 and 2001 ............. ... ... . i ... 58
Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended

JUuly 31, 2002 . . oo 59
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended

July 31, 2002 . . oo 60
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended

July 31, 2002 . . oo 61
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ......... ... ... ... ... . . . i 62

2. INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following financial statement schedule is filed as part of this report and should be read in conjunction

with the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Schedule Page

I Valuation and Qualifying ACCounts .............. ..o 96

All other schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are inapplicable or are not required.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Intuit Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Intuit Inc. as of July 31, 2001 and 2002,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended July 31, 2002. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed
in the Index at Item 14(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Intuit Inc. at July 31, 2001 and 2002, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2002, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 14, 2002
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INTUIT INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except par value)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ........... ...
Short-term iNvestments. . ... ... ...
Marketable SeCUTITHES . .. ... ... ...
Customer dePOSILS . . ... ...
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $16,184 and $5,779 respectively
Deferred INCOME TAXES . . . .. ..ottt ettt e e e
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ................ ... i
Amounts due from discontinued operations entities ............ ... ... ... o oo
Net current assets of discontinued operations ................ ...

Total current assets. ... ... ...
Property and equipment, net. ......... ...
GoodWIll, Nt ...
Purchased intangibles, net ... ........ ... ...
Long-term deferred iNCOME taXes . ... ... ...ttt e
Long-term investments . ... ....... ...
Loans to executive officers and other employees .............. ... ... ... ..
Other assets . ... ... . ..
Net assets of discontinued operations ................. ... . .

TOtal @SSELS . . .. oottt e e

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... ...
Accrued compensation and related liabilities . ......... ... ... ... o
Payroll service obligations . ............ ..
Deferred revenue ........ ... ...
Income taxes payable . .... ... ...
Short-term note payable . . ... ... ...
Other current liabilities . . ... ... ...

Total current liabilities. . .. ... ... ...
Long-term ObLgations . . ... ... ... ...
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value

Authorized — 1,345 shares total; 145 shares designated Series A; 250 shares designated

Series B Junior Participating

Issued and outstanding — NONE . ... ...ttt
Common stock, $0.01 par value

Authorized — 750,000 shares

Issued and outstanding — 210,526 and 211,164 shares, respectively .......................
Additional paid-in capital . . ....... .
Treasury Shares, at COSt . ... .. ...ttt ettt e
Deferred COMPENSAtION . . .. ..ot
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I0SS) .. ...t
Retained earnings . .. .......... i

Total stockholders” equity .. ... ... ...
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. ... . . .

See accompanying notes.
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July 31, July 31,
2001 2002

$ 94301 § 435,087
1,119,305 815,342
85,307 16,791
205,254 300,409
26,778 56,467
73,742 67,799
31,640 50,729
355,222 252,869
57,208 —
2,048,757 1,995,493
174,659 181,758
326,815 428,948
88,320 125,474
145,905 176,553
24,107 6,765
12,859 21,270
28,500 26,765
12,351 —
$2,862,273  $2,963,026
$ 62994 § 76,669
64,325 91,507
205,067 300,381
137,041 159,758
82,486 442
38,672 17,926
98,212 86,094
688,797 732,777
12,150 14,610
2,105 2,112
1,723,385 1,844,595
(8,497) (126,107)
(21,720) (12,628)
28,180 (3,675)
437,873 511,342
2,161,326 2,215,639
$2,862,273  $2,963,026




INTUIT INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net revenue:
ProdUCES . ...

Total Net TEVENUE . ... ...
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue:

Cost Of ProdUCES . . . ...t

Cost Of SETVICES ... ... i

Cost of other revenue ........ ... ... ... .. . ..

Amortization of purchased software................... ... ... ..
Customer service and technical support ................... .. ... o ...
Selling and marketing .......... ... .. .
Research and development. .............c.oi i
General and administrative ............ ... ... oo
Charge for purchased research and development .......................... ...
Charge for vacant facilities . ............. i i
Acquisition-related charges (includes impairment charges of $78,686 in 2001 and

$22,006 in 2002) (see Note 1 regarding adoption of SFAS 142) ...............
Loss on impairment of long-lived asset............. .. ... ... ... i ..

Total costs and expenses . .............

Income (loss) from continuing operations ................... ... ... ... ...
Interest and other income ......... ... ... . . .. ..
Gains (losses) on marketable securities and other investments, net ...............
Gains (losses) on divestiture of businesses, net .................................

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and cumulative
effect of accounting change . ............ ... ... . i
Income tax (benefit) provision ............. . ..

Net income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
accounting change . ......... .. ...

Discontinued operations, net of income taxes (Note 11):
Net income (loss) from Quicken Loans discontinued operations................
Gain on disposal of Quicken Loans discontinued operations...................

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations. ............................ ...
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes of $9,543 ..........
Net income (10SS) . . ..ottt e e

Basic net income (loss) per share from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of accounting change ......... ... ... . .

Basic net income (loss) per share from discontinued operations ..................

Cumulative effect of accounting change per share ..............................

Basic net income (loss) per share ......... ... ... L.
Shares used in basic net income (loss) per share amounts .......................

Diluted net income (loss) per share from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of accounting change ......... ... ... ...

Diluted net income (loss) per share from discontinued operations................
Cumulative effect of accounting change per share ..............................

Diluted net income (loss) per share ......... ... .. ... . L.
Shares used in diluted net income (loss) per share amounts .....................

See accompanying notes.
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Fiscal

2000 2001 2002
$ 803,759 $ 834,190 $1,001,782
142,179 240,381 293,405
91,411 73,834 63,161
1,037,349 1,148,405 1,358,348
158,755 143,289 163,516
72,369 110,064 108,365
30,661 25,952 24,949
8,798 14,949 12,423
138,562 145,522 173,080
221,176 235,256 278,826
165,907 203,739 203,522
74,348 95,704 110,441
1,312 238 2,151
— — 13,237
156,357 248,179 181,616
— — 27,000
1,028,245 1,222,892 1,299,126
9,104 (74,487) 59,222
48,494 57,303 32,944
481,130 (98,053) (15,535)
— (15,315) 8,308
538,728 (130,552) 84,939
216,550 (12,473) 15,179
322,178 (118,079) 69,760
(16,517) 20,972 47,100
— — 23,300
(16,517) 20,972 70,400
— 14,314 —
$ 305661 $ (82,793) $ 140,160
$ 1.60 § 0.57) $ 0.33
(0.08) 0.10 0.33
— 0.07 —
$ 1.52 % 0.40) $ 0.66
200,770 207,959 211,794
$ 1.53 § 0.57) $ 0.32
(0.08) 0.10 0.32
— 0.07 —
$ 145 % 0.40) $ 0.64
211,271 207,959 217,897




(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at August 1, 1999 ...........
Components of comprehensive
income:
Netincome......................
Other comprehensive loss, net of
tax ...

Comprehensive income, net of tax
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of options and other ... .. ..
Issuance of restricted common stock
Issuance of common stock pursuant
to Employee Stock Purchase Plan ..
Issuance of common stock pursuant
to acquisitions ...................
Tax benefit from employee stock
option transactions ...............
Deferred stock compensation ........
Amortization of deferred
compensation....................
Stockholders’ distributions...........

Balance at July 31, 2000 ............

Components of comprehensive loss:
Netloss ..........coooiiiiiin
Other comprehensive loss, net of

Comprehensive loss, net of tax . ...
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of options and other .. ....
Issuance of common stock pursuant
to Employee Stock Purchase Plan ..
Stock repurchase ...................
Issuance of common stock pursuant
to acquisitions ...................
Tax benefit from employee stock. .. ..
option transactions ...............
Deferred stock compensation . ... ....
Amortization of deferred
compensation....................

Balance at July 31, 2001 ............
Components of comprehensive
income:
Netincome......................
Other comprehensive loss, net of
tax ...

Comprehensive income, net of tax
Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of options and other .. ....
Issuance of common stock pursuant
to Employee Stock Purchase Plan ..
Stock repurchase ...................
Issuance of common stock pursuant
to acquisitions ...................
Tax benefit from employee stock
option transactions ...............
Deferred stock compensation ... ....
Amortization of deferred
compensation. ...................

Balance at July 31, 2002 ............

INTUIT INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Other
C Stock Additional Deferred Comprehensive Retained Total
ommon Stoc Paid In  Treasury Stock Income Earnings Stockholders’

Shares Amount  Capital Stock  Compensation (Loss) (Deficit) Equity
196,348,524  $1,963  $1,265248 §  (134) — $ 79,144 $215,167 $1,561,388
— — — — — — 305,661 305,661
— — — — — (23,558) — (23,558)
282,103
6,651,953 67 80,296 — — — — 80,363
225,000 2 15,202 — (15,202) — — 2
355,281 4 9,771 — — — — 9,775
719,197 7 55,618 — — — — 55,625
— — 93,515 — — — — 93,515
— — — — (16,605) — — (16,605)
— — — — 5,285 — — 5,285
— — — — — — (162) (162)
204,299,955 2,043 1,519,650 (134) (26,522) 55,586 520,666 2,071,289
— — — — — — (82,793) (82,793)
— — — — — (27,406) — (27,406)
(110,199)
5,201,860 52 82,024 — — — — 82,076
469,873 5 14,719 — — — — 14,724
(239,542) 2) — (8,363) — — — (8,365)
794,093 7 44,779 — — — — 44,786
— — 59,546 — — — — 59,546
— — 2,667 — (2,667) — — _
— — — — 7,469 — — 7,469
210,526,239 2,105 1,723,385 (8,497) (21,720) 28,180 437,873 2,161,326
— — — — — — 140,160 140,160
— — — — — (31,855) — (31,855)
108,305
5,961,161 60 (10,178) 193,010 — — (66,691) 116,201
584,053 6 10,178 7,656 — — — 17,840
(7,361,839) (74) —  (318,276) — — — (318,350)
1,454,027 15 67,964 — — — — 67,979
— — 53,246 — — — — 53,246
— — — (1,620) — — (1,620)
— — — — 10,712 — — 10,712
211,163,641  $2,112  $1,844,595  $(126,107) $(12,628) $ (3,675 $511,342 $2,215,639

See accompanying notes.
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INTUIT INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal
2000 2001 2002
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations ............................. $ 322,178 $ (118,079) $ 69,760
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Acquisition-related charges . ............... i 156,357 248,179 181,616
Amortization of purchased software.................... ... .. ... 8,798 14,949 12,423
Amortization of deferred compensation ................ ... ... 1,266 2,531 2,534
Depreciation . ....... ... 45,927 55,586 59,887
Net (gains) losses from marketable securities and other investments ........ (481,130) 98,053 15,535
Charge for purchased research and development ......................... 1,312 238 2,151
Charge for vacant facilities . ............... — — 13,237
Loss on impairment of long-lived asset . ............. ... ... ... ... .. — — 27,000
Net (gains) losses on divestiture of businesses ............................ — 15,315 (8,308)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment ................... ... ... ... — — 3,227
Deferred income tax benefit.............. ... ... . (133,582) (73,401) (24,705)
Tax benefit from employee stock options ...................... ... ... ... 93,515 59,546 53,246
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Customer dePoSits . .. ... ...ttt (46,571) (27,460) (50,938)
Accounts receivable ... ... (3,897) 40,709 (12,592)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ................ ... ... 39,571 (12,938) (10,872)
Accounts payable . ... 13,068 (23,4006) 9,182
Accrued compensation and related liabilities ........................... 10,100 16,542 21,177
Payroll service obligations. ... ... 45,854 28,069 51,087
Deferred revenue. . ........... ... 41,584 29,727 11,845
Income taxes payable . ............. ... (8,661) (55,620) (65,284)
Other current liabilities ... ...... ... ... ... . ... ... .. . . . . . (13,828) (62,098) (2,990)
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities......................... 77,220 (66,475) (49,385)
Net cash provided by operating activities............................ 91,861 236,442 358,218
Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in other assets ............ . i i i i (36,038) 8,428 (9,552)
Purchases of property and equipment .............. ... ... oL (94,562) (48,747) (42,559)
Capitalization of internal use software............ ... ... ... ... .. . — (23,441) (21,323)
Purchases of marketable securities. ..................c.iiiinn.. (18,800) — —
Proceeds from the sale of marketable securities ............................. 681,014 29,635 23,435
Purchases of short-term investments .............................cciuoo... (2,056,060) (3,169,430) (2,849,548)
Liquidation and maturity of short-term investments ........................ 1,346,993 3,105,031 3,152,256
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired ............................ (76,714) (198,062) (278,265)
Purchases of long-term investments, net.......................coiiia... (1,656) (3,079) —
Net cash used in investing activities................................. (255,823) (299,665) (25,556)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt and notes payable ................ ... (3,323) (5,147) (25,673)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock.............................. 89,978 96,797 133,565
Purchase of treasury StOCK. .. ...t — (8,363) (318,350)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities................... 86,655 83,287 (210,458)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations....................... (69,610) (298,904) 219,012
Effect of foreign currency translation.................. ... ... i (498) 2,591 (430)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ....................... ... (147,415) (276,249) 340,786
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ............................ 517,965 370,550 94,301
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period............ ... ... . ... ... .. ... $ 370,550 § 94301 § 435,087
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid. ... ... $ 4908 $ 3,449 § 1,938
Income taxes paid .......... ... $ 270,271 $ 39,131 $ 101,645

See accompanying notes.
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INTUIT INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Intuit and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain other
previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation. As discussed in
Note 11, our Quicken Loans mortgage business has been accounted for as discontinued operations in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 30. Accordingly, we have reclassified our
financial statements for all periods presented to reflect Quicken Loans as a discontinued operation. Unless
noted otherwise, discussions herein pertain to our continuing operations.

Investments in which we intend to maintain more than a temporary 20% to 50% interest, or otherwise have
the ability to exercise significant influence, are accounted for under the equity method. Investments in which
we have less than a 20% interest and over which we do not have the ability to exercise significant influence
are carried at the lower of cost or estimated realizable value. We monitor both equity and cost basis
investments for other than temporary declines in value and make reductions in carrying values

when appropriate.

Use of Estimates

We make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the
disclosures made in the accompanying notes. Estimates are used for reserves for product returns, reserves for
rebates, determining the collectibility of accounts receivable, the valuation of deferred tax assets and other
amounts. We also use estimates to determine the remaining economic lives and carrying values of goodwill,
purchased intangibles, property and equipment and other long-lived assets. Despite our intention to establish
accurate estimates and assumptions, actual results may differ from our estimates.

Net Revenue

For our shrink-wrapped software products, we generally recognize revenue when we ship products (which is
when title passes) either to retailers and distributors or directly to end user customers. We sell certain
consumer tax products on consignment. We recognize revenue for consigned software products when the end-
user sale has been confirmed. We recognize revenue only if payment is probable and we have no significant
remaining obligations to the customer. We recognize revenue from distributors and retailers net of returns
reserves that are based on historical returns experience and other factors such as the volume and price mix of
products in the retail channel, trends in retailer inventory and economic trends that might impact customer
demand for our products. We recognize revenue from end users net of rebate reserves that are based on the
terms and conditions of the specific promotional program, actual sales during the promotion, the amount of
redemptions received, historical redemption trends by product and by type of promotional program and the
economic value of the rebate. In some situations, we receive advance payments from our customers. Revenue
associated with these advance payments is deferred until the products are shipped or services are provided. We
also reduce revenue by the estimated cost of rebates when products are shipped.

We recognize revenue from payroll processing and payroll tax filing services as the services are performed,
provided we have no other remaining obligations. We generally require customers to remit payroll and payroll
tax liability funds to us in advance of the applicable payroll due date, via electronic funds transfer. We include
in total net revenue the interest earned on invested balances resulting from timing differences between the
collection of these funds from customers and the remittance of such funds to outside parties because this
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interest income represents an integral part of the revenue generated from our services. We recognize this
interest as it is earned.

We also offer several plans under which customers pay for technical support assistance. We recognize support
revenue over the life of the plan, which is generally one year. We include costs incurred for fee-for-support
plans in cost of revenue.

We recognize revenue from other products and services when it is earned based on the nature of the particular
product or service. For products and services that we provide over a period of time, we recognize revenue pro
rata based on the contractual time period. Where we provide or deliver the product or service at a specific
point in time and there are no remaining obligations, we recognize revenue upon delivery of the product or
completion of the service.

Shipping and Handling Costs

We record costs incurred for the shipping and handling of our software products as cost of products in our
statement of operations.

Customer Service and Technical Support

Customer service and technical support costs include the costs associated with performing order processing,
answering customer inquiries by telephone and through Web sites and other electronic means and providing
free technical support assistance to customers. In connection with the sale of certain products, we provide a
limited amount of free technical support assistance to customers. We do not defer the recognition of any
revenue associated with sales of these products, since the cost of providing this free technical support is
insignificant. The technical support is provided within one year after the associated revenue is recognized and
free product enhancements are minimal and infrequent. We accrue the estimated cost of providing this free
support upon product shipment.

Software Development Costs

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 86, “Accounting for Costs of Computer Software to be
Sold, Leased, or otherwise Marketed,” requires companies to expense software development costs as they incur
them until technological feasibility has been established, at which time those costs are capitalized until the
product is available for general release to customers. To date, our software has been available for general release
concurrent with the establishment of technological feasibility and, accordingly, we have not capitalized any
development costs. SFAS 2, “Accounting for Research and Development Costs” establishes accounting and
reporting standards for research and development. In accordance with SFAS 2, costs we incur to enhance our
existing products or after the general release of the service using the product are expensed in the period they
are incurred and included in research and development costs in the statement of operations.

We capitalize costs related to the development of computer software developed or obtained for internal use in
accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Costs incurred in the application
development phase are capitalized and amortized over their useful lives, generally not to exceed three years.

Advertising

We expense advertising costs as we incur them. Advertising expense for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001
and 2002 was approximately $50.9 million, $36.9 million and $33.1 million, respectively.
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Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

We consider highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds in all periods presented.
Short-term investments consist of available-for-sale debt securities that we carry at fair value. We include
unrealized gains and losses on short-term investments, net of tax, in stockholders’ equity. Available-for-sale
debt securities are classified as current assets based upon our intent and ability to use any and all of these
securities as necessary to satisfy the significant short-term liquidity requirements that may arise from the
highly seasonal and cyclical nature of our businesses. Because of our significant business seasonality, cash flow
requirements may fluctuate dramatically from quarter to quarter and require us to use a significant amount of
the short-term investments held as available-for-sale securities. See Note 2.

Marketable Securities and Other Long-term Investments

We classify our marketable securities as available-for-sale, carry them at fair value and include unrealized gains
and losses on them, net of tax, in stockholders’ equity. We use the specific identification method to account
for gains and losses on marketable equity securities. We include realized gains and losses and declines in value
judged to be other-than-temporary on available-for-sale securities in gains (losses) on marketable securities and
other investments, net in the statement of operations. Our other long-term investments consist primarily of
equity investments in privately held companies and are stated at cost, adjusted for declines in fair value that
are considered other-than-temporary. See Note 3.

Change in Accounting Principle

During fiscal 2001, we adopted SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which
establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities. It requires us
to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and measure those instruments at
fair value. In May 1999, we completed a $50 million investment (970,813 shares) in Security First
Technologies, now known as S1 Corporation. In connection with this agreement, we received options to
purchase 4.8 million additional shares of S1 common stock, at a per share purchase price of $51.50. These
options contained a net-exercise feature. In August 2000, we recorded the cumulative effect of the change in
accounting for derivatives for our 4.8 million S1 options held in long-term investments. This resulted in a one-
time cumulative effect of $14.3 million, net of income taxes totaling $9.5 million, in the first quarter of fiscal
2001. The one-time cumulative effect created an increase of $0.07 per share in the basic and diluted net loss
per share for fiscal 2001. SFAS 133 requires the derivatives to be carried at fair value, so subsequent
fluctuations in the fair value of these options were included in our net income (loss) until we sold them. For
fiscal 2001, these fluctuations resulted in a loss of $9.7 million net of income taxes, which increased the basic
and diluted net loss per share for the period by $0.05 per share. During the first quarter of fiscal 2002, we sold
these options and recorded a realized loss of $1.9 million.

If we had adopted SFAS 133 as of the beginning of fiscal 2000, adjusted pro forma net income would have
been $299.1 million compared to reported net income of $305.7 million and adjusted pro forma diluted net
income per share would have been $1.42 compared to reported net income per share of $1.45.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. We calculate depreciation using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 30 years. We amortize
leasehold improvements using the straight-line method over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or
remaining lease terms.

64



Goodwill, Purchased Intangible Assets and Other Long-lived Assets

We record goodwill when the purchase price of net tangible and intangible assets we acquire exceeds their fair
value. We generally amortized goodwill on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 3 to 5 years in all
periods presented. However, in accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” we did not
amortize goodwill for acquisitions completed after June 30, 2001 and effective August 1, 2002 we no longer
amortize goodwill for acquisitions completed before July 1, 2001. See “Recent Pronouncements” below for more
information. We amortize the cost of identified intangibles on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 1
to 15 years.

We regularly perform reviews to determine if the carrying values of our long-lived assets are impaired. We look
for facts or circumstances, either internal or external, that indicate that we may not recover the carrying value
of the asset.

We measure impairment loss related to long-lived assets based on the amount by which the carrying amounts
of such assets exceed their fair values. Our measurement of fair value is generally based on an analysis of the
present value of estimated future discounted cash flows. Our analysis is based on available information and
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections. The discounted cash flow analysis considers the
likelihood of possible outcomes and is based on our best estimate of projected future cash flows. If necessary,
we perform subsequent calculations to measure the amount of the impairment loss based on the excess of the
carrying value over the fair value of the impaired assets.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” We
implemented both SFAS 142 and SFAS 144 beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. See “Recent
Pronouncements” below for more information.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits represent cash held on behalf of our customers in our payroll business.

Payroll Service Obligations

Payroll service obligations relate to our payroll business and consist primarily of payroll taxes we owe on
behalf of our customers.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers and Suppliers

We operate in markets that are highly competitive and rapidly changing. Significant technological changes,
changes in customer requirements, the emergence of competitive products or services with new capabilities
and other factors could negatively impact our operating results.

We are also subject to risks related to changes in the values of our significant balances of short-term
investments, marketable securities and long-term private equity investments, as well as risks related to the
collectibility of our trade accounts receivable. Our portfolio of short-term investments consists primarily of
investment-grade securities that are diversified by limiting our holdings with any individual issuer in a
managed portfolio to a maximum of $5 million. At July 31, 2002, we held approximately $16.8 million in
marketable securities, as described in Note 3. See that note for a discussion of our marketable securities. At
July 31, 2002, we also held approximately $6.8 million in long-term private equity investments, net of reserves
for declines in value that management has determined to be other-than-temporary.

We sell a significant portion of our products through third-party distributors and retailers. As a result, we face
risks related to the collectibility of our trade accounts receivable. To appropriately manage this risk, we perform
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ongoing evaluations of customer credit and limit the amount of credit extended as we deem appropriate but
generally do not require collateral. We maintain reserves for estimated credit losses and these losses have
historically been within our expectations. However, since we cannot necessarily predict future changes in the
financial stability of our customers, we cannot guarantee that our reserves will continue to be adequate.

One distributor accounted for 10% of total net revenue in fiscal 2000 and the same distributor accounted for
15% of accounts receivable at July 31, 2001. Due to changes in our distributor relationships during fiscal 2002,
we are selling an increasing proportion of our software products directly to a variety of retailers rather than
through a few major distributors. No distributor or retailer accounted for 10% or more of total net revenue in
fiscal 2001 or 2002, nor did any customer account for 10% or more of accounts receivable at July 31, 2002.

In connection with the sale of our Quicken Loans mortgage business in July 2002, we have agreed to continue
providing to the purchasing company a line of credit of up to $375.0 million to fund mortgage loans for a
transition period of up to six months. The line is secured by the related mortgage loans and had an
outstanding balance of $245.6 million at July 31, 2002. As part of the consideration for the sale of the
business, we also hold a five-year promissory note in the principal amount of $23.3 million from the
purchasing company. See Note 11.

We rely on three third party vendors to handle all outsourced aspects of our primary retail desktop software
product launches. We also have an exclusive contract with another vendor to print and fulfill orders for all of
our checks and many other products for our financial supplies business. While we believe that relying on two
vendors for product launches and replenishments and on one vendor for our supplies improves the efficiency
and reliability of these activities, relying on any one vendor for a significant aspect of our business can have a
significant negative impact on our revenue and profitability if that vendor fails to perform at acceptable
service levels.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of all our foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities of our foreign
subsidiaries are translated at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Revenue, costs and expenses are
translated at average rates of exchange in effect during the year. We report translation gains and losses as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. We include net gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange
transactions in the statement of operations and they were immaterial in all periods presented.

Recent Pronouncements

On June 29, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 141, “Business Combinations,” and
SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

SFAS 141 supercedes APB Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations,” and eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting for business combinations, thus requiring that all business combinations be accounted
for using the purchase method. In addition, in applying the purchase method, SFAS 141 changes the criteria
for recognizing intangible assets other than goodwill and states that the following criteria should be
considered in determining the classification of intangible assets: (1) whether the intangible asset arises from
contractual or other legal rights, or (2) whether the intangible asset is separable or dividable from the acquired
entity and capable of being sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. If neither criteria is met, the
intangible assets are classified as goodwill and are not amortized. We have applied the requirements of

SFAS 141 to all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001.

SFAS 142 supercedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets,” and provides that goodwill and other intangible
assets that have an indefinite useful life will no longer be amortized. However, these assets must be reviewed
for impairment at least annually or more frequently if an event occurs indicating the potential for
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impairment. The shift from an amortization approach to an impairment approach applies to all acquisitions
completed after June 30, 2001. The additional goodwill amortization charge for businesses we acquired
subsequent to June 30, 2001 would have been approximately $8.8 million in fiscal 2002 had this new
standard not been in place. Total goodwill amortization expense, including impairments, was $139.5 million
in fiscal 2001 and $122.6 million in fiscal 2002. We adopted the remaining elements of this new standard in
the first quarter of fiscal 2003 and therefore ceased goodwill amortization for acquisitions made prior to July 1,
2001. However, it is possible that in the future we may incur impairment charges related to the goodwill
already recorded and to goodwill arising out of future acquisitions. In addition, we will continue to amortize
most purchased intangible assets and to assess those assets for impairment as appropriate.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation under SFAS 142, we will perform an
assessment of goodwill impairment as of August 1, 2002, the date of adoption. To accomplish this, we will
identify our reporting units and determine the carrying value of each of them by assigning the assets and
liabilities, including existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption.
We will then have up to six months from the date of adoption to determine the fair value of each reporting
unit and compare it to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. To the extent that a reporting unit’s carrying
amount exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit’s goodwill may be impaired and we
must perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second step, we must compare the
implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill to its carrying amount, both of which will be measured as
of the date of adoption. The implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is determined by allocating the
reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities in a manner similar
to a purchase price allocation in accordance with SFAS 141. This second step is required to be completed as
soon as possible, but no later than the end of the year of adoption. Any transitional impairment loss will be
recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the statement of operations.

As of the date of adoption of SFAS 142 on August 1, 2002, we had an unamortized acquired intangible assets
balance of approximately $123.6 million, excluding the balance of approximately $1.9 million for assembled
workforce reclassified to goodwill. As of that date, we also had an unamortized goodwill balance of
approximately $430.8 million which included the amount of assembled workforce reclassified to goodwill.
These balances will be subject to the transitional provisions of SFAS 141 and 142. Transitional impairment
losses that may be required to be recognized upon adoption of SFAS 141 and 142 are indeterminable at

this time.
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The following table shows our financial results as they would have been if we had adopted the
non-amortization provisions of SFAS 142 as of the beginning of fiscal 2000:

Fiscal
2000 2001 2002
(In thousands, except per share data; pro forma figures are unaudited)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of accounting

change:

Asreported . .. ... $322,178  $(118,079) $ 69,760

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax ......... .. ... . i 76,543 92,040 82,161

Pro forma .. ... $398,721 $ (26,039) $151,921
Net income (loss):

Asreported . .. ... $305,661 $ (82,793) $140,160

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax ......... .. ... i 76,543 92,040 82,161

Pro forma .. ... $382,204 $ 9,247 $222,321
Basic income (loss) per share from continuing operations before cumulative effect of

accounting change:

AS TePOTted . . . o $ 160 $ (057 $ 033

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax ......... .. ... . i 0.38 0.44 0.39

Proforma ........ ... ... $ 198 $ (0.13) $ 072
Basic net income (loss) per share:

AS TEPOTted . . . o $ 152 $§ (040 $ 0.66

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax ......... . ... i 0.38 0.44 0.39

Pro fOrma . ... ... . $ 190 § 004 § 1.05
Diluted income (loss) per share from continuing operations before cumulative effect

of accounting change:

Asreported . . ... .. $§ 153 $ (057) § 032

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax ......... .. ... i 0.36 0.44 0.38

Proforma ... ... ... $ 18 $ (0.13) $ 0.70
Diluted net income (loss) per share:

Asreported . . ... .. $§ 145 § (0400 § 0.64

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax ......... .. ... i 0.36 0.44 0.38

Pro fOrma . ... ... . $ 181 § 0.04 § 1.02

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
which applies to financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 144
supersedes FASB Statement 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
Be Disposed Of,” and portions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations.” SFAS 144 provides a
single accounting model for long-lived assets we expect to dispose of and significantly changes the criteria for
classifying an asset as held-for-sale. This classification is important because held-for-sale assets are not
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depreciated and are stated at the lower of fair value or carrying amount. SFAS 144 also requires expected future
operating losses from discontinued operations to be displayed in the period(s) in which the losses are actually
incurred, rather than when the amount of the loss is estimated, as presently required. We adopted SFAS 144
effective August 1, 2002 and do not expect the adoption of SFAS 144 to have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In November 2001, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force released Issue No. 01-9, “Accounting for Consideration
Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor’s Product,” which applies to annual or interim
financial statement periods beginning after December 15, 2001. The release provides that cash consideration
(including sales incentives) that we give to our customers or resellers should be accounted for as a reduction of
revenue rather than as an operating expense unless we receive a benefit that we can identify and reasonably
estimate. We adopted this new release beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2002. The adoption of EITF Issue
No. 01-9 did not have a material impact on our total net revenue and as a result we did not reclassify prior
period financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit and Disposal Activities.” This
statement revises the accounting for exit and disposal activities under EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.” A formal commitment to a plan to
exit an activity or dispose of long-lived assets will no longer be sufficient to record a one-time charge for most
exit and disposal costs. Instead, companies will record exit or disposal costs when they are incurred and can be
measured at fair value, and will subsequently adjust the recorded liability for changes in estimated cash flows.
The provisions of SFAS 146 are effective prospectively for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002. Companies may not restate previously issued financial statements for the effect of the provisions of
SFAS 146 and liabilities that a company previously recorded under EITF Issue No. 94-3 are not affected. We do
not believe that the adoption of SFAS 146 will have a material impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

2. Short-Term Investments

The following schedule summarizes the estimated fair value of our short-term investments as of the dates

indicated:
July 31,
2001 2002
(In thousands)
COIPOTALE TIOLES . . ...ttt $ 63,723 $ 24,405
Municipal bonds . ... ... 1,030,442 780,914
U.S. government SeCUTities . ................uuuunun e 25,140 10,023

$1,119,305  $815,342
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of our available-for-sale debt securities held in
short-term investments classified by the stated maturity date of the security:

July 31,
2001 2002
(In thousands)
Due Within ONe year. ... ...t $ 215,205 $230,716
Due Within tWo years .. ... .. 221,620 141,942
Due within three years. . ... ... ... e — —
Due after three years. ......... ... 682,480 442,684

$1,119,305  $815,342

3. Marketable Securities and Other Long-term Investments

We currently hold marketable securities that we acquired in connection with strategic business transactions
and relationships. In accordance with SFAS 115, we classify marketable securities that we buy and hold
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term as trading securities. We report trading securities at
estimated fair value and include unrealized gains and losses on these securities in our net income (loss). We
classify our other marketable securities as available-for-sale securities. We report available-for-sale securities at
estimated fair value and include unrealized gains and losses on these securities in a separate component of
stockholders’ equity.

Marketable securities classified as trading and available-for-sale at July 31, 2002 and 2001 are summarized
below. Estimated fair value is based on quoted market prices.

Cost Gross Unrealized Estimated
July 31, 2002 Basis Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)
Trading securities . ......... ... ... i i $ —  $ —  § — $ —
Securities available-for-sale:
Checkfree Corporation common stock ........... ..., 24,866 — (8,075) 16,791
$ 24,866 $ — $ (8,075  $16,791
Cost Gross Unrealized Estimated
July 31, 2001 Basis Gains Losses Fair Value
Trading securities ............. . $99,304 $ —  $(97,288) $ 2,016
Securities available-for-sale:
Checkfree Corporation common stock ................. ... ... . 35,621 37,215 — 72,836
S1 Corporation common Stock . ... i 7,741 2,714 — 10,455

$142,666  $39,929  §$(97,288)  $85,307

In fiscal 2002, proceeds from the sales of available-for-sale securities totaled $25.0 million; gross realized gains
totaled $6.0 million and gross realized losses totaled $2.9 million. In fiscal 2001, proceeds from the sales of
available-for-sale securities totaled $21.5 million; gross realized gains totaled $15.8 million and gross realized
losses totaled $4.9 million. We recorded charges of $40.2 million in fiscal 2001 to write down certain
available-for-sale securities for which the decline in fair value below carrying value was other-than-temporary.
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Unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are included in our net income (loss). We held no trading
securities at July 31, 2002.

Our marketable securities, which are quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market, are stocks of high technology
companies whose market prices have been extremely volatile and have declined substantially during the past
three years. These declines have resulted, and could continue to result, in material reductions in the carrying
values of these assets. This has a negative impact on our operating results. If these securities experience further
declines in fair value that are considered other-than-temporary, we will reflect the additional losses in our
statement of operations in the period when the subsequent impairment becomes apparent.

The fair values of our long-term investments (consisting primarily of equity investments in privately held
companies) have also declined substantially since our initial investments due to the volatility and economic
downturn of the high technology industry. We recorded losses of $7.5 million in fiscal 2002 and $16.2 in
fiscal 2001 and charges of $9.5 million in fiscal 2002 and $28.6 million in fiscal 2001, to write down certain
long-term investments for which the decline in fair value below carrying value was other-than-temporary.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of the dates indicated:

Life in July 31,

Years 2001 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
EQUIPIMENt . . .. ... 3-5 $ 152,062 $ 185,699
Computer Software. . ......... ... . 3 50,251 60,709
Furniture and fiXtures . .......... .. ... 5 23,614 27,230
Leasehold improvements . .................uuiiii Note 1 65,701 71,044
Land and buildings ........... . NA /30 21,285 26,509
Capital N PrOZTESS . . . . ..t — 8,540 18,016

321,453 389,207
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .................. ... ... .. (146,794)  (207,449)

$ 174,659 § 181,758

Capital in progress consists primarily of costs related to internal use software projects. As discussed in Note 1,
“Software Development Costs,” we capitalize costs related to the development of computer software for
internal use in accordance with SOP 98-1. We capitalized approximately $23.4 million and $21.3 million of
internal use software during fiscal 2001 and 2002, respectively. Costs related to internal use software projects
are included in the capital in progress category of property and equipment until project completion, at which
time they are transferred to the computer software category and amortized over their useful lives. Amortization
expense for capitalized internal use software was $3.6 million in fiscal 2001 and $7.5 million in fiscal 2002.
The net book value of completed capitalized internal use software was $11.3 million at July 31, 2001 and
$15.6 million at July 31, 2002.
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5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets consisted of the following at the dates indicated:

Life in July 31,
Years 2001 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Goodwill . ... 3-5 $ 735,393 § 822,894
Accumulated amortization of goodwill . ......... ... ... oo (408,578)  (393,946)
Net goodwill . .. ..o 326,815 428,948
Customer LISt . . ... 3-12 119,310 144,379
Covenants not to compete ................. . 3-5 9,917 7,399
Purchased technology ........... ... .. 1-7 121,272 121,763
Assembled WOTKIOICe ... ... ... ... . . 2-5 13,610 4,458
Trade names and 10gOS. .. ... ... 1-15 13,630 16,555
Total intangible assets.............. . 277,739 294,554
Accumulated amortization of intangible assets .............. ... ... oo (189,419)  (169,080)
Net intangible assets . ............ 88,320 125,474

$ 415,135  $ 554,422

Accumulated amortization declined during fiscal 2002 due to the retirement of certain fully amortized
goodwill and intangible assets.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” We adopted SFAS 142 on
August 1, 2002. As a result, goodwill will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment
tests. Most other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives. In
accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, effective August 1, 2002 we transferred the net balance of $1.9
million for assembled workforce to goodwill and will no longer amortize that intangible asset. See Note 1.

We summarize the following expenses on the “acquisition-related charges” line of our statement of operations:

Fiscal
2000 2001 2002

(In thousands)

Amortization of goodwill ........ ... .. $115,974 $139,455 $122,629
Amortization of intangibles ........ ... ... 26,936 25,022 28,327
Acquisition-related amortization of deferred compensation ................... 4,019 4,938 8,654
Acquisition-related impairment charges ................. ... ... . ... — 78,686 22,006
Other ... 9,428 78 —

$156,357  $248,179  $181,616

As discussed in Note 1, we regularly perform reviews to determine if the carrying values of our goodwill and
intangible assets may be impaired. We look for the existence of facts and circumstances, either internal or
external, which indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recovered.
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Fiscal 2001

During fiscal 2001, events and circumstances indicated possible impairment of certain long-lived assets,
consisting principally of acquired intangible assets and goodwill recorded in connection with our acquisitions
of Venture Finance Software Corp. in August 2000, SecureTax.com in August 1999 and Hutchison Avenue
Software Corporation in August 1999. These indicators included the deterioration in the business climate for
Web-based companies and management’s intentions relating to the continuation of certain services provided
by our Personal Finance segment.

We measured the impairment loss related to long-lived assets based on the amount by which the carrying
amount of such assets exceeded their fair values. Our measurement of fair value was based on an analysis of
the future discounted cash flows, as discussed in Note 1. In performing this analysis, we used the best
information available in the circumstances, including reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections.
The discounted cash flow analysis considered the likelihood of possible outcomes and was based on our best
estimate of projected future cash flows. For VFSC, we considered the terminal value cash flows expected to
result from the disposition of the assets at the end of their useful lives. The consideration from the disposition
of a portion of VFSC, our Quicken Bill Manager business, assisted management in the determination of the
fair value of the remaining assets. Based on our analysis as described above, we recorded impairment charges
of $51.0 million, $26.0 million, and $1.7 million, to reduce the carrying value of the goodwill associated with
VFSC, SecureTax and Hutchison, respectively. In the second quarter of fiscal 2002, we reduced the carrying
value of the remaining VFSC goodwill to zero (see Fiscal 2002 below).

Fiscal 2002

During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, events and circumstances indicated impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets that we received in connection with our acquisitions of an Internet-based advertising business
from VFSC in August 2000 (part of our Personal Finance segment) and the Site Solutions business that we
acquired from Boston Light Corp. in August 1999 (part of our Small Business segment).

Indicators of impairment for our Internet-based advertising business included a steep decline in demand for
online advertising reflecting the industry-wide decline in Internet advertising spending, as well as
management’s assessment that revenues and profitability would continue to decline in the future based on
analyses and forecasts completed during the second quarter of fiscal 2002. The primary indicator of
impairment for our Site Solutions business was management’s decision to transition the customer base of Site
Solutions and collaborate with a third party to provide the website building service. This collaboration, which
began in the second quarter of fiscal 2002, eliminated our use of technology purchased from Boston Light.

In each case, we measured the impairment loss based on the amount by which the carrying amount of the
assets exceeded their fair value based on lower projected profits and decreases in cash flow. Our measurement
of fair value was based on an analysis of the future discounted cash flows as discussed in Note 1. Based on our
analyses, in the second quarter of fiscal 2002 we recorded charges of $22.6 million ($17.4 million to
acquisition-related charges and $5.2 million to amortization of purchased software) to reduce the carrying
value of the assets associated with our Internet-based advertising business to zero, and a charge of $4.7 million
($4.6 million to acquisition-related charges and $0.1 million to amortization of purchased software) to reduce
the carrying value of assets relating to our Site Solutions business to zero.

6. Comprehensive Net Income (Loss)

SFAS 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive
net income (loss) and its components in stockholders’ equity. SFAS 130 requires the components of other
comprehensive income (loss) such as changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities and foreign
translation adjustments to be added to our net income (loss) to arrive at comprehensive income (loss). Other
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comprehensive income (loss) items have no impact on our net income (loss) as presented in our statement

of operations.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes, were as follows:

(In thousands)

Fiscal 2000

Beginning balance, net of income taxes ........................
Unrealized gain, net of income tax provision of $191,594........

Reclassification adjustment for realized gain included in net
income, net of income tax benefit of $206,967 ...............

Translation adjustment ........... ... ...
Other comprehensive loss ................ ... ... oo,

Ending balance, net of income taxes...........................

Fiscal 2001
Beginning balance, net of income taxes ........................

Unrealized gain (loss), net of income tax benefit of $18,289 and
provision of $3,124 ... ... ... ..

Reclassification adjustment for realized gain included in net loss,
net of income tax benefit of $4,780 ............ ... ... ......

Translation adjustment . .......... ... .. ... o oL
Other comprehensive loss ................ ... .o ..

Ending balance, net of income taxes...........................

Fiscal 2002
Beginning balance, net of income taxes ........................
Unrealized loss, net of income tax benefits of $18,082 and $1,752

Reclassification adjustment for realized gain included in net
income, net of income tax benefit of $1,120 .................

Translation adjustment . .......... ... .. ... i
Other comprehensive 10ss ................ .o ...

Ending balance, net of income taxes...........................

7. Deferred Stock-based Compensation

When we assume unvested stock options in connection with acquisitions, we record deferred stock

Foreign
Marketable  Short-term Currency
Securities Investments Translation Total

$ 81,621 58 — $(2,477) $ 79,144
287,391 — — 287,391
(310,451) — — (310,451)
— — (498) (498)
(23,060) — (498) (23,558)

$ 58,561 N $(2,975) $ 55,586
$ 58,561 5 — $(2,975) $ 55,586
(27,433) 4,686 — (22,747)
(7,170) — — (7,170)

— — 2,511 2,511
(34,603) 4,686 2,511 (27,406)

$ 23,958 $ 4,686 $ (464) $ 28,180
$ 23,958 $ 4,686 $ (464) $ 28,180
(27,123) (2,628) — (29,751)
(1,680) — — (1,680)
— — (424) (424)
(28,803) (2,628) (424) (31,855)
$ (4,845 $ 2,058 $ (888) $ (3,675

compensation as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. The amount recorded is equal to the difference between
the exercise price of the options related to future vesting periods and the fair market value of Intuit stock as of
the closing date of the acquisition. When we grant restricted stock to employees that is subject to vesting, we
also record deferred stock compensation equal to the difference between the purchase price and the fair
market value of the stock at the date of grant. Deferred stock compensation is amortized straight-line over the

vesting term of these options and restricted stock grants.
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The following table summarizes the activity in deferred stock-based compensation:

Fiscal

(In thousands) 2000 2001 2002
Beginning balance . ........... ... $ —  $26,522 $ 21,720
Deferred stock compensation . ............ ... 31,807 2,667 1,620
Amortization:

General and administrative expense ............. ... (1,266) (2,531) (2,534)

Acquisition-related charges ............ ... ... (4,019) (4,938) (8,654)

Total amoOrtization . . ... ... (5,285) (7,469)  (11,188)
OtNeT . .. — — 476
Ending balance ......... . ... $26,522  $21,720 $ 12,628

8. Per Share Data

We compute basic income or loss per share using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. We compute diluted income or loss per share using the weighted average
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Common
equivalent shares consist of the shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options under the treasury stock
method. In loss periods, basic and dilutive loss per share are identical since the effect of common equivalent

shares is anti-dilutive and therefore excluded.

The following table presents the numerators and denominators and the computation of basic and diluted

income or loss per share for fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002:

Fiscal
2000 2001 2002

(In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Numerators for basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of accounting

Change . . . $322,178  $(118,079) $ 69,760

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes............... (16,517) 20,972 70,400

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes ...................... — 14,314 —

Net INCome (I0SS) . ..ottt e e $305,661 $ (82,793) $140,160
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income (loss) per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding . .............. ... ... ... ... ..... 200,770 207,959 211,794

Equivalent shares issuable upon exercise of options ............................ ... 10,501 — 6,103
Denominator for diluted net income (loss) per share................................ 211,271 207,959 217,897
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Fiscal

2000 2001 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)
Basic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of accounting
Change . .. $ 160 $ (057 $ 033
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes............... (0.08) 0.10 0.33
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes ...................... — 0.07 —
Basic net income (loss) per share......... ... .. .. i $ 152 $ (0400 $ 0.66
Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of accounting
Change . . .. $ 153 § (057) § 032
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes............... (0.08) 0.10 0.32
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes...................... — 0.07 —
Diluted net income (loss) per share ........... ... ... i $ 145 $ (040) $ 0.64

The effect of options to purchase 2.3 million and 8.3 million shares of common stock were not included in
the computation of diluted income per share for fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2002, respectively, because the option
exercise prices were greater than the average market price of common stock. For fiscal 2001, we excluded
options to purchase 14.6 million shares of common stock in our diluted loss per share computation because
we experienced a net loss for the year.

9. Acquisitions

In December 1999, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of Rock Financial Corporation (“RFC”), a provider
of consumer mortgages, and Title Source Inc., a title insurance and escrow company affiliated with RFC, in
exchange for the issuance of approximately $370.0 million or 8.8 million shares of Intuit common stock. RFC
subsequently changed its name to Quicken Loans Inc. These acquisitions were accounted for as pooling of
interests in accordance with APB 16. In July 2002 we sold our Quicken Loans mortgage business and
accounted for the sale as discontinued operations. See Note 11.

The acquisitions described below have been accounted for as purchase transactions and, accordingly, the
results of operations and financial position of the acquired businesses are included in Intuit’s consolidated
financial statements from the date of acquisition. We allocate the difference between the purchase price and
the net book value of acquired tangible assets between identified tangible assets and goodwill. Identified
intangible assets consist of customer lists, covenants not to compete, purchased technology, assembled
workforce and trade names and logos.

Fiscal 2000

In fiscal 2000, we acquired Boston Light Software Corp., SecureTax.com, and Turning Mill Software, Inc. We
purchased all of the outstanding common and Series A preferred stock of Boston Light, a developer of software
and Web-based products for small businesses based in Massachusetts, for approximately $33.5 million in Intuit
common stock. In connection with the agreement, Intuit also assumed 482,910 of Boston Light’s outstanding
employee stock options, which were converted into options to purchase 160,970 shares of Intuit common
stock. We acquired all of the outstanding common stock of SecureTax, a developer of online tax preparation
and electronic filing services based in Georgia, for approximately $52.0 million in cash. We also acquired all of
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the outstanding common stock of Turning Mill, a developer of software and Web-based products
headquartered in Massachusetts, for approximately $22.1 million in Intuit common stock.

Fiscal 2001

In fiscal 2001, we purchased all of the outstanding securities of Venture Finance Software Corp. which were
not already held by Intuit (approximately 51%) for approximately $118.0 million in cash (including
approximately $4.5 million in option exercise and tax payments in connection with VFSC options exercised
immediately prior to the purchase). We also purchased all of the outstanding stock of EmployeeMatters, Inc.,
in exchange for approximately $41.9 million in Intuit common stock, the elimination of approximately

$8.0 million in bridge loans we extended to EmployeeMatters prior to the closing, and the assumption of
approximately $3.4 million in liabilities. We acquired substantially all of the assets of Tax Accounting and
Software Corporation for $63.0 million in cash and the assumption of approximately $7.8 million in liabilities.

Fiscal 2002

In November 2001, we acquired substantially all of the assets of OMware, Inc. for $35.5 million or

924,973 shares of Intuit common stock, approximately $2.1 million in the assumption of debt and bridge
loans and up to $8 million in Intuit common stock to be issued contingent upon the achievement of future
performance objectives by the business unit. OMware provides business management software solutions for
construction companies. Pursuant to separate agreements, Intuit will pay up to $2 million in cash over two
years as part of a senior management performance program. These amounts will be recorded as compensation
expense as amounts are earned. With the assistance of a professional valuation services firm, we allocated
approximately $27.1 million of the purchase price to goodwill and $8.5 million of the purchase price to
identified intangible assets. The identified intangible assets are being amortized over five years.

In May 2002, we purchased all of the outstanding stock of The Flagship Group for approximately

$23.3 million or 455,259 shares of Intuit common stock, the assumption of $4.7 million in debt and

$3.3 million in cash. Flagship is the parent company of American Fundware, Inc., which offers financial
accounting solutions for nonprofit organizations. In connection with the agreement, we also assumed
Flagship’s outstanding employee stock options for 1,204,000 shares of Flagship common stock, which were
converted into options to purchase 130,316 shares of Intuit common stock. With the assistance of a
professional valuation services firm, we allocated approximately $29.6 million of the purchase price to
goodwill and $4.2 million of the purchase price to identified intangible assets. The identified intangible assets
are being amortized over terms ranging from three to twelve years.

In June 2002, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of CBS Employer Services, Inc. for approximately

$75.3 million in cash (of which $25.4 million is unpaid but accrued at July 31, 2002) and $3.2 million or
73,795 shares of Intuit common stock. CBS is a provider of full-service outsourced payroll functions for small
businesses. In connection with the agreement, we also assumed CBS’s outstanding employee stock options for
665,504 shares of CBS common stock, which were converted into options to purchase 193,891 shares of Intuit
common stock. With the assistance of a professional valuation services firm, we allocated approximately

$74.8 million of the purchase price to goodwill and $9.3 million of the purchase price to identified intangible
assets. The identified intangible assets are being amortized over terms ranging from five to six years.

In July 2002, we purchased all of the outstanding stock of Management Reports, Inc. for approximately
$92.2 million in cash. MRI provides business management software solutions for commercial and residential
property managers. We recorded the transaction in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 based on estimated
financial information, which was not materially different from the final information that became available in
the first quarter of fiscal 2003. With the assistance of a professional valuation services firm, we allocated
approximately $73.4 million of the purchase price to goodwill and $14.0 million of the purchase price to
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identified intangible assets. The identified intangible assets are being amortized over terms ranging from five to
seven years.

In July 2002, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Eclipse, Inc. for approximately $88.3 million in cash.
Eclipse provides business management software solutions for wholesale durable goods distributors. We recorded
the transaction in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 based on estimated financial information, which was not
materially different from the final information that became available in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. With
the assistance of a professional valuation services firm, we allocated approximately $41.4 million of the
purchase price to goodwill and $35.8 million of the purchase price to identified intangible assets. The
identified intangible assets are being amortized over terms ranging from one to seven years.

The following table shows net revenue, income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
accounting change, net income (loss) and basic and diluted net income (loss) per share as they would have
been if we had completed the fiscal 2002 acquisitions on August 1, 2000. Because the pro forma acquisition
date is prior to June 30, 2001, these figures include the effects of amortization of goodwill and other identified
intangible assets from the date of acquisition through July 31, 2002. Under the provisions of SFAS 142,
goodwill amortization would cease on August 1, 2002. This unaudited summary information is presented for
illustrative purposes and is not necessarily indicative of results that would have actually occurred had these
acquisitions taken place at the beginning of fiscal 2001.

Fiscal 2001 Fiscal 2002
As Pro As Pro
Reported Forma Reported Forma

(In thousands, except per share data) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Net revenue:

Intuit, as reported ............. $1,148,405 $1,148,405  $1,358,348  $1,358,348

Fiscal 2002 acquisitions ............. ... 107,520 97,663

Proforma ......... ... . . ... $1,255,925 $1,456,011
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect

of accounting change:

Intuit, as reported . ......... ... $ (118,079) $ (118,079) $ 69,760 $ 69,760

Fiscal 2002 acquisitions .................iiiiiiiiiiii.. 8,118 5,763

Amortization of goodwill and intangibles .................... (61,631) (59,774)

Proforma ....... ... .. .. $ (171,592) $ 15,749
Net income (loss):

Intuit, as reported ............. $ (82,793) $ (82,793) $ 140,160 $ 140,160

Fiscal 2002 acquisitions ............. ... 8,118 5,763

Amortization of goodwill and intangibles .................... (61,631) (59,774)

Pro forma .......... ... . . $ (136,306) $ 86,149
Basic net income (loss) per share .............................. $ 0.40) $ 0.66) $ 0.66 $ 0.41
Diluted net income (loss) per share............................ (0.40) (0.66) 0.64 0.40
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Purchase prices for the acquisitions described above have been allocated on the basis of their fair values on the
acquisition dates as follows:

Fiscal
(In thousands) 2000 2001 2002
Intangible assets:
GoodWill ... $ 88,748 $181,758  $246,542
Customer Lists ... ... . 2,900 16,489 38,395
Covenant not to compete . .............. . 1,200 — 1,595
Purchased technology ........... ... .. . . 714 45,113 30,197
Assembled WOTKIOICe . ... ... .. . 622 2,940 —
Trade names and 10gOS . . ... ... ottt — 1,308 7,251
Deferred stock compensation ............. .. ... i i 6,823 855 1,620

$101,007  $248,463  $325,600

Deferred stock compensation is recorded in stockholders’ equity and is being amortized over the vesting period
of the applicable options using the straight-line method. Until July 31, 2002, goodwill was amortized over
estimated useful lives which ranged from three to five years. We implemented SFAS 142 on August 1, 2002. As
a result, goodwill will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests. Most other
intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from one to
fifteen years. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, effective August 1, 2002 we transferred the net
balance of $1.9 million for assembled workforce to goodwill and will no longer amortize that intangible asset.
See Notes 1 and 5.

Of the total goodwill acquired in fiscal 2000, none was deductible for income tax purposes. Of the total
goodwill acquired in fiscal 2001 and 2002, $148,950 and $115,031, respectively, were deductible for income
tax purposes.

The following table presents acquired goodwill by reportable business segment:

Fiscal

(In thousands) 2000 2001 2002

Small BUSINESS . . . ..o $40,480 $ — 3 —
Employer Services. ... ......... . i — 32,808 —
COoNSUMET TaX . . .ottt e e e e e 48,268 — —
Professional Accounting Solutions ............ ... ... i i — 53,801 —
Personal FINANCe . . .. ... ... ... — 95,149 —
Global BUSINESS . . .. ..o — — 2,395
Small Business Verticals and Other........... ... ... .. ... .. i, — — 244,147

$88,748  $181,758  $246,542

10. Divestitures

In January 2001, we sold certain assets of our Quicken Insurance business to InsWeb Corporation for
approximately $10.8 million of InsWeb common stock. As a result of the divestiture, we recorded a pre-tax
gain of $1.6 million and a related tax provision of $0.6 million in fiscal 2001.

79



In May 2001, we sold the stock of Venture Finance Software Corp., which held the technology assets of our
Quicken Bill Manager business, to Princeton eCom Corporation. In exchange for these assets, Intuit was
entitled to receive, at Princeton eCom’s election, either approximately 20% of Princeton eCom fully diluted
common stock or cash payments of a minimum of $37 million or a combination of stock and cash. In
connection with this disposition, we recorded a pre-tax loss of $16.9 million and a related tax benefit of
$6.4 million in fiscal 2001. At July 31, 2001, our contractual right to receive payment was valued at

$27 million. In fiscal 2002, we determined that this asset was impaired and recorded a charge to reduce the
carrying value of our investment to its fair value of zero. See Note 12.

In March 2002, we paid $12.0 million to terminate our $20.3 million obligation under an interactive services
agreement related to our Quicken Bill Manager business. When we terminated this agreement, we recorded a
pre-tax gain of $8.3 million and related tax expense of $2.7 million in fiscal 2002.

11. Discontinued Operations

We acquired our Quicken Loans mortgage business segment in a transaction accounted for as a pooling of
interests in December 1999. See Note 9. On July 31, 2002, we sold that business to a company called BRFC
LLC. We transferred all of our capital stock in Quicken Loans Inc. and Title Source, Inc. to Rock Acquisition
Corporation (“Rock”), a newly-created corporation, then subsequently sold all of the voting stock of Rock to
BRFC. The voting stock represented 87.5% of Rock’s total outstanding common stock. We retain a 12.5% non-
voting equity interest in Rock and our investment will be accounted for on a cost basis since we do not have
the ability to exercise significant influence.

Prior to July 31, 2002, Quicken Loans Inc. and Title Source, Inc. repaid all outstanding intercompany balances
and the net tangible shareholders’ equity in excess of $33.0 million to Intuit. We received $33.0 million from
BFRC and a five-year secured promissory note in the principal amount of $23.3 million from Rock as
consideration. The note will be repayable earlier if Rock achieves certain financial performance targets. We will
earn market interest rates on the promissory note, which is recorded as a long-term note receivable in other
assets on the balance sheet.

Rock continues to offer loans under the Quicken Loans brand and is licensing from Intuit the use of the
Quicken Loans trademark for its residential home loan and home equity loan products. We will receive a
minimum royalty of $1.8 million a year for each of the next five years under this licensing agreement. In
addition, we entered into a five-year distribution agreement under which Quicken Loans will provide mortgage
services on Quicken.com. We will receive a minimum fee of $0.8 million a year under this distribution
agreement. The royalties from the licensing agreement and the fees from the distribution agreement will be
recorded as earned and included in other income on our statement of operations. We have also agreed to
continue providing a line of credit of up to $375.0 million to fund mortgage loans for a transition period of
up to six months. The line expires on January 31, 2003. The line of credit is secured by the related mortgage
loans and the interest rate is based on the six-month LIBOR rate plus 1.5%. The balance outstanding on this
line of credit of $245.6 million at July 31, 2002 is included on our balance sheet under amounts due from
discontinued operations entities.

We accounted for the sale of Quicken Loans as discontinued operations. In accordance with APB Opinion
No. 30, the net assets, operating results and cash flows of Quicken Loans have been segregated from
continuing operations in our balance sheets, statements of operations and statements of cash flows. Net
income (loss) from discontinued operations of $(16.5) million in fiscal 2000, $21.0 million in fiscal 2001 and
$47.1 million in fiscal 2002 were net of income tax (benefits) provisions of $(9.4) million, $12.2 million, and
$26.5 million in those years, respectively. The sale resulted in a pretax gain of $23.3 million in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2002. We did not record the tax benefit related to the gain on the transaction because we
cannot be assured that we will realize the tax benefit. We recorded the transaction based on preliminary
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financial information, which is subject to change based on an audit of the final tangible shareholders’ equity
balance of Quicken Loans.

12. Loss on Impairment of Long-lived Asset

In connection with the sale of our Quicken Bill Manager business in May 2001, we acquired a $27.0 million
long-term asset related to future consideration from Princeton eCom which was recorded as other assets on
the balance sheet at July 31, 2001. See Note 10.

As discussed in Note 1, we regularly perform reviews to determine if the carrying values of our long-lived
assets are impaired. We look for facts or circumstances, either internal or external, that indicate that the
carrying value of an asset cannot be recovered. During fiscal 2002, events and circumstances indicated
impairment of this asset. These indicators included the deterioration of Princeton eCom’s financial position
(including cash flows and liquidity) and the decreased likelihood that it would receive future funding. We
considered the implied fair value of our investment based on Princeton eCom’s most recent round of planned
funding, as well as the fair value of our investment if funding were received. Based on our analysis we
recorded a charge of $27.0 million in fiscal 2002 to reduce the carrying value of this asset to its fair value

of zero.

13. Charge for Vacant Facilities

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we concluded that we would not occupy two vacant leased buildings
in Mountain View, California and that we would be unable to recover a substantial portion of our lease
obligations by subleasing the vacant space. The resulting $13.2 million charge was equal to the remaining
future lease commitments for these facilities, net of estimated future sublease income. The estimated costs of
abandoning these leased facilities reflected management’s best estimates based on market information and
trend analyses compiled by our facilities management team with the help of a commercial real estate
brokerage firm retained by Intuit.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, we made cash lease payments for these two buildings of $0.6 million,
reducing the original $13.2 million reserve to a balance of $12.6 million at July 31, 2002. The short-term
portion of the reserve is in other current liabilities and the long-term portion is in long-term obligations on
our balance sheet. The total reserve is expected to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2010. Our actual future cash
payments may exceed the total reserve balance by a maximum of $3.7 million if we are unable to sublease
either of the properties.

14. Industry Segment and Geographic Information

SFAS 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes standards for the way
in which public companies disclose certain information about operating segments in the company’s financial
reports. Due to the sale of our Quicken Loans mortgage business segment as well as to several acquisitions
during fiscal 2002, we have reevaluated our operating segments. Consistent with SFAS 131, we have defined
seven operating segments, described below, based on factors such as how we manage our operations and how
our chief operating decision maker views results. All operating segments except Global Business are based in
the United States and sell primarily to customers located there. We have reclassified prior year financial
information to conform to the current year presentation for comparability.

Small Business product revenue is derived primarily from QuickBooks desktop software products and financial
supplies. Small Business services revenue is derived primarily from QuickBooks support plans.
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Employer Services product revenue is derived primarily from our Do-It-Yourself Payroll offering. Employer
Services services revenue is derived primarily from our Assisted Payroll Service and Intuit Payroll Services —
Complete Payroll services.

Consumer Tax product revenue is derived primarily from TurboTax federal and state consumer desktop tax
preparation products. Consumer Tax services revenue is derived primarily from TurboTax for the Web online
tax preparation services and electronic filing services.

Professional Accounting Solutions product revenue is derived primarily from ProSeries and Lacerte professional
tax preparation products. Professional Accounting Solutions services revenue is derived primarily from
electronic filing and tax advice services.

Personal Finance product revenue is derived primarily from Quicken desktop products. Personal Finance
services revenue is minimal. Other revenue consists of Quicken.com advertising revenue and royalties from
online transactions revenue.

Global Business product revenue is derived primarily from QuickBooks, Quicken and QuickTax desktop
software products in Canada and Yayoi small business desktop accounting products in Japan. Global Business
services revenue primarily consists of revenue from software maintenance contracts sold with Yayoi software
in Japan.

Small Business Verticals and Other revenue is derived primarily from four businesses that we acquired in fiscal
2002 that provide small business management software solutions for vertical industries. Those businesses are
Intuit Construction Business Solutions (formerly OMware, Inc.); Intuit Public Sector Solutions (formerly The
Flagship Group); Intuit MRI Real Estate Solutions (formerly Management Reports, Inc.); and Intuit Eclipse
Distribution Management Solutions (formerly Eclipse, Inc.). See Note 9.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies in Note 1. Intuit does not track assets by operating segments and, consequently,
does not disclose assets by operating segments. The following results for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2000,
2001 and 2002 are broken out by our operating segments.
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Small

Business
Professional Verticals
Small Employer Consumer Accounting Personal Global and

Fiscal 2000 Business  Services Tax Solutions Finance Business Other(1) Consolidated
(In thousands)
Product revenue........ $275,313  $30,613 $170,432 $161,413 $ 98,815 $67,173 § — $ 803,759
Service revenue ........ 20,215 44,754 40,915 9,107 — 27,188 — 142,179
Other revenue ......... 15,969 — 4,803 — 70,639 — — 91,411

Total net revenue. . ... 311,497 75,367 216,150 170,520 169,454 94,361 — 1,037,349
Segment operating

income (loss) ........ 130,280 (3,878) 99,032 82,092 35,528 14,972 (874) 357,152
Common expenses . .... — — — — — —  (181,581) (181,581)

Sub-total ............ 130,280 (3,878) 99,032 82,092 35,528 14,972 (182,455) 175,571
Acquisition-related

charges.............. — — — — — —  (166,467) (166,467)
Realized net gains on

marketable securities . . — — — — — — 481,130 481,130
Interest and other

income.............. — — — — — — 48,494 48,494
Income (loss) from

continuing operations

before income taxes

and cumulative effect

of accounting

change .............. $130,280 $(3,878) § 99,032 $ 82,092 § 35528 $14,972 §$ 180,702 § 538,728
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Small

Business
Professional Verticals
Small Employer Consumer Accounting Personal Global and

Fiscal 2001 Business  Services Tax Solutions Finance Business Other(1) Consolidated
(In thousands)
Product revenue. ....... $277,992 $ 60,098 $168,169 $177,356  $ 80,182 $70,393 § — $ 834,190
Service revenue ........ 32,635 58,103 100,536 11,060 13,136 24,816 95 240,381
Other revenue ......... 17,952 — 3,423 — 49,685 2,774 — 73,834

Total net revenue. . ... 328,579 118,201 272,128 188,416 143,003 97,983 95 1,148,405
Segment operating

income (loss) ........ 123,600 13,175 145,975 90,671 21,415 12,849 (18,640) 389,045
Common expenses . .... — — — — — —  (200,166) (200,166)

Sub-total ............ 123,600 13,175 145,975 90,671 21,415 12,849  (218,806) 188,879
Acquisition-related

charges.............. — — — — — —  (263,366) (263,366)
Realized net losses on

marketable securities . . — — — — — — (98,053) (98,053)
Interest and other

income.............. — — — — — — 57,303 57,303
Net loss on divestitures — — — — — — (15,315) (15,315)

Income (loss) from
continuing operations
before income taxes
and cumulative effect
of accounting change $123,600 $ 13,175  $145,975 $ 90,671 $ 21,415 $12,849 $(538,237) $ (130,552)
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Fiscal 2002

(In thousands)

Product revenue . ......

Service revenue . .......

Other revenue .........
Total net revenue . ...

Segment operating
income (loss) ........

Common expenses ... . ..

Sub-total ............

Acquisition-related
charges .............

Loss on impairment of
long-lived asset ... ...

Realized net losses on
marketable securities

Interest and other
income .............

Net gain on divestiture

Income (loss) from
continuing operations
before income taxes
and cumulative effect

Small

Business
Professional Verticals
Small Employer Consumer Accounting Personal Global and
Business  Services Tax Solutions Finance Business Other(l1) Consolidated
$318,764 $ 81,731  $219,403 $219,252  §$ 71,567 $ 82,150 $ 8915 $1,001,782
51,453 72,380 128,354 6,495 8,035 20,945 5,743 293,405
4,400 219 3,340 — 50,683 4,519 — 63,161
374,617 154,330 351,097 225,747 130,285 107,614 14,658 1,358,348
141,346 19,061 214,095 115,162 33,856 24,627 (14,048) 534,099
— — — — — —  (251,687) (251,687)
141,346 19,061 214,095 115,162 33,856 24,627  (265,735) 282,412
— — — — — —  (196,190) (196,190)
— — — — — — (27,000) (27,000)
_ _ — — — — (15,535) (15,535)
— — — — — — 32,944 32,944
— — — — — — 8,308 8,308
$ 19,061  $214,095 $115,162  $ 33,856 $ 24,627 $(463,208) $ 84,939

of accounting change $141,346

(1) Other includes revenue and segment operating income (loss) related to our vertical business operations as
well as reconciling items such as acquisition-related costs, including amortization of purchased software
and charges for purchased research and development, and other common costs not allocated to specific
segments. Certain indirect operating costs were no longer allocated to our reporting segments beginning in
fiscal 2002. As a result, segment operating income (loss) and common expenses for fiscal 2000 and 2001
have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal 2002 presentation for comparability.
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15. Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities at July 31, 2001 and 2002 were as follows:

July 31,
2001 2002

(In thousands)

Reserve for product TELUITIS . . . ... ...ttt et e e $31,510 $35,603
Future cash payments due for CRI acquisition ............ ... ... . ... ... . ... .. ..., 23,969 —
Future cash payments due for CBS Payroll acquisition.............. .. ... . ... — 25,359
Other acquisition and disposition related items........... ... ... i 18,001 4,667
ReDates . ... 10,130 8,201
Other acCruals . .. ... e 14,602 12,264

$98,212  $86,094

16. Notes Payable and Commitments
Notes Payable

In March 2001, our Japanese subsidiary, Intuit KK, refinanced its one-year loan agreement with a Japanese
bank for approximately $31.2 million. During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we elected to pay half the
outstanding balance and obtained a three-month extension on the remaining balance of approximately

$15.6 million. The total principal balance of the loan is currently being extended from month to month and
is denominated in Japanese yen. The interest rate is variable based on the Tokyo inter-bank offered rate or the
short-term prime rate offered in Japan. At July 31, 2002, the rate was approximately 0.56%. The fair value of
the loan approximates cost as the interest rate on the borrowings is adjusted periodically to reflect market
rates, which are currently significantly lower in Japan than in the United States.

Commitments

Intuit leases office facilities and equipment under various operating lease agreements. The leases provide for
annual rent increases of up to 10%. Annual minimum commitments under these leases are shown in the table
below. The table includes leases for two vacant facilities in Mountain View, California and excludes any
potential future sublease income for those facilities. See Note 13.

Fiscal Year Commitments

(Dollars in thousands)

2003 $ 31,211
2004 26,545
200 24,052
20006 .. 22,245
2007 o 19,597
Thereafter . . ..o 29,524

$153,174

Total lease expense for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was approximately $20.8 million,
$25.0 million, and $25.6 million, respectively. Lease expense for fiscal 2002 does not include a charge of
$13.2 million for the two vacant facilities referred to above. See Note 13.
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In connection with the sale of our Quicken Loans mortgage business in July 2002, we agreed to continue
providing a line of credit of up to $375.0 million to fund mortgage loans for the purchasing company for a
transition period of up to six months. The line of credit is secured by the related mortgage loans. The balance
outstanding on this line of credit of $245.6 million at July 31, 2002 is included on our balance sheet under
amounts due from discontinued operations entities. See Note 11.

17. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Option Plans

On February 1, 1993, our stockholders adopted the 1993 Equity Incentive Plan. The 1993 Plan terminated on
January 18, 2002 when our stockholders approved our 2002 Equity Incentive Plan. In connection with our
adoption of the 2002 Plan (described below), we transferred 1,900,000 of the shares remaining available for
grant under the 1993 Plan to the 2002 Plan and we ceased making new grants under the 1993 Plan. We
removed the remaining 1,909,906 shares available for grant under the 1993 Plan from the pool of options
available for grant when the plan terminated. All outstanding options under the 1993 Plan remain in effect in
accordance with their terms. Under the 1993 Plan, we were permitted to grant incentive and non-qualified
stock options, restricted stock awards and stock bonuses to employees, directors, consultants, and independent
contractors of and advisors to Intuit. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors or its delegees
determined who would receive grants, exercisability, exercise price and other terms. The option exercise price
was generally the fair market value at the date of grant. The outstanding options generally vest over four years
based on continued service and expire after ten years.

On October 7, 1996, we adopted the 1996 Directors Stock Option Plan. This plan provides for non-qualified
stock options for a specified number of shares to be granted to all non-employee directors of Intuit. As of
December 2001, Board members who serve on the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee receive
additional annual grants. The option exercise price equals the fair market value at the date of grant. Most
options are subject to vesting over time based on continued service, with vesting periods ranging from two to
four years. All options expire after ten years.

On November 11, 1998, we adopted the 1998 Option Plan for Mergers and Acquisitions. Under the 1998 Plan,
we may grant non-qualified stock options to individuals who we hire as a result of our acquisitions of, or
mergers with, other companies. The 1998 Plan was designed to meet the “broadly based plans” exemption
from the stockholder approval requirement for stock option plans under the Nasdaq Stock Market listing
requirements at the time the plan was adopted and, accordingly, has not been submitted to Intuit
stockholders for approval. Options under the 1998 Plan can only be granted to eligible individuals within

18 months following the completion of the relevant acquisition or merger. Options granted under the 1998
Plan have an exercise price not less than the fair market value of Intuit’s common stock on the date of grant.
During fiscal 2002, Intuit changed its standard option vesting schedule so that future options granted generally
become exercisable over a three-year period based on continued service and expire seven years after the grant
date. Prior to that change, options generally vested over four years and expired ten years after the grant date.
Options granted to officers hired as a result of a merger or acquisition cannot exceed 45% of all shares
reserved for grant under the 1998 Plan.

On January 18, 2002, our stockholders approved the 2002 Equity Incentive Plan. Under the 2002 Plan, we
may grant incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock awards and stock bonuses to employees,
directors, consultants, and independent contractors of and advisors to Intuit. The Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors or its delegees determines who will receive grants, exercisability, exercise price and other
terms. The option exercise price is generally the fair market value at the date of grant. During fiscal 2002,
Intuit changed its standard option vesting schedule so that future options granted generally become
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exercisable over a three-year period based on continued service and expire seven years after the grant date.
Prior to that change, options vested over four years and expired ten years after the grant date.

In addition, in several instances we have assumed the outstanding options of companies that we acquired.
Intuit granted no further options under the acquired companies’ option plans after the date of acquisition. We
assumed options in connection with our acquisitions of Boston Light Software Corp. and Hutchison Avenue
Software Corporation in August 1999, Rock Financial Corporation in December 1999, EmployeeMatters, Inc. in
January 2001, The Flagship Group in May 2002 and CBS Employer Services, Inc. in June 2002.

A summary of activity under all option plans is as follows:

Options Outstanding

Shares Exercise Weighted Average
Available Number of Price Per Exercise Price
for Grant Shares Share Per Share
Balance at July 31,1999 .......... ... ... ... L 7,929,742 31,695,232 $ 0.02-$31.21 $16.13
Additional shares authorized ...................... 9,000,000 — — —
Options assumed related to acquisitions ............ 964,941 — — —
Options converted related to acquisitions........... (964,941) 964,941 0.003 - 51.69 5.21
Options granted ................................. (9,887,734) 9,887,734 2.50-72.31 34.44
Options exercised . ........... ..., — (6,651,954) 0.003 - 33.53 11.49
Options canceled or expired:
Options canceled or expired and returned to
option pool ............ ... 4,051,948 (4,051,948) 7.25 - 64.81 22.92
Options canceled from expired plans ............ 571,780 (571,780) 0.39-29.11 15.69
Options removed from shares available for grant . . (571,780) — — —
Balance at July 31,2000 .......... ... ... ... ..., 11,093,956 31,272,225  $0.003 - $72.31 $23.43
Additional shares authorized ...................... 9,825,000 — — —
Options assumed related to acquisitions ............ 74,235 — — —
Options converted related to acquisitions........... (74,235) 74,235 0.18-71.92 9.19
Options granted ...................... ... .. (12,556,801) 12,556,801 24.88 - 67.50 40.94
Options exercised .................... .. ... .. — (5,201,860) 0.003 - 51.06 15.69
Options canceled or expired:
Options canceled or expired and returned to
option pool ......... ... ... i 2,676,348  (2,676,348) 7.25-67.50 34.65
Options canceled from expired plans ............ 191,220 (191,220) 0.18 - 51.69 33.33
Options removed from shares available for grant .. (191,220) — — —
Balance at July 31,2001 ............................ 11,038,503 35,833,833  $0.003 - $72.31 $29.77
Additional shares authorized ...................... 8,090,000 — — —
Options assumed related to acquisitions ............ 324,207 — — —
Options converted related to acquisitions........... (324,207) 324,207 6.93 -43.10 26.26
Options granted ................. ... ... ... (8,887,021) 8,887,021 7.29 - 67.50 39.03
Options exercised . ........... ..o, — (5,961,223) 0.03 -49.31 19.07
Options and shares canceled or expired:
Options canceled or expired and returned to
option pool ......... ... i 2,061,912  (2,061,912) 7.25-67.50 38.09
Options canceled from expired plans ............ 2,364,140 (2,364,140) 0.18 - 67.50 36.58
Options and shares removed from shares available
forgrant(l) ......... ... ... i (4,274,046) — — —
Balance at July 31,2002 ............................ 10,393,488 34,657,786  $0.003 - $72.31 $32.99

(1) Includes 2,364,140 shares reflecting options that were canceled and not returned to any option pool
because they were granted under expired plans, and 1,909,906 shares that were eliminated from shares
available for grant in connection with the termination of the 1993 Plan.
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We define net option grants as options granted less options canceled or expired and returned to the pool of
options available for grant. For fiscal 2000, net option grants were 5,835,786 shares or 2.9% of the 204,299,955
shares outstanding at July 31, 2001. Net option grants for fiscal 2001 were 9,880,453 shares or 4.7% of the
210,526,239 shares outstanding at July 31, 2001. Net option grants for fiscal 2002 were 6,825,109 shares or
3.2% of the 211,163,641 shares outstanding at July 31, 2002. If net option grants are calculated by subtracting
both canceled or expired options that were returned to the pool of options available for grant and options
canceled from expired plans, net option grants were 5,264,006 shares or 2.6% of outstanding shares in fiscal
2000, 9,689,233 shares or 4.6% of outstanding shares in fiscal 2001 and 4,460,969 shares or 2.1% of
outstanding shares in fiscal 2002.

There were 11,608,020, 15,551,666 and 18,264,940 options exercisable under the various plans at July 31,
2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. At July 31, 2002, there were 171,875 shares available for grant under the
1996 Directors Stock Option Plan, 2,134,701 shares available for grant under the 1998 Plan and

8,086,912 shares available for grant under the 2002 Plan.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of July 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average Options Exercisable

Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average
Exercise Price _Number __Life (Years) Exercise Price Number Exercise Price
$0.0033 - $9.00 3,487,650 4.66 $ 7.90 3,420,182 $ 796
$9.10- $16.58 3,621,057 5.80 $14.38 3,481,270 $14.37
$16.94 - $27.25 3,541,319 6.92 $25.25 2,649,635 $25.09
$27.71 - $29.38 3,628,234 7.71 $29.08 1,959,459 $28.94
$29.85 - $35.00 4,957,399 8.12 $32.85 2,471,646 $32.71
$35.31-$37.26 4,723,441 8.93 $36.91 598,286 $36.08
$38.05 - $43.36 4,081,544 8.67 $40.62 782,320 $39.66
$43.73 - $54.06 3,535,537 7.71 $47.79 1,256,301 $49.56
$57.75-$71.92 3,059,105 7.86 $63.86 1,623,341 $63.64
$72.31-$72.31 22,500 7.57 $72.31 22,500 $72.31

$0.0033 - $72.31 34,657,786 7.47 $32.99 18,264,940 $27.44

Stock Split

Intuit’s Board of Directors authorized a three-for-one stock split on September 8, 1999. This was effected by
distributing a 200% stock dividend on September 30, 1999 to stockholders of record on September 20, 1999.
We have restated all share and per share amounts referred to in the financial statements and notes to reflect
this stock split.

Stock Repurchase Program

In May 2001, Intuit’s Board of Directors authorized the company to repurchase up to $500.0 million of
common stock from time to time over a three-year period. In July 2002, our Board of Directors increased the
authorized purchase amount by $250.0 million. The stock repurchase program is intended to help offset some
of the dilution resulting from the issuance of shares under Intuit’s employee stock plans. Shares of stock
repurchased under the program become treasury shares. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, we
repurchased 238,500 shares of our common stock under this program for an aggregate cost of approximately
$8.4 million. During fiscal 2002, we repurchased 7,361,839 shares of our common stock under this program
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for an aggregate cost of approximately $318.4 million. During fiscal 2002, we reissued 4,621,793 million shares
of treasury stock in connection with employee stock plans.

When we reissue treasury shares, if the proceeds from the sale are more than the average price we paid to
acquire the shares we record an increase in additional paid-in capital. Conversely, if the proceeds from the sale
are less than the average price we paid to acquire the shares, we record a decrease in additional paid-in capital
to the extent of increases previously recorded for similar transactions and a decrease in retained earnings for
any remaining amount.

Repurchases through July 31, 2002 have had no significant impact on our net income or loss per share. Intuit
intends to continue using its cash and cash equivalents to fund these repurchases.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In October 1996, Intuit adopted an Employee Stock Purchase Plan under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue
Code. A total of 3,800,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance under the plan. The plan allows
eligible employees to purchase Intuit’s stock at 85% of the lower of the fair market value at the beginning of
each 12-month offering period or at the end of the applicable six-month purchase period. During fiscal 2000,
2001 and 2002 employees purchased 355,281, 469,873 and 583,990 shares, respectively. At July 31, 2002, there
were 1,261,479 shares available for issuance under this plan.

Stock-Based Compensation

We follow APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” in accounting for stock-based
compensation. Accordingly, we are not required to record compensation expense when stock options are
granted to employees, as long as the exercise price is not less than the fair market value of the stock when the
option is granted, and we are not required to record compensation expense in connection with the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan as long as the purchase price is not less than 85% of the lower of the fair market value at
the beginning of each 12-month offering period or at the end of each applicable six-month purchase period.
In October 1995, the FASB issued SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation.” Although SFAS 123
allows us to continue to follow the present APB 25 guidelines, we are required to disclose pro forma net
income (loss) and net income (loss) per share as if we had adopted SFAS 123. The pro forma impact of
applying SFAS 123 in fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002 will not necessarily be representative of the pro forma impact
in future years.

We have elected to use the Black-Scholes model to estimate the fair value of options granted. This valuation
model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. This model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including the
expected stock price volatility. Because our employee stock options have characteristics significantly different
from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect
this estimate, we believe the Black-Scholes model does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of our employee stock options. Inputs used for the valuation model are as follows:

Options Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Fiscal Fiscal
2000 2001 2002 2000 2001 2002
Expected life (years) ...................... 1.75-4.75 1.73-4.73 1.89-4.89 0.50 0.50 1.00
Expected volatility factor .................. 0.73 0.76 0.74 0.73 0.76 0.74
Risk-free interest rate (%) .................. 5.61-680 3.51-6.03 1.23-547 5.57-5.77 3.47-584 1.80-2.70

Expected dividend yield (%) ............... — — — — — —
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Our pro forma net income (loss) and diluted net income (loss) per share would have been as follows if we had
adopted SFAS 123 and recorded compensation expense for our stock option plans and Employee Purchase Plan
in accordance with its provisions:

Fiscal
2000 2001 2002

(In thousands, except per share data)
Net income (loss)

AS TEPOTEEA . . . o ot $305,661 $ (82,793) $140,160

Pro forma ... ... 210,376 (185,469) 50,626
Diluted net income (loss) per share

Asreported . ... ... $ 145 $ (0400 $ 0.64

Proforma . ... ... . 1.00 (0.89) 0.23

The weighted average fair values of options granted during fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002 were approximately
$23.27, $21.77 and $20.31, respectively.

18. Performance Sharing and Benefit Plans
Performance Sharing Plan

Eligible employees participate in Intuit’s performance sharing plan. The Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors determines aggregate amounts to be paid under the plan. Performance-sharing expense for
fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002 was approximately $20.7 million, $21.9 million and $17.6 million, respectively.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

Intuit adopted the Executive Deferred Compensation Plan effective March 15, 2002. The plan allows executives
who meet minimum compensation requirements to defer up to 50% of their salaries and up to 100% of their
bonuses and commissions. We have agreed to credit the participants’ contributions with earnings that reflect
the performance of certain independent investment funds. We may also make discretionary employer
contributions to participant accounts. The timing, amounts and vesting schedules of employer contributions
are at our sole discretion. The benefits under this plan are unsecured and are general assets of Intuit.
Participants are generally eligible to receive payment of their vested benefit at the end of their elected deferral
period or after termination of their employment with Intuit for any reason. Discretionary company
contributions and the related earnings vest completely upon the participant’s disability, death or a change of
control of Intuit. We made no employer contributions to the plan during fiscal 2002.

Benefit Plans

Employees who participate in the Intuit 401(k) Plan may contribute up to 20% of pre-tax salary to the plan,
subject to IRS limitations. Intuit matches a specified portion of the employee contributions up to a maximum
amount per employee per year. The amount is subject to change on an annual basis. At July 31, 2001 and
2002, the match was 75%, up to $2,500. Matching contributions were approximately $6.6 million,

$6.9 million and $8.4 million, respectively, for the years ended July 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002. Participating
employees age 50 or older may make catch-up contributions. These contributions are not matched.

19. Stockholder Rights Plan

On April 29, 1998, the Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights plan designed to protect the long-term
value of Intuit for its stockholders during any future unsolicited acquisition attempt. In connection with the
plan, the Board declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right for each share of Intuit’s common
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stock outstanding on May 11, 1998 (the “Record Date”) and further directed the issuance of one such right
with respect to each share of Intuit’'s common stock that is issued after the Record Date, except in certain
circumstances. If a person or a group (an “Acquiring Person”) acquires 20% or more of Intuit’s common stock,
or announces an intention to make a tender offer for Intuit’'s common stock, the consummation of which
would result in a person or group becoming an Acquiring Person, then the rights will be distributed (the
“Distribution Date”). After the Distribution Date, each right may be exercised for 1/3000th of a share of a
newly designated Series B Junior Participating Preferred stock at an exercise price of approximately $83.33 per
share. The preferred stock has been structured so that the value of 1/3000th of a share of such preferred stock
will approximate the value of one share of common stock. The rights will expire on May 1, 2008. In July
2002, we adopted a policy that requires an independent committee of our Board of Directors to review the
rights plan at least once every three years to consider whether maintaining the rights plan continues to be in
the best interests of Intuit and its stockholders.

20. Income Taxes

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes included income (loss) from foreign operations
of $4.4 million, $11.2 million and $22.4 million for fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The provision
(benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations consisted of the following:

Fiscal
(In thousands) 2000 2001 2002
Current:
Federal . . .. ... $ 285,320 $ 46,025 $ 29,970
2 62,041 10,200 7,917
FOT@IgN . .. 2,771 4,703 1,997
350,132 60,928 39,884
Deferred:
Federal. . ... ... . (110,490)  (63,900)  (21,617)
(S (23,092) (9,501) (3,088)
(133,582)  (73,401)  (24,705)
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes.................. ... ... .. $ 216,550 $(12,473) $ 15,179

Differences between income taxes calculated using the federal statutory income tax rate of 35% and the
provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations were as follows:

Fiscal

(In thousands) 2000 2001 2002
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes ............... $538,728  $(130,552) $ 84,939
Statutory federal income taX ... $188,555 § (45,693) $ 29,729
State income tax, net of federal benefit ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. .... 25,317 699 4,829
Federal research and experimental credits ...................... ... ... .. (5,000) (4,000) (4,000)
Non-deductible merger related charges.................. ... ... . ..., 11,263 49,407 16,759
Tax exempt interest........... . (8,204) (13,633) (8,710)
Tax benefit related to divestiture ............. . ... ... ... ... ... ... — — (25,770)
Other, net ... ... 4,619 747 2,342

Total $216,550 $ (12,473) $ 15,179

Tax savings from deductions associated with our various stock option plans are not reflected in the current
federal and state provisions. Savings were approximately $93.5 million in fiscal 2000, $59.5 million in fiscal
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2001 and $53.2 million in fiscal 2002. These amounts were credited to
taxes payable.

Significant deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

stockholders’ equity and reduced

July 31, July 31,
(In thousands) 2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Accruals and reserves not currently deductible .......... .. ... o oL $ 39,005 $ 48,494
NOL and tax credits carryforward . ........... ... — 28,120
State INCOME TAXES . . ..ottt ettt e ettt e e e 38,194 —
Unrealized loss on marketable securities .......... ... .. ... .. ... . . . . — 9,326
Merger Charges ... ... 121,197 141,950
Fixed asset adjustments . ........... ... 29,656 18,735
Other, Met. . ..o 4,954 7,012
Total deferred tax aSSetS. . ... ..... ...ttt et e 233,006 253,637
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on marketable securities. ............ ... ... ... il (1,948) —
Total deferred tax liabilities. ... ....... ... i e (1,948) —
Total net deferred tax assets . ... ...t 231,058 253,637
Valuation TESEIVE. . . ..ottt ettt e et et e e e e e e e e (11,411) (9,285)
Total net deferred tax assets (liabilities), net of valuation reserve.......................... $219,647  $244,352

We have provided a valuation reserve related to the benefits of losses in our foreign subsidiaries and certain
state capital loss carryforwards that we believe are unlikely to be realized. The valuation allowance decreased
by $0.2 million in fiscal 2000, did not change in fiscal 2001 and decreased by $2.1 million in fiscal 2002.

At July 31, 2002, we had U.S. federal and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately

$26.1 million and $8.6 million, respectively. These net operating losses will expire at various dates beginning
in fiscal 2005 if not utilized. At July 31, 2002, we also had various state tax credit carryforwards totaling
approximately $13.8 million. The state credit carryforwards have no expiration date. Utilization of the net
operating loss carryforwards may be subject to substantial annual limitation due to ownership change
limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The annual limitation may result in
the expiration of net operating losses before utilization.

21. Litigation

On March 3, 2000, a class action lawsuit, Bruce v. Intuit Inc., was filed in the United States District Court,
Central District of California, Eastern Division. Two virtually identical lawsuits were later filed: Rubin v. Intuit
Inc., was filed on March 8, 2000 in the United States District Court, Southern District of New York and Newby
v. Intuit Inc. was filed on April 27, 2000, in the United States District Court, Central District of California,
Eastern Division. The Bruce and Newby lawsuits were consolidated into one lawsuit, In re Intuit Privacy
Litigation, filed on July 28, 2000 in the United States District Court, Central District of California, Eastern
Division. Following Intuit’s successful motion to dismiss several of the claims, an amended complaint was filed
on May 2, 2001. A similar lawsuit, Almanza v. Intuit Inc. was filed on March 22, 2000 in the Superior Court
of the State of California, San Bernardino County, Rancho Cucamonga Division. An amended complaint in
the Almanza suit was filed on October 26, 2000. These purported class actions alleged violations of various
federal and California statutes and common law claims for invasion of privacy based upon the alleged
intentional disclosure to third parties of personal and private customer information entered at Intuit’s
Quicken.com Web site. The complaints sought injunctive relief, orders to disgorge profits related to the alleged
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acts, and statutory and other damages. In August 2001, Intuit and the plaintiffs’ counsel in all of the cases
except Rubin reached an agreement in principle to resolve the cases, subject to court approval, based on terms
that are not material to Intuit. The Rubin case was dismissed on November 19, 2001.

Intuit is subject to other routine legal proceedings, as well as demands, claims and threatened litigation, that
arise in the normal course of our business. We currently believe that the ultimate amount of liability, if any,
for any pending claims of any type (either alone or combined) will not materially affect our financial position,
results of operations or liquidity. However, the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and either
unfavorable or favorable outcomes could have a material negative impact. Regardless of outcome, litigation
can have an adverse impact on Intuit because of defense costs, diversion of management resources and

other factors.

22. Related Party Transactions

We participated in the formation of Venture Finance Software Corp. in May 1998 in order to facilitate the
development of certain Web-oriented finance products. At July 31, 2000, we held a 49% non-voting equity
interest in VFSC. We entered into agreements with VFSC to provide it with services related to on-going
development of Web-oriented finance products and received cost reimbursements of approximately

$23.8 million in fiscal 2000 for development and administrative services provided in connection with this
agreement. In August 2000, we acquired all of the outstanding securities of VESC. See Note 9. In May 2001, we
sold certain technology assets acquired from VFSC to Princeton eCom Corporation. See Note 10.

Loans to executive officers and other employees at July 31, 2001 and 2002 were as follows:

July 31,
(In thousands) 2001 2002
Loans to executive OffiCeIs ... ... ... ... ... it $ 9,502 $14,865
Loans to other employees . . ... ..... ... 3,357 6,405

$12,859  $21,270

Loans to executive officers are primarily relocation loans. Of the total loans to executive officers at July 31,
2002, $9.5 million accrue no interest for either the term of the note or for up to four years. The remaining
loans to executive officers at July 31, 2002 accrue interest at rates equal to the applicable federal rates in effect
at the time the loans were made. Of the total outstanding loans to executive officers and other employees at
July 31, 2002, loans with a remaining principal balance of $20.2 million are secured by real property. The
loans have terms which range from one to ten years.
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23. Selected Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following tables contain selected quarterly consolidated financial data for fiscal years 2001 and 2002. We
accounted for the July 2002 sale of our Quicken Loans mortgage business segment as discontinued operations.
As a result, the operating results of Quicken Loans have been segregated from continuing operations in our
consolidated financial statements and in these tables. See Note 11.

(In thousands, except per share data)

Total net revenue ........... ... . ... .. i
COSt Of TOVENUEL . . . . oottt
All other costs and eXpenses. ................oouiiiiiiiineenina...

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
accounting change .............. . i

Net income from discontinued operations ..........................
Net income (10SS) .. ...ttt

Basic net income (loss) per share from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of accounting change ..........................

Diluted net income (loss) per share from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of accounting change ..........................

Basic net income per share from discontinued operations ............

Diluted net income per share from discontinued operations ..........

(In thousands, except per share data)

Total net revenue ......... ... ... ... .
Costofrevenue .......... ... ..ot
All other costs and eXpenses. . .............o.uuuiiiiiinnnn..

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
accounting change ............ ... .. .. i

Net income from discontinued operations ..........................
Net income (10SS) .. ...t

Basic net income (loss) per share from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of accounting change ..........................

Diluted net income (loss) per share from continuing operations before
cumulative effect of accounting change ..........................

Basic net income per share from discontinued operations ............

Diluted net income per share from discontinued operations ..........

Fiscal 2001 Quarter Ended

October 31 January 31  April 30  July 31
$170,829 $437,232 $390,026  $150,318
62,817 100,101 72,877 58,459
199,178 244,044 291,488 193,928
(48,097) 25,368 (22,408) (72,942)
18 1,194 8,107 11,653
(33,765) 26,562 (14,301) (61,289)
$ (0.23) $ 012 $ (0.11) $ (0.35)
0.23) 0.12 0.11) (0.35)
0.00 0.01 0.04 0.06
0.00 0.00 0.04 0.06

Fiscal 2002 Quarter Ended

October 31 January 31  April 30  July 31
$ 168,727 $490,752 $501,710  $197,159
63,495 116,618 70,457 58,683
241,207 275,873 251,136 221,657
(102,156) 103,128 134,563 (65,775)
9,729 16,740 9,918 34,013
(92,427) 119,868 144,481 (31,762)

$  (0.48) $ 048 $§ 063 §$ 031
(0.48) 0.47 0.62 0.31
0.04 0.08 0.05 0.16

0.04 0.08 0.05 0.16

24. Event Subsequent to Date of Independent Auditors’ Report (Unaudited)

On September 13, 2002, we completed the purchase of Blue Ocean Software, Inc. for approximately

$170.0 million in cash. Blue Ocean offers software solutions that help businesses manage their information
technology resources and assets. Intuit plans to operate Blue Ocean as a separate business unit under its Small
Business division led by Blue Ocean'’s chief executive officer and headquartered in Tampa, Florida.
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INTUIT INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Schedule 11

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Expense/ End of
Period Revenue Deductions Period
(In thousands)
Year ended July 31, 2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts........................... $12,420 $ 4,884 $ (8,286) $ 9,018
Reserve for product returns ............... ... .. i $73,955 $48,077 $(61,053) $60,979
Year ended July 31, 2001
Allowance for doubtful accounts........................... $ 9,018 $10,593 $ (3,427) $16,184
Reserve for product returns .................. ... $60,979 $53,660 $(83,129) $31,510
Year ended July 31, 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts........................... $16,184 $ 3,494 $(13,899) $ 5,779
Reserve for product returns .......... ... ... $31,510 $92,798 $(88,705) $35,603

Note: Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts are charged to expense. Additions to the reserve for

product returns are charged against revenue.
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ITEM 9
CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

PART III

ITEM 10
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information about directors that is required by this Item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for our December 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Information about executive officers that is
required by this Item can be found in Item 4A.

ITEM 11
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for our December 2002 Annual Meeting.

ITEM 12
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

This information is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for our December 2002 Annual Meeting.

ITEM 13
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

This information is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for our December 2002 Annual Meeting.
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PART IV
ITEM 14
EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(@) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1.

2.

3.

Ex.
No.

2.01

2.02#

2.03#

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.01
4.02

10.01+

10.02+

10.03+

10.04+

10.05+

10.06+

10.07+

Financial Statements — See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8.

Financial Statement Schedules — See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8.

Exhibits

Exhibit Description

Stock Sale and Purchase Agreement by and among Intuit,
Venture Finance Software Corp. and certain security holders
of Venture Finance Software Corp., dated August 30, 2000

Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among BRFC
LLC, Intuit, Quicken Loans, Inc., and Title Source, Inc.,
dated June 20, 2002

Amendment to Stock Purchase and Sale Agreement by and
among BRFC LLC, Intuit, Quicken Loans, Inc., and Title
Source, Inc., dated July 29, 2002

Restated Intuit Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of
January 19, 2000

Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated
October 15, 1999

Bylaws of Intuit, as amended and restated effective May 1,
2002

Form of Specimen Certificate for Intuit’s Common Stock

Form of Right Certificate for Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (included in Exhibit 3.02)

Intuit 2002 Equity Incentive Plan and related plan
documents, as amended through January 18, 2002

Intuit 1993 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended through
January 16, 2002

Intuit Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended through
January 18, 2002

Intuit 1996 Directors Stock Option Plan and related plan
documents, as amended through January 18, 2002

Intuit 1998 Option Plan for Mergers and Acquisitions and
related documents, as amended through May 31, 2002

Intuit Form of Amendment to All Stock Options
Outstanding at February 19, 1999

Intuit Performance Incentive Plan, effective August 1, 2002
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Filed
with Incorporated by Reference
this Date
10-K  Form File No. Filed
8-K 09/13/00
8-K 08/15/02
8-K 08/15/02
10-Q 06/14/00
S-8 333-92503  12/10/99
10-Q 05/31/02
X
S-8 333-92503  12/10/99
S-8 333-81446  01/25/02
10-Q 02/28/02
S-8 333-83128 01/24/02
S-8 333-81324  01/24/02
X
10-K 10/12/99
X



Ex.
No.

10.08+

10.09+

10.10+

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

Exhibit Description

Intuit Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, effective
March 15, 2002

Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by Intuit
with each of its directors and certain officers

Letter Agreement of Employment between Intuit and
William V. Campbell, dated March 30, 1994

Employment Agreement between Intuit and Stephen M.
Bennett, dated January 21, 2000

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement dated
January 21, 2000 between Intuit and Stephen M. Bennett,
dated January 17, 2001

Amendment No. 2 to January 21, 2000 Employment
Agreement between Intuit and Stephen M. Bennett, dated
October 23, 2001

Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, with respect to
150,000 shares of Intuit Common Stock between Intuit and
Stephen M. Bennett, dated January 24, 2000

Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, with respect to 75,000
shares of Intuit Common Stock between Intuit and
Stephen M. Bennett, dated January 24, 2000

Amendment No. 1 to Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement,
with respect to 150,000 shares of Intuit Common Stock
dated January 24, 2000 between Intuit and Stephen M.
Bennett, dated January 17, 2001

Amendment No. 1 to Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement,
with respect to 75,000 shares of Intuit Common Stock
dated January 24, 2000 between Intuit and Stephen M.
Bennett, dated January 17, 2001

Secured Balloon Payment Note Agreement between Intuit
and Stephen M. Bennett, dated February 17, 2000

Secured Full Recourse Promissory Note and Stock Pledge
Agreement between Intuit and Stephen M. Bennett, dated
March 30, 2001

Letter from Intuit to Stephen M. Bennett confirming
forgiveness of certain loan interest, dated April 6, 2001

Amended and Restated Secured Balloon Payment
Promissory Note between Intuit and Stephen M. Bennett,
dated November 26, 2001

Amended and Restated Secured Full Recourse Balloon
Payment Promissory Note (and related Stock Pledge
Agreement) between Intuit and Stephen M. Bennett, dated
February 19, 2002
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Filed

with Incorporated by Reference

this Date

10-K  Form File No. Filed
10-Q 05/31/02

X

10-K 10/31/94
10-Q 03/16/00
10-Q 06/13/01
10-Q 12/07/01
S-8 333-51700  12/12/00
S-8 333-51700  12/12/00
10-Q 06/13/01
10-Q 06/13/01
10-Q 12/30/00
10-Q 06/13/01
10-Q 06/13/01
10-Q 02/28/02
10-Q 02/28/02



Ex.
No.

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

10.33+

10.34+

10.35+

10.36+

10.37+

Exhibit Description

Employment Agreement between Intuit and Lorrie M.
Norrington, dated July 30, 2001

Secured Balloon Payment Promissory Note for the principal
amount of $5,500,000 between Intuit and Lorrie
Norrington, dated May 20, 2002

Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan Promissory Note for
the principal amount of $1,000,000 between Intuit and
Lorrie Norrington, dated May 20, 2002

Secured Balloon Payment Promissory Note Agreement
between Intuit and Dennis Adsit, dated September 27, 2000

Secured Balloon Payment Promissory Note for the principal
amount of $75,000 between Intuit and Dennis Adsit, dated
December 31, 2001

Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan Promissory Note
between Intuit and Thomas Allanson, dated October 16,
2000

Amendment No. 1 to Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan
Promissory Note dated October 16, 2000 between Intuit
and Thomas Allanson, dated May 29, 2001

Amendment No. 2 to Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan
Promissory Note dated October 16, 2000 and as amended
on May 29, 2001 between Intuit and Thomas Allanson,
dated July 31, 2001

Amendment No. 3 to Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan
Promissory Note between Intuit and Thomas A. Allanson,
dated October 16, 2000, dated September 28, 2001

Amended Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan Promissory
Note for the principal amount of $1,044,000 between Intuit
and Thomas Allanson, dated April 18, 2002

Amended and Restated Secured Promissory Note between
Intuit and Brooks Fisher, dated November 26, 2001

Employment Agreement between Intuit and
Richard William Ihrie, dated October 14, 2000

Secured Bridge Loan Promissory Note between Intuit and
Richard William Ihrie, dated November 28, 2000

Secured Balloon Payment Promissory Note between Intuit
and Richard William Ihrie, dated November 28, 2000

Amended and Restated Secured Balloon Payment
Promissory Note between Intuit and Richard W. Ihrie, dated
November 26, 2001
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Filed

with Incorporated by Reference
this Date
10-K  Form File No. Filed
10-K 10/05/01
X
X
10-Q 12/30/00
X
10-Q 12/30/00
10-Q 06/13/01
10-K 10/05/01
10-Q 12/07/01
10-Q 05/31/02
10-Q 02/28/02
10-K 10/05/01
10-Q 12/30/00
10-Q 12/30/00
10-Q 02/28/02



Ex.
No.

10.38+

10.39+

10.40#

10.41#

10.42

10.43#

10.44#

10.45#

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

Exhibit Description

Letter from Intuit to Richard William Ihrie confirming
forgiveness of certain loan interest, dated December 3, 2001

Separation Agreement between Intuit and Michael L.
Hrastinski, dated February 15, 2002

Amended & Restated Services Agreement between Intuit
and Ingram Micro Inc. dated September 11, 2001

Master Agreement between Intuit and Modus Media
International, Inc. dated November 1, 2000, as amended on
August 27, 2001

Supply Agreement between Intuit and John H. Harland
Company (“‘Harland”), effective as of January 1, 2000

Term Sheet for Fulfillment Products and Services for FSG
and P-TAP Non-Imprintable Products between Harland and
Intuit, dated October 25, 2001

Agreement for Purchase of Intuit-owned Inventory for FSG
and P-TAP Non-Imprintable Products between Harland and
Intuit, dated October 25, 2001

Addendum for USBP and Omware Imprintable Products
between Intuit and Harland, dated July 16, 2002

Master Services Agreement between Intuit and Sony Disc
Manufacturing, dated July 24, 2002

Mortgage Warehousing Agreements and Related Documents
between Intuit and Quicken Loans, Inc., dated as of July 31,
2002

Lease Agreement dated as of November 30, 1994 between
Intuit and Charleston Properties for 2700 Coast Drive,
Mountain View, California to commence on January 1,
1999

Lease Agreement dated as of November 30, 1994 between
Intuit and Charleston Properties for 2475 Garcia Drive,
Mountain View, California

Lease Agreement dated as of November 30, 1994 between
Intuit and Charleston Properties for 2525 Garcia Drive,
Mountain View, California

Lease Agreement dated as of November 30, 1994 between
Intuit and Charleston Properties for 2535 Garcia Drive,
Mountain View, California

Lease Agreement dated as of November 30, 1994 between
Intuit and Charleston Properties for 2500 Garcia Drive,
Mountain View, California

101

Filed

with Incorporated by Reference
this Date
10-K  Form File No. Filed
10-Q 12/07/01
10-Q 02/28/02
10-Q 12/07/01
10-Q 12/07/01
10-K 10/13/00
10-Q 02/28/02
10-Q 02/28/02
X
X
8-K 08/15/02
10-Q 03/17/95
10-Q 03/17/95
10-Q 03/17/95
10-Q 03/17/95
10-K 10/15/97



Ex.
No.

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

Exhibit Description

Lease Agreement dated as of November 30, 1994 between
Intuit and Charleston Properties for 2550 Garcia Drive,
Mountain View, California

Lease Agreement dated as of January 7, 1998 between Intuit
and Charleston Properties for 2650 Casey Drive, Mountain
View, California

Lease Agreement dated as of April 30, 1999 between Intuit
and Charleston Properties for 2675 Coast Drive, Mountain
View, California

Lease Agreement dated as of March 29, 1999 between Intuit
and various parties as Landlord for 2632 Marine Way,
Mountain View, California

Lease Agreement dated January 31, 2000 between Intuit and
Broderick Way Partners, LLC for 2700 Broderick Way,
Mountain View, California

Build-to-Suit Lease Agreement dated as of June 9, 1995 as
amended April 14, 1998 between Intuit and Kilroy Realty
Corporation, successor to UTC Greenwich Partners, a
California limited partnership for 6200 and

6220 Greenwich, San Diego, California

Lease Agreement dated as of July 2, 1997 between Intuit
and Spieker Properties, L.P. for 6060 Nancy Ridge Road,
San Diego, California

Consent to Sublease Agreement dated March 31, 2000
among Intuit as subtenant, Spieker Properties, L.P. and
Franklin Templeton Corporate Services, Inc. for Eastgate
Mall, San Diego, California

Offer to Purchase Real Estate Agreement dated as of
October 14, 1997, as amended on December 5, 1997,
between Intuit and General American Life Insurance
Company, for property located at 110 Juliad Court,
Fredericksburg, Virginia (purchase and sale agreement)
Build-to-Suit Lease Agreement dated as of April 8, 1998,
between Intuit and TACC Investors, LLC for property
located at 2800 East Commerce Center Place, Tucson,
Arizona

Deed of Lease dated as of July 27, 1999 between Intuit and
Waterfront I Corporation for 44 Canal Center Plaza,
Alexandria, Virginia
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this Date

10-K  Form File No. Filed
10-K 10/15/97
10-K 10/06/98
10-K 10/13/01
10-K 10/13/01
10-Q 06/14/00
10-K 10/30/95
10-K 10/13/01
10-Q 06/14/00
10-K 10/06/98
10-K 10/06/98
10-K 10/12/99



Ex.
No.

10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68

10.69

21.01
23.01
24.01

Exhibit Description

Lease Agreement dated as of June 1, 1993 between Intuit as
successor in interest to Computing Resources, Inc. who is
successor in interest to Pioneer Bank and Dermody
Properties for 5400 Equity Avenue, Reno, Nevada

Lease Agreement dated as of January 1, 1994 between Intuit
as successor in interest to Computing Resources, Inc. and
1285 Financial Boulevard, Inc. for 1285 Financial Boulevard,
Reno, Nevada

Lease Agreement dated as of February 28, 1999 between
Intuit’s CRI subsidiary and 1225 Financial Boulevard, Inc.
for 1225 Financial Boulevard, Reno, Nevada

Lease Agreement dated as of January 1, 1996 between Intuit
as successor in interest to Computing Resources, Inc. and
565 Rio Vista Drive, Inc. for 565 Rio Vista Drive, Fallon,
Nevada

Sublease Agreement and Amendments between Lacerte
Software Corporation and Oryx Energy Company for

13155 Noel Road, Suite 2200, Dallas, Texas

Office Lease Agreement dated February 22, 2000 between
Lacerte Software Corporation and KCD-TX 1 Investment
Limited Partnership for office space in Plano, Texas

List of Intuit’s Subsidiaries

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

Power of Attorney (see signature page)

Filed

with Incorporated by Reference
this Date
10-K  Form File No. Filed
10-K 10/12/99
10-K 10/12/99
10-K 10/13/00
10-K 10/12/99
10-K 10/12/99
10-Q 06/14/00
X
X
X

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

# We have requested confidential treatment for certain portions of this document pursuant to an application
for confidential treatment sent to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). We omitted such
portions from this filing and filed them separately with the SEC.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 and through the filing date of this

Form 10-K:

1.

On May 13, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item S that it had signed an
agreement to acquire CBS Employer Services, Inc. and that it had signed an agreement to acquire
American Fundware, Inc. No financial statements were filed with the report.

On May 17, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 its financial results for the
quarter ending April 30, 2002. Intuit’s balance sheet and statement of operations for the third
quarter and nine months ended April 30, 2002 were included in the 8-K.

On June 11, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had completed the
acquisitions of American Fundware Inc. and CBS Employer Services, Inc. and that it had signed an
agreement to acquire Management Reports, Inc. No financial statements were filed with the report.
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4. On June 24, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had signed a
definitive agreement to sell Quicken Loans, Inc. No financial statements were filed with the report.

5. On July 10, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had signed an
agreement to acquire substantially all of the assets of Eclipse, Inc. No financial statements were filed
with the report.

6. On July 24, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had completed the
acquisition of Management Reports, Inc. No financial statements were filed with the report.

7. On August 1, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had completed
the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Eclipse, Inc. No financial statements were filed
with the report.

8. On August 14, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 9 that Stephen M.
Bennett and Greg J. Santora each submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission a Statement
under Oath Regarding Facts and Circumstances Relating to Exchange Act Filings. These statements
covered Intuit’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2001 and all quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all definitive proxy materials filed by Intuit
since Intuit filed its fiscal year 2001 Form 10-K on October 5, 2001. No financial statements were
filed with the report.

9. On August 15, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 2 that it had completed
the sale of its Quicken Loans mortgage business to BRFC LLC. Intuit’s Unaudited Pro Forma
Condensed Balance Sheet as of April 30, 2002, Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the nine months ended April 30, 2002 and Unaudited Pro Forma
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended July 31, 2001 were filed with
the report.

10. On August 22, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had signed an
agreement to acquire Blue Ocean Software, Inc. as well as to report its financial results for the fourth
quarter and fiscal year ending July 31, 2002. Intuit’s statement of operations for the fourth quarter
and the year ended July 31, 2002 and the balance sheet for the fiscal year ending July 31, 2002 were
filed with the report. The report also disclosed that Greg Santora, Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Intuit, has decided to retire from Intuit at the end of the calendar year and will
remain in his current role until then.

11. On September 24, 2002, Intuit filed a report on Form 8-K to report under Item 5 that it had
completed the acquisition of Blue Ocean Software, Inc. No financial statements were filed with
the report.

(c) Exhibits
See Item 14(a)(3) above.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 14(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INTUIT INC.

Dated: September 25, 2002 /s/ GREG J. SANTORA

Greg ]. Santora
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

105



POWER OF ATTORNEY

By signing this Form 10-K below, I hereby appoint each of Stephen M. Bennett and Raymond G. Stern, as my
attorney-in-fact to sign all amendments to this Form 10-K on my behalf, and to file this Form 10-K (including
all exhibits and other documents related to the Form 10-K) with the Securities and Exchange Commission. I
authorize each of my attorneys-in-fact to (1) appoint a substitute attorney-in-fact for himself and (2) perform
any actions that he believes are necessary or appropriate to carry out the intention and purpose of this Power
of Attorney. I ratify and confirm all lawful actions taken directly or indirectly by my attorneys-in-fact and by
any properly appointed substitute attorneys-in-fact.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

Principal Executive Officer:

/s/ STEPHEN M. BENNETT President, Chief Executive Officer September 25, 2002
Stephen M. Bennett and Director

Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer:

/s/ GREG ]. SANTORA Senior Vice President and Chief September 25, 2002
Greg J. Santora Financial Officer

Additional Directors:

/s/ CHRISTOPHER W. BRODY Director September 25, 2002
Christopher W. Brody

/s/ WiLLiAM V. CAMPBELL Chairman of the Board of Directors  September 25, 2002
William V. Campbell

/s/ Scorr D. Cook Director September 25, 2002
Scott D. Cook

/s/ L. JoHN DOERR Director September 25, 2002
L. John Doerr

/s/ DoNNA L. DUBINSKY Director September 25, 2002

Donna L. Dubinsky

/s/ MicHAEL R. HALLMAN Director September 25, 2002
Michael R. Hallman

/s/ STRATTON SCLAVOS Director September 25, 2002

Stratton Sclavos
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Form 10-K Certification
I, Stephen M. Bennett, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Intuit Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report.

Date: September 25, 2002

/s/ STEPHEN M. BENNETT

Stephen M. Bennett
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Form 10-K Certification
I, Greg ]J. Santora, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Intuit Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report.

Date: September 25, 2002

/s/ GREG J. SANTORA

Greg J. Santora
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

4.01  Form of Specimen Certificate for Intuit’s Common Stock

10.05+ Intuit 1998 Option Plan for Mergers and Acquisitions and related documents, as amended through
May 31, 2002

10.07+ Intuit Performance Incentive Plan, effective August 1, 2002

10.09+ Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by Intuit with each of its directors and certain
officers

10.24+ Secured Balloon Payment Promissory Note for the principal amount of $5,500,000 between Intuit
and Lorrie Norrington, dated May 20, 2002

10.25+ Secured Balloon Payment Bridge Loan Promissory Note for the principal amount of $1,000,000
between Intuit and Lorrie Norrington, dated May 20, 2002

10.27+ Secured Balloon Payment Promissory Note for the principal amount of $75,000 between Intuit and
Dennis Adsit, dated December 31, 2001

10.45# Addendum for USBP and Omware Imprintable Products between Intuit and John H. Harland
Company, dated July 16, 2002

10.46  Master Services Agreement between Intuit and Sony Disc Manufacturing, dated July 24, 2002
21.01  List of Intuit’s Subsidiaries

23.01  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

24.01  Power of Attorney (see signature page)

Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

We have requested confidential treatment for certain portions of this document pursuant to an application
for confidential treatment sent to the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). We omitted such
portions from this filing and filed them separately with the SEC.
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corporate information

TRANSFER AGENT INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company Ernst & Young LLP

59 Maiden Lane 555 California Street

New York, New York 10038 Suite 1700

1-800-937-5449 (Shareholder Relations) Palo Alto, California 94104
FORM 10-K CORPORATE COUNSEL
Additional copies of Intuit’s Fiscal 2002 Form 10-K Fenwick & West LLP

may be obtained without charge by contacting: Two Palo Alto Square
Investor Relations Palo Alto, California 94306
Intuit Inc.

P.O. Box 7850

Mountain View, California 94039-7850
1-650-944-6000

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held
on Thursday, December 12, 2002 at 8:30 a.m. at
Intuit Inc., 2550 Garcia Avenue, Building 5,
Mountain View, California.

MARKET INFORMATION FOR COMMON STOCK

Intuit’s common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “INTU.
The following table shows the range of high and low sale prices reported on the Nasdaq
Stock Market for the periods indicated. On August 30, 2002, the closing price of Intuit’s
common stock was $44.63.

HIGH LOW
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2001
First quarter $61.88 $34.25
Second quarter 69.31 31.06
Third quarter 47.38 22.63
Fourth quarter 40.75 29.85
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2002
First quarter $ 43.73 $28.54
Second quarter 47.05 36.95
Third quarter 41.81 34.52
Fourth quarter 50.13 36.85

As of August 30, 2002, we had approximately 1,200 record holders of our common stock,
and about 114,000 beneficial holders.
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William V. Campbell *
Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Intuit Inc.

Stephen M. Bennett

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Intuit Inc.

Christopher W. Brody "**
Chairman,
Vantage Partners LLC

Scott D. Cook*

Chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors,

Intuit Inc.

L.John Doerr

General Partner,
Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers

Donna L. Dubinsky *
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Handspring, Inc.

Michael R. Hallman ">*
President,
The Hallman Group

Stratton D. Sclavos

President and Chief Executive Officer,
VeriSign, Inc.

' Member of the Nominating Committee
> Member of the Audit Committee
* Member of the Executive Committee

* Member of the Compensation Committee



principal offices

UNITED STATES

Corporate Headquarters
2535 Garcia Avenue

Mountain View, California 94043

6220 Greenwich Drive
San Diego, California 92122

2800 East Commerce Center
Tucson, Arizona 85706

890 Winter Street, Suite 200
Waltham, Massachusetts 02451

Sierra Corporate Center
6888 Sierra Center Parkway
Reno, Nevada 89511

5601 Headquarters Drive
Plano, Texas 75024

601 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
North Building, Suite 200
Washington, D.C. 20003

1385 S. Colorado Boulevard, Suite 400

Denver, Colorado 80222

110 Stony Point Road, Suite 200

Santa Rosa, California 95401

1215 Country Club Lane, Suite 100

Fort Worth, Texas 76112

23945 Mercantile Road
Beachwood, Ohio 44122

100 Beard Sawmill Road, Suite 210

Shelton, Connecticut 06484

15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 370

Tampa, Florida 33647

CANADA

7008 Roper Road
Edmonton, Alberta T6B 3H2

138 4th Avenue S.E., Suite 400
Calgary, Alberta T2G 4Z6

JAPAN

Seavans North Building
1-2-1 Shibaura
Minato-ku

Tokyo 105-6791

UNITED KINGDOM

36-38 Market Street
Maidenhead, Berkshire
SL6 8AD England
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Intuit, the Intuit logo, QuickBooks, Quicken, TurboTax, ProSeries, Lacerte, FundWare and QuickBase,
among others, are registered trademarks and/or registered service marks of Intuit Inc. in the United States
and other countries. Intuit Master Builder, MRI and Intuit Eclipse, among others, are trademarks and/or
service marks of Intuit Inc., or one of its subsidiaries, in the United States and other countries. Other
parties’ marks are the property of their respective owners and should be treated as such.
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